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WELCOME
Oxford University Hospitals
NHS Trust is committed to delivering
compassionate excellence

Dame Fiona Caldicott
Chairman

Message from the Chairman
Welcome to the Annual Report from April 2015 - September 2015 of
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust.
Our application to become a Foundation Trust was granted from 1 October 2015
and so this report marks our last six months as an NHS trust before becoming an
NHS Foundation Trust. This is a culmination of the work led by our Chief Executive,
Sir Jonathan Michael.
Sir Jonathan was appointed Chief Executive of Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals NHS Trust in
2010. Sir Jonathan re-organised the structure of the Trust around clinical leadership,
putting the decisions about the organisation into the hands of our clinicians. With
the help and support of his Executive Board colleagues, the performance of the Trust
has been transformed. This enabled the Trust to enter into a partnership with the
University of Oxford and to merge with the Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre NHS Trust in
2011 and jointly become Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust. Sir Jonathan was also
instrumental in the achievement of successful bids for Oxford to become an Academic
Health Science Centre and at the centre of the Oxford Academic Health Science
Network. This in turn has helped to bring additional research benefits to our patients
and hospitals. Sir Jonathan retired at the beginning of October 2015 and I would like to
take this opportunity to thank him and pay tribute to his contribution to the Trust. His
successor Dr Bruno Holthof took up his post on 5 October 2015.
This was a momentous six months for Oxford University Hospitals and staff have
worked hard to maintain and improve the Trust’s performance. We have continued
to see high numbers of patients in our emergency departments and to receive a
high number of emergency admissions. Staff across our four hospitals have delivered
excellent care for patients. This is in spite of continuing difficulties over the numbers
of beds available for new admissions as the health and social care system struggles to
discharge patients from our hospitals when they are ready to move on to their next
stage of care. We have been working closely with all of our health and social care
partners to come up with short, medium and long-term solutions to this problem which
we are not unique in facing, but which is particularly acute in Oxfordshire.

Annual Report April - September 2015 Page 01

Our first Council of Governors was elected
in February 2015, and for the first six months of
2015/16 (1 April - 30 September 2015), the period
covered by this report, I have had the pleasure of
getting to know them as we have operated in shadow
form prior to authorisation as a foundation trust. It
was very pleasing that we had contested elections in
every constituency, both public and staff, and have
excellent and enthusiastic governors elected from
the public and staff membership. They are joined by
appointed governors from partner organisations such
as Oxford’s two universities and local health partners
who bring invaluable additional experience and
expertise to the Council.
We continue our aim to be a Trust which leads
the way in terms of adoption of new approaches,
and in this report you can read of some of the
new technologies adopted and researched during
the course of this period. As a result of work that
has been taking place over the last few years, our
patients’ clinical records are digitised, enabling
patients’ medical history and care requirements to
be available electronically on our Electronic Patient
Record (EPR) system.
One of the Trust’s strategic aims has been to bring
care closer to patients’ homes. This is clearly better
for patients. Our aim is to reduce length of stay in
our hospitals, avoid hospital attendance or admission
wherever possible, locate diagnostic services and
clinics in hospitals and other health centres nearer
to patients’ homes and to reduce the number of
occasions in which patients and their families have
to visit our hospitals. The use of new technologies
can also help in delivering this. In July 2015, the
Board made the decision, subject to the approval of
NHS England, to go ahead with a scheme to deliver
radiotherapy at a brand new unit which we are now
starting to build at the Great Western Hospital in
Swindon. At the moment cancer patients in Swindon
have to travel for their daily treatment to the Churchill
Hospital in Oxford.

We will use our team of expert clinicians and nurses
to deliver the same quality of care in Swindon that we
are able to deliver in Oxford, in a purpose-built new
facility that will massively reduce the need for patients
from Wiltshire and Swindon to travel for this vital
treatment. The unit at Swindon will then be one of
over 40 different sites from which Oxford University
Hospitals delivers our clinical services in addition to
our four main hospitals.
These excellent developments are a few examples
of how we are changing the way we deliver
services to provide better care and outcomes for
our patients. This year we have been working
closely with our other health partners (Oxfordshire
Clinical Commissioning Group, Oxford Health NHS
Foundation Trust, South Central Ambulance Services
NHS Foundation Trust and Oxfordshire County
Council) to improve the provision of urgent healthcare
services to the people of Oxfordshire.
We have been developing a single plan for
Oxfordshire to pool budgets between the various
organisations and to avoid duplication of services
across them. Changing demographics in the
population of Oxfordshire mean that demands on
all of our services are likely to increase as people
live longer, but with more medical complications at
the end of their lives requiring careful management
and co-ordination across different health and local
government services.
Our collaborative working has had a particular focus
on unscheduled urgent treatment, care of the frail
and elderly and long-term chronic conditions. We
want to provide more services in local communities
supported by the specialist skills of our hospital
clinicians working with our community colleagues.

Dame Fiona Caldicott
Chairman
31 March 2016

Mr Mark Mansfield
Deputy Chief Executive
31 March 2016

* Mark Mansfield is signing this report as the Deputy Chief Executive. Sir Jonathan Michael, the Chief Executive and Accountable Officer for the
period covered by this report, retired on 5 October 2015.
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➋
OVERVIEW AND
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
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ABOUT US
Oxford University Hospitals (OUH) is one of
the largest NHS teaching trusts in the UK with
a national and international reputation for the
excellence of its services and its role in education
and research. Clinical care is delivered by experienced
specialists. Our Trust consists of four hospitals – the
John Radcliffe Hospital (which also includes the
Children’s Hospital and West Wing), Churchill Hospital
and the Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre, all located in
Oxford, and the Horton General Hospital in Banbury.
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust was formally
established on 1 November 2011 when the Nuffield
Orthopaedic Centre NHS Trust merged with the
Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals NHS Trust. On the same
date a formal Joint Working Agreement between
the Trust and the University of Oxford came into
effect. This Agreement has built on existing working
relationships between the two organisations.

We have around one million patient contacts each
year and, in addition to providing general hospital
services, we draw patients from across the country for
specialist services not routinely available elsewhere.
Most services are provided in our hospitals, but over
6% are delivered from 44 other locations. These
include outpatient peripheral clinics in community
settings and satellite services in a number of
surrounding hospitals such as:
l	a

satellite children’s surgical centre at Milton Keynes
General Hospital
l	renal dialysis units at Stoke Mandeville Hospital and
at the Great Western Hospital in Swindon.
The Trust delivers services from community hospitals
in Oxfordshire, including midwifery-led units. It is also
responsible for a number of screening programmes,
including those for bowel cancer, breast cancer,
diabetic retinopathy, cervical cancer and chlamydia.

During 2015/16 we provided:

• 1.3 million patient contacts
• 108,000 planned admissions
• 90,000 unplanned and emergency admissions
• 145,000 emergency department attendances

The Trust has
a CQC rating
of ‘good’

• 1.75 million meals for inpatients
At the end of 2015/16, the Trust has:

• 1,200 beds, including 86 for children
• 44 operating theatres
• 12,558 staff
• 4,154 nurses and midwives
• 2,024 doctors
• 1,496 healthcare support workers
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Our turnover
in 2015/16 was
£976 million

Becoming a foundation trust

Our Integrated Business Plan

In the period April to September 2015 the Trust
took the final steps in the process of applying
to become a foundation trust, working with the
Trust Development Authority (TDA). At a Board
meeting on 30 September, Monitor approved our
application. This decision came after the Care Quality
Commission gave the Trust an overall rating of
‘Good’ in May 2014, and after scrutiny of the Trust’s
quality, finances, service delivery and governance
arrangements by the NHS Trust Development
Authority and then Monitor. The Trust was granted
foundation trust status from 1 October 2015.

The Trust Board has set out its Integrated Business
Plan (IBP) that explains the organisation’s plans over
a five year period until 2019/20. It describes the
services we provide, our plans for developing our
services for the future, the money we spend and the
people we employ.

As part of our preparations in terms of our
membership involvement and engagement and
new governance arrangements, we elected our first
Council of Governors in ‘shadow’ form in February
2015, prior to the Trust being authorised as a
foundation trust. The new Council of Governors
had training and induction as well as a number of
workshops in preparation for their inaugural meeting
after the Trust achieved foundation status.
The process that we have been through as an
organisation to get to this point has helped us to
reflect critically upon our achievements. We have
also identified areas for improvement in terms of
the quality of our care, our performance against
key national standards and our financial stability.
We are now in a stronger position to take forward
the priorities of our organisation, our patients, our
governors and members, the public and our staff.
We recognise that becoming a foundation trust does
not in itself solve the challenges facing us or the NHS
nationwide. We will continue to focus on sustaining
delivering safe and high quality care, living within
our means and meeting national standards in a
challenging financial climate.

The Trust’s Integrated Business Plan can be found on
the Trust website, alongside the Annual Business Plan:
www.ouh.nhs.uk/about/publications/businessplans.aspx
There is an immediate focus on improving care for
older, vulnerable patients, with plans to reduce
delays in transfer from hospital care and to improve
the psychological support and care given to this
significant and growing group of patients. There is a
continuing focus on integrating care pathways so that
more seamless care is provided across many of our
services and also across organisational boundaries.

ON 1 OCTOBER 2015
THE TRUST WAS AWARDED
FOUNDATION TRUST STATUS
AND BECAME
OXFORD UNIVERSITY
HOSPITALS NHS
FOUNDATION TRUST.
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Our hospitals
The John Radcliffe Hospital in Oxford is the
largest of the Trust’s hospitals. It is the site of the
county’s main accident and emergency service, the
Major Trauma Centre for the Thames Valley region,
and provides acute medical and surgical services,
intensive care and women’s services. The Oxford
Children’s Hospital, the Oxford Eye Hospital and the
Oxford Heart Centre are also part of the John
Radcliffe Hospital.
The site has a major role in teaching and research and
hosts many of the University of Oxford’s departments,
including those of the Medical Sciences Division.
The Churchill Hospital in Oxford is the centre
for the Trust’s cancer services and a range of other
medical and surgical specialties. These include: renal
services and transplant, clinical and medical oncology,
dermatology, haemophilia, infectious diseases, chest
medicine, medical genetics, palliative care and sexual
health. It also incorporates the Oxford Centre for
Diabetes, Endocrinology and Metabolic Medicine
(OCDEM).
The hospital, and the adjacent Old Road campus,
is a major centre for healthcare research, and hosts
some of the departments of the University’s Medical
Sciences Division and other major research centres
such as the Oxford Cancer Research Centre, a
partnership between Cancer Research UK, Oxford
University Hospitals and the University of Oxford.

Acute general medicine also includes a medical
assessment unit, a day hospital as part of specialised
elderly care rehabilitation services, and a cardiology
service. Other clinical services include dietetics,
occupational therapy, pathology, physiotherapy and
radiology.
The Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre has been
treating patients with bone and joint problems for
more than 80 years and has a world-wide reputation
for excellence in orthopaedics, rheumatology and
rehabilitation. The hospital also undertakes specialist
services such as children’s rheumatology, the
treatment of bone infection and bone tumours, and
limb reconstruction. The renowned Oxford Centre
for Enablement is based on the hospital site and
provides rehabilitation to those with limb amputation
or complex neurological or neuromuscular disabilities
suffered, for example, through stroke or head injury.
The site also houses the University of Oxford’s
Nuffield Department of Orthopaedics, Rheumatology
and Musculoskeletal Sciences and is home to
the NIHR’s Oxford Biomedical Research Unit in
Musculoskeletal Disease.
For more information on the Trust and its
services visit: www.ouh.nhs.uk

Our clinical services

The Horton General Hospital in Banbury serves
the people of North Oxfordshire and surrounding
counties. Services include an emergency department,
acute general medicine and elective day case surgery,
trauma, obstetrics and gynaecology, paediatrics,
critical care and the Brodey Centre offering treatment
for cancer.

We offer a wide range of local and specialist
services, including:

The majority of these services have inpatient beds and
outpatient clinics, with the outpatient department
running clinics with specialist consultants from
Oxford in dermatology, neurology, ophthalmology,
oral surgery, paediatric cardiology, radiotherapy,
rheumatology, oncology, pain rehabilitation, ear nose
and throat (ENT) and plastic surgery.

l
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l
l
l
l
l

l
l
l
l
l

Accident and emergency
Trauma and orthopaedic services
Maternity, obstetrics and gynaecology
Newborn care
General and specialist surgery
Cardiac services
Critical care
Cancer services
Renal and transplant services
Neurosurgery and maxillofacial surgery
Infectious diseases and blood disorders

Meet

Sarah

Sarah is the only Macmillan Breast Reconstruction Nurse in the
UK and has spent her entire career here. She especially enjoys looking
after patients and helping them through the difficult rehabilitation
period after surgery due to breast cancer – a very traumatic event.
Her proudest achievement is reflected in the positive feedback
she gets from her patients: that she develops strong
relationships over a long period. Outside work, she
is kept pretty busy by her eight year old twins.
She admits that Gary Lineker might have
something to do with her being
an avid Spurs fan.
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PATIENT ACTIVITY

FINANCIAL
YEAR

Emergency and
unplanned
inpatient
admissions

2015/16:
1 April 30 September
2015
FINANCIAL
YEAR

Elective
Daycase
Outpatient
inpatient
procedures
attendances
admissions			

41,391

Emergency and
unplanned
inpatient
admissions

12,077

42,610

507,311

Elective
Daycase
Outpatient
inpatient
procedures
attendances
admissions			

Emergency
Department
attendances
62,670

Emergency
Department
attendances

2011/12

83,778

19,477

73,266

835,958

121,550

2012/13

88,316

22,312

75,959

835,568

117,260

2013/14

87,741

24,015

84,533

906,513

119,847

2014/15

89,445

23,628

90,649

956,492

123,539

2015/16

91,902

23,711

84,139

1,026,162

127,433

Our performance
We continue to experience very high demand for
our emergency services, and in particular patients
requiring emergency admission. There have been
challenges around being able to move those
emergency admissions into a bed on a ward within
the national four hour standard. Delays in transferring
those patients ready to leave our wards on to the next
stage of their care in the community has also made it
more difficult for the Trust to admit patients as quickly
as it would like. Addressing these delays is a major
focus of our work with our health and social care
partners. As a Trust, we have improved and expanded
the facilities in our Emergency Assessment Unit (EAU)
at the John Radcliffe Hospital to support more people
going home on the same day, and improved the
speed of diagnostic support available in the EAU and
in our Surgical Emergency Unit.
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You can find more information about the Trust’s
performance on page 28, including a table on the
Trust’s performance against national standards from
1 April to the end of September. In common with
many other acute trusts across the country, we did
not achieve the standard of over 95% of patients
seen, treated, admitted or discharged within four
hours of attending our emergency departments,
although we were very close to doing so. We met
two out of the three standards on treatment from
referral by a GP within 18 weeks and have met all
but one of our eight cancer waiting time standards.
The Trust continues to do well with waiting times for
diagnostic tests. The number of people waiting for
diagnostic tests remains low with 99.82% of patients
having their tests within six weeks as required by
the standard. Of these, the majority have their tests
within four weeks.

Factors affecting our performance
Health and social care organisations are co-dependent
in managing the pathway for patients. In particular,
frail and elderly patients require a personal and
holistic approach to their treatment, care and
rehabilitation. This requires every step of the pathway
to function smoothly in order to avoid delays and
enable patients to go home as soon as they are
medically fit to do so.
An important factor governing the Trust’s ability to
deliver operational performance standards is the
number of patients occupying hospital beds who
are medically fit to leave hospital but are delayed
in moving to a community bed, nursing home, or
home-based care and support. The local healthcare
system remains one of the most challenged nationally
in relation to delayed transfers of care, with average
monthly delays ranging from 133 to 159 patients. This
equates to approximately 10% against the national
standard of 3.5%.

The impact of delayed transfers on the Trust’s ability
to manage emergency admissions is a concern. A
lack of available beds can cause a ‘bottle-neck’ in
the emergency departments where we continue to
see increasing attendances with emergency care
admissions increasing at around 4% a year.
In addition, rising levels of referrals for routine
operations, treatment and appointments has put
pressure on hospital beds, and our ability to meet the
national 18 week referral to treatment time standard.
The Trust is committed to achieving all local and
national performance standards. We understand that
any wait longer than necessary is of concern to our
patients and our clinical teams are working hard to
improve the waiting times.

STATUTORY FINANCIAL DUTIES

Plan
(£000)

Actual
(£000)

Variance
(£000)

Income and expenditure surplus
(breakeven duty)

(4,997)

(5,614)

(617)

Income and expenditure retained surplus		

2,966

Cost improvement plan

23,413

19,688

External Financing Limit (EFL)

9,201

9,201

(3,725)
Nil undershoot or overshoot against EFL

Capital Resource Limit (CRL)

9,121

9,121

Nil underspend or overspend against CRL

Capital Absorption Rate

3.5%

3.5%
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Financial performance overview
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust was granted
licence to operate as a Foundation Trust on 1 October
2015. As a result, two sets of accounts have to be
submitted for 2015/16, one as an NHS trust for the six
months (1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015) and one
as an NHS Foundation Trust for the six months
(1 October to 31 March 2016).
This report relates to the period 1 April 2015 to 30
September 2015, when OUH was an NHS trust.
Section 5 of this report provides our financial
statements for this period. The accounts have been
prepared under IFRS on a going concern basis,
reflecting the cash-flow forecasts of the Foundation
Trust (which has taken over the provision of all
services) over the 15 months subsequent to the
balance sheet date.
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The accounts indicate that the Trust had a retained
surplus of £2,966 for the six months to 30 September.
However, when this was adjusted to remove the
impact of a number of technical factors (accounting
for donated assets and impairments), the Trust
reported a deficit for the six month period of £5.6m
against the breakeven duty. This was just over £0.6m
behind its plan for the period.
As an NHS trust, the Trust’s performance is measured
against its statutory financial duties, the Trust
performance is summarised in the table opposite.
The Trust achieved both the External Financing Limit
(EFL) – this sets out how the Trust must manage its
cash-flow and borrowing requirements – and Capital
Resource Limit (CRL) – the maximum a Trust can
invest in fixed assets during the year. The Trust has
also achieved its Capital Absorption Rate. The Trust
is required to make a return on assets it employs of
3.5% based on actual assets held through the year.
The Trust then pays 3.5% of this value as its dividend
payment.

OUR HEALTHCARE MARKET
The Trust’s hospitals in Oxford serve an Oxfordshire population of 655,000 and the Horton General
Hospital in Banbury has a catchment population of around 150,000 people in north Oxfordshire and
neighbouring communities in south Northamptonshire and south east Warwickshire.
We have strong partnerships with our local NHS
and social care organisations, and also with a wider
network of district general hospitals, universities and
research institutions. Our role as a university teaching
centre and focus on research and innovation is a
defining feature and as such attracts patients from
beyond our surrounding counties.
The Trust provides services to two markets: a local
market for general hospital services and a wider market
for more specialist care. From April to September 2015:

38% of the Trust’s income for the delivery of

l 	

patient services came from the Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group

As a large tertiary acute centre,
the Trust provides specialist treatment for
patients from a wide geographical area. We
are designated as a regional centre for major
trauma, vascular surgery and critical care for
newborn babies. We also have multidisciplinary
teams working jointly with teams at
Southampton General Hospital as part of the
South of England Children’s Hospitals Network.
This involves senior clinicians and surgeons
from both Trusts working together to deliver
specialist children’s heart, neurosciences and
critical care services to patients from across
the region.

49% of income came from specialist

l 	

commissioners

13% came from other commissioners outside of

l 	

Oxfordshire.

FIGURES FOR 1 APRIL TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

COMMISSIONER

Service Level Agreement
income (£ million)

% of total

NHS England South (Wessex Area Team)

191.2

49.2%

Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG)

147.5

38.0%

9.3

2.4%

Buckinghamshire CCGs (Aylesbury Vale and Chiltern)
Northamptonshire CCGs (Nene and Corby)
Other NHS Commissioners (<1% share)

8.3

2.1%

32.0

8.2%

Service Level Agreement
income (£ million)

% of total

FIGURES FOR 2015 /16

COMMISSIONER
NHS England South (Wessex Area Team)

370.0

47.6%

Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG)

302.0

38.8%

Buckinghamshire CCGs (Aylesbury Vale and Chiltern)

19.2

2.5%

Northamptonshire CCGs (Nene and Corby)

17.0

2.2%

Other NHS Commissioners (<1% share)

69.6

8.9%
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THE MARKET DIVIDE : BY COMMISSIONER

NHS England (Wessex Area Team)
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (OCCG)
Buckingamshire CCGs (Aylesbury Vale and Chiltern)
Northamptonshire CCGs (Nene and Corby)
Other NHS Commissioners (<1% share)

The Trust provides the majority of acute services for
Oxfordshire with a small volume of activity going to
neighbouring district general hospitals and private
providers which have contracts for a limited range of
orthopaedic and other planned care.
The wider population served by the Trust’s specialised
services is one of approximately 2.5 million within the
local authority areas of Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire,
Milton Keynes, Berkshire, Swindon, Gloucestershire,
Northamptonshire and Warwickshire. Some specialist
services serve an even larger catchment population,
with national and international elements. In the first
six months of 2015, NHS England, which commissions
specialist services from NHS providers, accounted
for just over 49% of the Trust’s total commissioning
income.

Clinical networks and specialised
commissioning
Clinical networks have an important input into
specialist commissioning. The networks develop
responses to the recommendations of national service
improvement programmes with a common feature
being recommendations to centralise specialist
resources and expertise. In close collaboration with
academic clinical research, the networks work
reciprocally with providers across a region to ensure
the best outcomes for patients by providing seamless
access to specialist healthcare when needed.
Clinical networks involving Oxford University Hospitals
are:
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l

Cancer

l 	Cardiovascular (including cardiac surgery, cardiology,

vascular and stroke services)
care
l 	Maternity
l 	Neonatal
l 	Pathology
l 	Renal
l 	Trauma
l 	Critical

Working with our commissioners and
other healthcare providers
We have productive relationships with our local
community health and social care partners and we
work together to deliver solutions to improve patient
care across organisational boundaries.
We work closely with the GP-led Oxfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (OCCG), and with the local
authority-led Health and Wellbeing Boards, which
were introduced to understand local community
needs and priorities and to help health and social care
services to work in a more joined-up way.
Clinical commissioning groups – made up of doctors,
nurses and other professionals – buy health services
for patients, while local councils are responsible for
promoting public health, reducing health inequalities
and ensuring social care needs are met.

OUR AMBITION AND FUTURE PRIORITIES
Our mission is the improvement of health and the
alleviation of suffering and sickness for the people
we serve. We will achieve this through providing high
quality, cost-effective and integrated healthcare.
Building on our foundations as an organisation with a
clinically-led structure, we have developed a strategy
and a five-year business plan to deliver the Trust’s
vision. The Trust’s vision is to:
l 	be

at the heart of a sustainable and outstanding,
innovative academic health science system;
l 	work in partnership and through networks locally,
nationally and internationally;
l 	deliver excellence and value in patient care,
teaching and research within a culture of
compassion and integrity.
Underpinning this vision is our strategy built on six
pillars, our strategic objectives – which shape our
annual plans and business priorities.

The Trust’s strategic objectives are to deliver:
➊	Compassionate excellence – the kind of
healthcare we would all expect for ourselves and
our families
➋ A well-governed and adaptable organisation
➌ Better value healthcare
➍ Integrated local healthcare
➎	Excellent secondary and specialist care through
sustainable clinical networks
➏ The benefits of research and innovation to patients
Following the publication of the NHS Five Year
Forward View and the appointment of our new Chief
Executive, the Trust’s IBP is being reviewed. More
detail is provided in the Annual Report of Oxford
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the six
months from 1 October 2015 to 31 March 2016 which
is published separately from this report.

“Our vision
and core values
ensure that our
staff operate with
a common purpose
and achieve
our shared
aspirations. ”
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SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS
AND INNOVATION IN CARE

HORTON GENERAL HOSPITAL
CHILDREN'S WARD RELOCATION
In April 2015 the newly refurbished Children’s Ward opened
at the Horton General Hospital. The Children’s Ward was
redecorated to provide a woodland themed environment, and
offers a welcoming area for patients, enhancing their overall
experience whilst staying on the ward.
Zoe Butler, Children’s Ward Manager at the Horton, said:
“We now have a much better environment, focused on children and their comfort. The area is also much
more family-friendly and we have already had some great feedback. The difference it has made to the
patients, their families and the staff so far is brilliant!”
To celebrate the redecoration, the Children’s Ward held an Easter Party for local and long-term patients
and their families. The party, which was funded by the Starlight Children’s Foundation, saw all the children
engage in Easter-themed activities.

HUNDREDS MORE CANCER PATIENTS TO RECEIVE
INNOVATIVE RADIOTHERAPY TREATMENT
From July 2015 the Trust became one of seven centres in the country to offer patients treatment with
stereotactic ablative radiotherapy (SABR), as part of NHS England’s latest national evaluation programme.
This new innovative type of radiotherapy is a more precise technique which allows high doses of
radiation to be administered to patients whilst causing less damage to surrounding healthy tissue. The
Trust currently delivers radiotherapy to 3,600 patients a year and, as part of the newly commissioned
programme, the Churchill Hospital will be using SABR to treat oligometastatic disease (cancer that has
spread to another part of the body), primary liver tumours and the re-irradiation of cancers in the pelvis
and spine.
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CHURCHILL SURGICAL UNIT APPEAL
Oxford University Hospitals is redesigning the Churchill Hospital’s
Day Surgery Unit to make the space more welcoming and
comfortable, with significantly better privacy for male and
female patients.
The old unit was constructed in the 1980s and was designed to
support five operating theatres or half of the patients that the
Trust now cares for. The space can at times be rather cramped
and does not meet modern standards of privacy.
The new unit will support ten operating theatres and is designed to reduce stress and anxiety, with privacy
and comfort in mind. The calm space, which will have separate rooms, will be more suitable for all patients,
including those who have dementia. There will also be a dedicated area specifically for breast cancer
patients, for consultations and prosthetic fittings.
The new unit will benefit over 8,000 people every year who have surgery at the Churchill Hospital in
Oxford – many for cancer conditions.

OUH TO DEVELOP SATELLITE
RADIOTHERAPY UNIT
In July 2015 the Trust agreed to support the proposal for a
satellite radiotherapy unit to be based at the Great Western
Hospital in Swindon, subject to the approval of the Trust
Development Authority and NHS England in respect of the
funding needed to support the development over the next ten
years. The radiotherapy service will be a satellite of the OUH
Cancer Centre but based on the Great Western Hospital site.
The new unit is needed to meet the increased demand for radiotherapy that is predicted over the next ten
years and to reduce the amount of travelling for patients from Swindon and Wiltshire who currently have
to travel to Oxford for radiotherapy. Swindon and Wiltshire form one of the very few parts of the country
which do not currently have access to radiotherapy services within 45 minutes' travel time. In 2013/14
around 700 patients made the 70 mile round trip to the Churchill Hospital in Oxford for radiotherapy.
Treatment usually lasts for four to seven weeks, made up of daily visits.
Paul Brennan, Director of Clinical Services, Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust, said: “It has long been
our ambition to reduce the travel time for patients from the Swindon and Wiltshire area who are receiving
radiotherapy in our hospitals. We are proud of the excellent facilities and services that we can provide for
patients at the Churchill Hospital in Oxford, but we want to reduce the travel time and inconvenience for
patients from outside Oxfordshire.”
The planning stages of the project are well advanced and it is hoped that the service could be provided
in Swindon by early 2018. A fundraising campaign to raise the additional £2.9 million needed to fund the
scheme was launched on 28 May.
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DELIVERING HIGH QUALITY SERVICES
We aim to provide the best healthcare outcomes. An important part of this is to
monitor and measure what we do to ensure that high quality care and clinical
effectiveness are maintained.
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust continues to be registered without
conditions by the Care Quality Commission to provide health services.

Working together to achieve quality
Each year we work with our patients, staff and
commissioners to agree a number of priorities for
development. The Trust’s Quality Strategy is aimed
at building high quality healthcare based on national
and international comparisons and to improve our
performance in three key domains:
l
l
l

Patient Safety
Patient Experience
Clinical Effectiveness

Our vision for quality is to be:
recognised as one of the UK’s highest quality
healthcare providers. All our clinical services will
provide high quality healthcare; some will provide
care that is internationally outstanding.
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Meet

Luke

Luke is a Physiotherapist Assistant at the Horton General Hospital,
helping people get mobilised after trauma, injury or an operation. One of
the biggest challenges he faces in his work is managing the best way to
treat and help patients with dementia, which requires much more of
a kind, caring, understanding and thoughtful approach than might
normally be expected. He was the winner of a Compassion Gold
Award in 2012. Outside of work, he indulges in his passion
for cycling – be that road races or time trials – and he is a
member of the Banbury Star Cyclists Club. Speed is
obviously in his blood, because his other passion
is taking Bertie, his whippet, for brisk
walks in the countryside.
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Our quality goals and priorities in 2015/16
We have a fundamental commitment as a Trust and
as the NHS to the delivery of compassionate and
excellent patient care. We aim to provide excellent
and sustainable services to the people of Oxfordshire
and to patients who come to the Trust in order to
access specialist regional, national and international
care which may be unique to our Trust.
Our quality of care has its foundation in the
commitment of our staff to their patients and the
focus on future excellence which is the essence of
our clinical strategy and our research and training
programmes.
Throughout 2015/16 we have been updating
our staff, our local commissioners and other
stakeholders about our quality priorities for the
year. We have agreed that work will continue on
most of our previous quality priorities, particularly
in five areas where we wish to avoid patient harm
and deterioration wherever possible, and in our
focus on partnership and patient experience. Our
clinical divisions have been involved in identifying
quality priorities through discussion in our Clinical
Governance Committee and have developed divisional
quality plans as part of the business planning process
for 2016/17.
Our performance in respect of these priorities is
detailed in the accompanying Quality Report in our
Annual Report for 1 October 2015 to 31 March 2016.

You can read more about the activities
we undertook over the past year to improve all
aspects of quality in our Quality Report. This
details our achievements in delivering patient
safety, clinical effectiveness and improving the
patient experience, and highlights our priorities
and focus for 2016/17.

The Trust’s Quality Report
is available to read in our Annual Report for
1 October 2015 to 31 March 2016 on our website
at: www.ouh.nhs.uk/about/publications

Quality assurance
The Trust uses a variety of nationally recognised
indicators to ensure quality of care throughout the
organisation. Quality measures are reported to the
board and these reports have been reviewed and
revised this year. We also undertake monitoring of
quality via the contract and quality review meetings
with Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group.
These, along with Care Quality Commission (CQC)
registration and NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA)
standards, have all become important frameworks
for measuring, achieving and ensuring quality within
the organisation. During Q1-2 2015/16 we also met
regularly with the Trust Development Authority
to review the Trust’s quality performance and had
specific meetings to share the Trust’s action plans to
prevent Never Events.

Quality walk rounds
The Trust has a rolling programme of quality focused
walk rounds. From April to end September 2015, 34
quality walk rounds have taken place, led by members
of the executive team and including non-executive
directors. There is an emphasis on the patient
experience as well as patient and staff safety. The
focus is on quality issues that staff wish to raise and
directors receive a briefing before visiting each area
about recent incidents and quality-related issues.

Providing better care for patients
with diabetes
We have continued implementation of our diabetes
action plan this year, addressing issues raised in
national audits, internal peer review and a risk summit
held in 2014/15. The National Diabetes Inpatient Audit
took place on 29 September 2015. There was a 15%
prevalence of inpatients with diabetes (170 patients)
within the Trust which is in line with the national
average. There were consistent improvements in the
quality of diabetes care across nearly all metrics.
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Overall patient satisfaction with inpatient diabetes
care continued to rise from 85.7% to 86.2%,
remaining above the national average of 84.1%.
The significant improvement in the quality of care
for inpatients with diabetes has come about through
investment in workforce, re-writing and implementing
the diabetes statutory mandatory training, using
information technology to improve communication
between clinicians and visibility of diabetes data.
A diabetic foot audit identified 181 inpatients with
diabetes on the day of audit, of which 175 had
their feet assessed. 43 were found to have an active
diabetic foot problem. This gives a prevalence of
24%. All the metrics had improved substantially from
the audit of the previous year with some further work
to do. We believe that the improvements have been
achieved by the increased presence of the podiatry
team on the wards. The Tissue Viability Team has also
played a key part in highlighting issues of pressure
damage on the wards.

Learning from Serious Incidents
and Never Events
In June 2015 the Trust introduced a weekly Serious
Incident Forum, where all incidents graded as moderate
and above, or any no harm incidents of concern,
are taken for discussion. Divisions, frontline staff,
executives and leads for specialist areas such as tissue
viability, pharmacy, VTE and information governance
attend as required. The purpose of the Forum is to:
l 	provide

an open, honest and transparent process in
the decision making of identifying Serious Incidents
Requiring Investigation (SIRIs);
l provide assurance to the Trust Management
Executive (TME), and through the Quality
Committee to the Trust Board;
l 	disseminate Trust-wide learning from SIRIs through
this process.
During the first six months of 2015/16, 85 SIRIs have
been declared on the strategic executive information
system (STEIS). This follows a concerted effort to
improve timeliness and appropriate escalation of
incidents.
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Reporting has increased this year, compared to the full
financial year 2014/15 when 82 SIRIs were declared.
The three most common types of serious incident
reported in the Trust are as follows, in descending
order of frequency: hospital acquired pressure ulcers;
falls resulting in injury and delays in treatment.
Never Events are defined by the NHS as serious
incidents that are wholly preventable, as guidance or
safety recommendations that provide strong systemic
protective barriers are available at a national level,
and should have been implemented by all healthcare
providers. Following seven Never Events in 12 months
across 2014/15 and 2015/16 the Trust developed
a wide-ranging Never Event action plan which is
regularly monitored both within the Trust and with
commissioners. Other actions included the external
review described below which is available on the
Trust’s website.

Toft review into Oxford University
Hospitals Never Events (2014/15)
Professor Toft was commissioned in 2015/16 by the
Chief Executive to carry out an external review of
the investigation reports into seven Never Events
reported by Oxford University Hospitals in financial
year 2014/15 (one of which related to an error in the
previous financial year).
An overall set of conclusions and recommendations
was provided at the end of the review. The review
concluded that no evidence had been found to suggest
that a patient safety problem exists within the Trust
and the evidence strongly suggests that the Trust has
a proactive safety culture. Additionally, the review
found that the Trust’s commitment to openness with
respect to SIRIs and Never Events is exemplary.

SEND system for recording and
viewing patients’ vital signs
Paper-based early warning chart data are prone to
recording error, and can be difficult to share or use
for quality improvement. The electronic SEND system
is an ergonomic, intuitive, efficient early warning
scoring system where real-time data is shared in the
right way, with the right people, whilst minimising
recording errors.
Designed alongside patients and clinicians, the
SEND project aims to improve the recognition of
deteriorating patients within OUH and beyond.
The roll out of the SEND electronic 'Track and
Trigger' project is on time and on target. It is fully
implemented in all acute areas across the Trust and
in all areas at the NOC and Churchill.

Clinical effectiveness
and audit
We constantly monitor the quality of our services by
auditing our clinical practice. In 2015/16 the Trust
participated in 45 national clinical audits and four
national confidential enquiries covering relevant
services that the Trust provides, including on sepsis,
acute pancreatitis, gastrointestinal haemorrhage
and physical and mental healthcare of mental health
patients in acute hospitals. Also in 2015/16, the
Trust’s staff undertook over 287 registered local
clinical audits, carried out on a regular basis by staff.
For a complete list of clinical audits please see the
Quality Account on the Trust website at www.ouh.
nhs.uk/about/publications

Service improvement
and redesign
Oxfordshire’s vision for service improvement
Leaders from across health, social care, local
government and Oxford’s two universities are
collaborating closely on the development of a
strategic plan to co-ordinate commissioning and
delivery of services in Oxfordshire. Our joint challenge
is to continue to deliver high quality services within
the finite resources available.
Together we are looking at the way we provide all
of our services across the NHS, to see what changes
we need to make to provide the best possible
health service to patients near to home. The aim is
the closer integration of care and treatment across
organisational boundaries, which we believe is key to
being able to share resources to make the best use of
them and to design the best possible services to meet
local needs.
A Transformation Board has been set up to co-ordinate
the development of new models of care delivered by
multi-skilled, integrated teams.
A key focus of the Oxfordshire-wide transformation
programme is to create most value from within
the health and social care system through service
redesign. This includes:
l 	supporting

people to help themselves and prevent
ill-health and hospital admissions

l 	further

integration of health and social care teams
in the community to ensure patients can access the
right treatment when they need it

l 	reviewing

the delivery of inpatient care and
bringing care closer to home, when it is clinically
appropriate

l 	developing

GP and associated services in the
community.
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The Transformation Board will accelerate system
changes in Oxfordshire over the next four years to
2020 in response to changing demographics and
health needs, and to improve access to health and
social care services within limited resources. The aim is
to invest in more care and treatment outside hospital,
with GP federations providing a broader range of
services including those traditionally provided in
hospital. The vision is that a joint plan for Oxfordshire
will strengthen the range of services available in
community-based centres supported by specialist skills
from our hospital clinicians.
A Single Health and Social Care Plan for Oxfordshire
continues to be developed to integrate services and
make the most of limited resources in the face of
rising demand, particularly from the frail elderly and
those with long-term chronic conditions. The plan
is to prevent hospital admission as far as possible by
detecting problems early. This will be done through
investing in more care and treatment outside hospitals
– with GPs joining together to provide a broader
range of services including some of those traditionally
provided in hospital. The range of services available in
local community-based centres supported by specialist
skills from our hospital clinicians will increase.
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As part of this work, new ‘outcomes-based’ contracts
have been agreed for older people’s services and
mental health services with Oxford University
Hospitals and with Oxford Health NHS Foundation
Trust respectively. This is a new form of contract
between trusts and commissioners where funding
for services is linked to the achievement of outcomes
rather than the numbers of patients seen.
The Trust was awarded the contract as ‘most capable
provider’ for older people’s services in February 2015.
Under this single contract there will be more freedom
to design services to suit the needs of patients.
Previously, there have been more than 20 contracts
with commissioners to deliver services for people
aged over 65.
Specialised services strategy
The Trust is the second largest NHS centre in England
for the delivery of specialist services, drawing patients
from across the country. As well as delivering
services at its four hospital sites, the Trust’s strategy
for specialist services involves a portfolio of interconnected clinical networks to help partner trusts
deliver acute services locally, supported by our role
within the Academic Health Science Centre and the
Academic Health Science Network.

Meet

Chad

Chad has worked in Oxford since 2005 but before that was in California.
Since arriving in Oxford, he has worked at the Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre
and is now Deputy Operational Services Manager; helping
to ensure everything runs smoothly. He’s particularly proud of the
strong working relationships he has developed across the hospital
– working as a team and looking out for each other. Outside of
work, he has the greenest of fingers having been interested
in gardening for many years. When he’s not tending
to his garden (sunflowers are his favourite) he
likes to get a different view of life from
behind a camera lens.
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Improving our hospital environment
Revaluation of estate

Sustainability update

In line with HM Treasury guidance each year the Trust
commissions the District Valuer to provide valuations
of the Trust's land and buildings. The valuation is
based on modern equivalent assets (MEA) and, where
it would meet the location requirements of the service
being provided, an alternative site can be valued. The
Trust first used an MEA valuation in 2010. This was
also the year in which a full valuation was carried out.
In the subsequent four years the District Valuer carried
out a desktop exercise supported by limited site visits.

The Trust takes its responsibility as a major employer
and consumer of energy and resources seriously and
is committed to helping to reduce the adverse effects
of its operations on the wider environment.

In 2015/16 the Trust carried out a desktop exercise
as part of the valuation as the full valuation had
been done in 2014/15. For that, the District Valuer
and his staff visited all Trust properties. The District
Valuer indicated that it was appropriate for the MEA
valuation to be provided on the basis of an 'optimal
site'.
This meant that in assessing the value of the Trust’s
land it was assumed that, should the existing
buildings be replaced by a modern equivalent asset,
certain buildings would be rebuilt on a more intensive
basis, on an alternative 'optimal site'. Therefore a
smaller landholding and buildings footprint was
required while still maintaining the current level of
service provision. This recognises any efficiencies
that could be obtained if the sites were to be rebuilt,
whilst maintaining the current level of service
provision. For non-operational buildings, including
surplus land, the valuations were carried out at
open market value. The impact of this revaluation is
reflected in the full set of accounts included on pages
93-141.
Our new main entrance at the John Radcliffe Hospital opened
in September 2015 and provides a more attractive environment
for patients, visitors and staff arriving and leaving the hospital. It
includes a new main reception desk, a new seating area, and the
office of the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) as well as
two shops and a cafe.
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The Trust is taking advice and support from the
NHS Sustainable Development Unit along with a
number of other trusts and universities in Berkshire,
Buckinghamshire, Milton Keynes and Bedfordshire,
as part of the Oxford Academic Health Science
Network in developing its first ever draft sustainability
development plan. This is work that we hope to
finalise in 2016/17.
The Trust also intends to sign up to the Good
Corporate Citizenship Assessment Model in
2016/17 to analyse and measure our progress on
sustainable development. This will show how the
Trust is performing across a range of criteria covering
environmental, social and financial sustainability and
it will support the subsequent development of a
Sustainable Development Management Plan. It will
help benchmark against our peers and over time will
provide valuable information on how sustainable
development has been embedded in organisational
performance.

Energy
The Trust spent just under £12 million on energy in 2015/16, which is about 2.7% below the energy spend from
the previous year. Our electricity use in 2015/16 came from 100% renewable sources which has meant that the
Trust is exempt from Climate Change Levy (CCL) and has been cost neutral.
The Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRCEES) will be abolished (Budget 2016) after
the current Phase 2 is completed in 2018/19. This means no purchase of carbon allowances will be required to
cover emissions for energy supplied from April 2019. The Trust spend on CRCEES for 2014/15 was £425,000 and
we bought sufficient allowances for 2015/16 saving £26,000 on our carbon tax payments. The Trust is following
any changes in this legislation carefully. On 7 April 2016, HMRC published new climate change levy (CCL) rates
with a massive rise in April 2019 to account for the revenue lost to the Treasury through closure of the CRCEES as
shown in the table below.
CLIMATE CHANGE LEVY (CCL)

Taxable commodity

Rate from
1 April 2016

Rate from
1 April 2017

Rate from
1 April 2018

Rate from
1 April 2019

Electricity (£ per kWh)

0.00559

0.00568

0.00583

0.00847

Natural gas (£ per kWh)

0.00195

0.00198

0.00203

0.00339

LPG (£ per kilogram (kg))

0.01251

0.01272

0.01304

0.02175

Any other taxable commodity (£ per kg)

0.01526

0.01551

0.01591

0.02653

Climate Change Levy (CCL)
The table below shows the breakdown of the cost elements for Trust utilities for 2014/15 and 2015/16.
UTILITIES COST ELEMENTS

Area
Cost 2014/15
Cost 2015/16
Consumption
			 2014/15

Consumption
2015/16

Utilities:
Water (m3)

£1,119,341

£959,103

522,090

456,480

Electricity (kWh)

£7,911,277

£8,428,700

68,439,043

73,347,765

Gas (kWh)

£2,603,268

£2,166,333

94,707,636

88,603,700

£656,932

£407,499

21,775,736

13,507,608

£12,290,817

£11,961,634

184,922,415

175,459,073

Oil (kWh)
Energy totals

Utilities cost elements
Except for electricity, all other costs have come down with a net effect of about £330,000 savings. The
electricity element savings will take effect once the Carbon Energy Fund (CEF) projects are completed. On energy
efficiency, the Trust has made huge progress on a key strategic project in collaboration with Carbon and Energy
Fund (CEF), a £300 million plus fund to support projects in the NHS.
Leveraging CEF’s expertise based on their work with 50 hospitals, the Trust is currently upgrading its energy
infrastructure at the John Radcliffe and Churchill Hospital sites. The benefits of this approach have resulted in
the Trust entering into a 25 year partnership agreement with Vital Energi, with the capital investment provided
by Aviva. Works started at the John Radcliffe Hospital site in September 2015 and will also take place at the
Churchill Hospital, with benefits of the full project being realised by April 2017.
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The benefits

Sustainable transport

l 	A

The Trust is committed to improving access to its sites
by public transport and reducing car journeys for
those patients and visitors who are able to use public
transport or other methods of travel and to reduce
staff reliance on cars and parking.

4.5 MWe natural gas-fired Combined Heating
and Power boiler, providing heat and electricity to
the John Radcliffe and Churchill hospitals
l 	An energy link connecting both sites
l Energy efficient lighting upgrade
l 	Building Management System (BMS) controls and
infrastructure upgrade
These initiatives will not only help the Trust become
a more efficient user of energy, and thereby lower its
associated carbon emissions, but also go a long way
in improving operational resilience. In addition, the
Trust will benefit from a reduction in direct energy,
maintenance and service costs and non-energy
charges in the form of lower carbon levies.

Sustainable waste disposal
Waste Breakdown

6000

Weight (tonnes)

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

0

2012/13

2013/14
Recycling
Re-use
Compost
WEEE

2014/15

2015/16

High temp recovery
High temp disposal
Non-burn disposal
Landfill

The Trust focuses on sustainable waste disposal
practice such as reusing, recycling and recovering
value such as 'energy from waste' rather than sending
waste to landfill.

Waste segregation trends within
the Trust
Due to the complexity of quantifying the waste
breakdown, in 2015/16 a simplified conversion of
volume to weight was used to evaluate the best
segregation estimate. It was found that the Trust
currently recycles more than 40% of the waste
produced. Waste quantifying and evaluation
methodology will continue to improve in line with
legislation and best practice to yield best value for
money to the Trust.
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The Trust is a member of the green travel network,
Easit, and staff can use this to get information,
subsidies and offers on:
trains
bikes
l 	local and national bike shop repairs, parts and hire
l electric cars and charging points
l electric bikes
l folding bikes
l bus discounts and free bus taster tickets.
l
l

We work closely with all the bus companies in
Oxfordshire on new routes, offers for staff and
bike-friendly buses. We are also part of the Oxon
Bikes scheme, which offers staff and visitors the
opportunity to hire bikes on our sites and from
elsewhere in Oxford. We further support cyclists to
our sites by supporting a maintenance service (Dr
Bike), dealing with abandoned bicycles and improving
our facilities for cyclists including showers, shelters,
parking and cycle ways. Although we already provide
a number of these we would like to do more. With
that in mind, we have applied for Department for
Transport funding as part of an initiative with the
University of Oxford to request support for more hire
bikes through Oxon Bikes, more bike shelters and
better cycle ways.
We have done a Trust-wide travel survey with
our staff this year which just under half of staff
completed. The results are being analysed and will
lead to recommendations for improving transport
support to staff for the year 2016/17.

OUR OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Our clinical services are assessed against a wide range of targets and other
performance measures. All our staff work hard to ensure we diagnose and
treat all patients without delay. We have achieved waiting times targets in
most areas.
Meeting our access targets

18 week waiting time standard

We continue to experience very high demand for
our emergency services, and in particular patients
requiring emergency admission. There have been
challenges around being able to move those patients
into a bed on a ward within the national four hour
standard. Delays in transferring patients ready to
leave our wards on to the next stage of their care
in the community has also made it more difficult
for the Trust to admit patients as quickly as it would
like. Addressing these delays is a major focus of our
work with our health and social care partners. As a
Trust, we have improved and expanded the facilities
in our Emergency Assessment Unit (EAU) at the John
Radcliffe Hospital to support more people going
home on the same day, and improved the speed of
diagnostic support available in the EAU and in our
Surgical Emergency Unit.

During the first half of 2015/16 we had agreed
an action plan with our commissioners and the
Trust Development Authority (TDA) to improve our
performance in treating patients within the 18 week
waiting time standard. The plan included operating
additional theatre lists over six days a week. All
emergency, urgent and cancer patients are treated as
a matter of clinical priority. The plan meant that we
were able to meet the standards in two out of the
three categories of patients, and to nearly meet it in
the third (see table). This was in the context of a time
when many other trusts’ performance was going in
the opposite direction because of the pressure of the
number of acute admissions and the problems with
delayed transfers of care.

The table on the following page presents the Trust’s
performance against national standards as an
average for the six months from 1 April to the end of
September. In common with many other acute trusts
across the country, we did not achieve the standard
of over 95% of patients seen, treated, admitted
or discharged within four hours of attending our
emergency departments, although we were very close
to doing so. We met two out of the three standards
on treatment from referral by a GP within 18 weeks
and have met all but one of our eight cancer waiting
time standards.

The 62-day standard refers to the time from the
first urgent (suspected cancer) GP referral to the
first definitive treatment for cancer. Performance in
meeting this standard declined in 2014/15 and an
action plan was put in place to improve waiting times.
This enabled us by September 2015 to be meeting
the target from screening to treatment and to nearly
meet it for referral from GP to treatment.

The Trust continues to do well with waiting times for
diagnostic tests. The number of people waiting for
diagnostic tests remains low with 99.82% of patients
having their tests within six weeks as required by
the standard. Of these, the majority have their tests
within four weeks.

62-day cancer waits

The Trust does not want any patient to be waiting
longer than necessary and is committed to achieving
all local and national performance standards. The
action plan focused on quicker diagnosis to offer
earlier treatment; the timeliness of referrals from
other hospitals where patients have had an initial
appointment; and better communication to ensure
patients are aware of the reason for an urgent referral
and the requirement to take up the appointments
offered.
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PERFORMANCE AS AN AVERAGE FOR MONTHS 1-6 (APRIL - SEPTEMBER) 2015

COMMITMENT
Standard
		
		

Trust
achievement
April to
September 2015

Referral to treatment waiting times for non-urgent
consultant-led treatment
Admitted patients to start treatment within a maximum of 18 weeks
from referral

90%

87.23%

Non-admitted patients (outpatients) to start treatment within a
maximum of 18 weeks from referral

95%

95.07%

Patients on incomplete non-emergency pathways (yet to start treatment)
should have been waiting no more than 18 weeks from referral

92%

92.70%

99%

99.82%

95%

94.01%

Maximum two week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with suspected cancer by a GP

93%

94.75%

Maximum two week wait for first outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with breast symptoms (where cancer was not initially
suspected)

93%

95.65%

Maximum one month (31-day) wait from diagnosis to first definitive
treatment for all cancers

96%

97.61%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment
is surgery

94%

96.01%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where that treatment is
an anti-cancer drug regimen

98%

99.73%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent treatment where the treatment is
a course of radiotherapy

94%

98.32%

Maximum two month (62-day) wait from urgent GP referral to first
definitive treatment for cancer

85%

83.26%

Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an NHS screening service to
first definitive treatment for all cancers

90%

94.17%

Diagnostic test waiting times
Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should have been waiting no
more than six weeks from referral

Emergency Department waits
Patients should be admitted, transferred or discharged within four hours
of their arrival at an accident and emergency department

Cancer waits – two week waits

Cancer waits – 31 days

Cancer waits – 62 days
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Emergency Department performance
The Trust has put in place improvements to its
internal processes and systems to help address
Emergency Department waiting times, including an
‘emergency navigator’ senior nurse role to help direct
emergency GP referrals to the most appropriate unit
on admission. It is also collaborating closely with
other Oxfordshire NHS and social care services to
shape and improve a whole-system approach to
managing patients requiring urgent and emergency
care, ensuring that patients are guided to the right
service and don’t unnecessarily attend the emergency
departments at either the John Radcliffe or Horton
General hospitals.

By September 2015 the Trust had not quite delivered
the average standard required that 95% of patients
should be admitted, transferred or discharged with
four hours of their arrival at one of our emergency
departments. The demand on our health services has
been higher than ever, and where once this demand
seemed specific to the winter months, now demand
remains high year-round.
Every week we see more than 2,400 people in our
emergency departments and the vast majority of
patients are assessed, treated, discharged or admitted
to a ward within four hours. We are sorry when
patients wait a bit longer than the target time but
it is important to understand that they will have
been seen and may undergo further assessment and
diagnosis before moving on to the next stage of
their care. Patients will always be seen based on their
clinical priority and need. The majority of patients
who fall into the category of waiting longer than four
hours are waiting for admittance to our hospitals and
the difficulty in speeding this up is in having sufficient
beds available. This in turn is related to the problems
that the health system faces with delayed transfers
of care.

Oxford University Hospitals
Annual allowed
(cases across all four
limit for 2014/15
hospital sites)		
		

Infection prevention and control
Throughout 2015/16 the Trust's Infection Prevention
and Control Team in partnership with staff has
driven forward safer practices in order to minimise
‘preventable infections’. Teamwork and a constant
focus by staff on cleaning, disinfection of surfaces and
equipment and hand hygiene audits and training have
all contributed to minimising infection rates.

Number of cases
Annual allowed
apportioned
limit for 2015/16
to the Trust in 		
2014/15		

Number of cases
apportioned to the
Trust in the first six
months of 2015/16

Avoidable MRSA
Bacteraemia (Bacteria in
the Blood Stream)

0

3

0

1

Clostridium difficile

67

61

69

30
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Preparing for an emergency
The Trust has a Major Incident Plan that details how
the Trust will respond to an emergency or internal
incident. The plan aims to bring co-ordination
and professionalism to the often unpredictable
and complicated events of a major incident, such
as an event involving multiple casualties requiring
extraordinary mobilisation of the emergency services.
The purpose of planning for emergencies is to ensure
that we can provide an effective response to any
major incident or emergency and to ensure the Trust
returns to its normal services as quickly as possible.
The plan has been put together in collaboration with
partner organisations across Oxfordshire including
other NHS trusts, the emergency services, local
councils and emergency planning experts.

Financial review
At the start of the year the Trust planned to break
even in 2015/16 after removing technical adjustments.
This plan envisaged that after six months, the Trust
would have a deficit of £4,997,000 against the
breakeven duty. The accounts indicate that the Trust
had a deficit of £5,614,000 against the so-called
breakeven duty at the end of September 2015. The
Trust also had a target to achieve savings
of £51.8 million in the financial year. As at 30
September the Trust had achieved savings of
£19.7 million which was 84% of the target for the
year to date.
The performance for the second six months is recorded
within the Annual Report of Oxford University
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (1 October 2015 to
31 March 2016).
The continuing need for significant savings reflects the
financial constraints that are facing the whole public
sector.
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Within the Oxfordshire Health economy, the Trust
is working with Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning
Group (OCCG), NHS England and our partners in
Oxfordshire County Council’s social services to deliver
a plan for Oxfordshire which seeks to find the best
solution for the whole health economy. The Trust
needs to continue to reduce its costs if it is to remain
in financial good health.
Vital to the continued success of the Trust is the
management of risks which could affect service
delivery. The Trust's Quality Committee is key to
the timely and robust identification of risks, the
formulation of mitigation and action plans and the
monitoring of risks. The principal risks to the Trust
are managed through two key mechanisms – the
Corporate Risk Register and the Trust Assurance
Framework. The Corporate Risk Register is used to
identify risks relating to Trust-wide priorities and
corporate issues. For example, it identifies risks
relating to delivery of Trust objectives such as access
targets and how these will be managed.
The Trust Assurance Framework builds on the Risk
Register in that it assesses the effectiveness of the
controls in place to ensure delivery against each of
the Trust’s objectives. Gaps in controls and assurance
are identified in the document and, where required,
action plans are put in place to address identified
weaknesses.
The highest organisational risks, as identified within
the Assurance Framework and which may impact on
the Trust’s strategies and development, were reported
to the Trust Board and are recorded in the Annual
Governance Statement.

Income
Responsibility for commissioning services resides with clinical commissioning groups, NHS England, (which has
responsibility for commissioning a range of specialist services) and local authorities. The main components of the
Trust’s income for the six months to 30 September of £469.229 million are shown in the table below.
As can be seen from this table, over 80% of the Trust’s resources came from clinical commissioning groups and
NHS England.

OUR INCOME SOURCES

Six months to
30 Sept 2015 (£000)

2014-15
(£000)

Clinical commissioning groups

190,011

370,263

NHS England

194,364

373,371

NHS trusts and foundation trusts

0

0

Department of Health

0

7.500

NHS other (inc Public Health England and Prop Co)
Non NHS – local authorities
Other non NHS including RTA

0

185

3,439

8,058

5,928

11,687

Education, training and research

50,998

97,914

Other non-patient services

18,504

33967

5,985

13,310

469,229

916,255

Other
Total income

(Source notes 4 to 7 of Annual Accounts six months to 30 September 2015 )

SOURCES OF INCOME FOR THE SIX MONTHS
TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

5%
1%
1%

11%
NHS patient activity – CCGs
NHS patient activity – NHS England / DH
Education, training and research

41%

Non-NHS – local authorities
Private patients and non-NHS patient care
Other

41%
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Operating expenses

Capital spend

The Trust spends on average just under £2.5 million each
and every day. The largest item of expenditure is staff
costs and the next most significant is clinical supplies
and services. The graph below shows an analysis of
how much of each pound spent is attributable to staff
costs and the other main expenditure headings.

The capital expenditure for the six months to 30
September 2015 totalled £9.1 million, and the
distribution of this expenditure over the various types
of projects is shown below.

Looking ahead, the cost base of the Trust will alter as
the Trust continues to introduce further efficiencies.
We are doing everything we can to be more efficient.
Over the next five years we plan to make savings
averaging £46.8 million per annum (in nominal terms).
This represents an average annual saving over these
five years (2015/16 to 2019/20) of 5.2% each year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE IN THE SIX MONTHS
TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

15%

0%

16%

69%

OPERATING EXPENDITURE FOR THE SIX MONTHS
TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
Infrastructure and buildings
Clinical equipment

4% 4%
1%

IT / EPR
Other

7%

The key development was the new main entrance at
the John Radcliffe Hospital which opened ahead of
schedule.

25%

59%

Staff costs
Supplies and services
Services from other bodies

Better payment practice code
Establishment, transport and premises
Depreciation and amortisation
Other

(Source Note 8 of Annual Accounts for six months to 30 September 2015)

The Trust has responsibility to pay its suppliers in line
with the payment terms agreed at the time of purchase.
Failure to do this harms the reputation of the Trust and
the wider NHS, as well as damaging supply sources
and straining relationships with suppliers.
The Trust has adopted the national NHS better
payment practice code. The target set is that at least
95% of all trade creditors should be paid within 30
days of a valid invoice being received or the goods
being delivered, whichever is the later – unless other
terms have been agreed previously. The Trust’s
detailed performance against this target is set out
in note 11 of the Accounts for the six months to
30 September 2015 and includes the disclosure of
interest paid under the Late Payment of Commercial
Debts (Interest) Act 1998.
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CQC ratings
The Trust is governed by a regulatory framework
set by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) which
has a statutory duty to assess the performance of
healthcare organisations. The CQC requires that
hospital trusts are registered with the CQC and
therefore licensed to provide health services.

They also highlighted the Trust’s failure to meet the
national emergency department target to treat, admit,
transfer or discharge patients within four hours. You
can read about our efforts to address this issue in the
section on operational performance in this report.
The individual hospitals were rated as follows.

The CQC provides assurance to the public and
commissioners about the quality of care through
a system of monitoring a trust’s performance
across a broad range of areas to ensure it meets
essential standards. The CQC assessors and
inspectors frequently review all available information
and intelligence they hold about a hospital, and
depending on what this tells them, they may choose
to inspect a hospital to ensure standards are being
maintained.
The CQC’s Chief Inspector of Hospitals inspected all
four of our hospital sites in Oxford and Banbury as part
of the CQC’s new inspection regime in February 2014.
In May 2014, the CQC published its report and gave
the Trust an overall rating of ‘Good’ across all five
of the standards upon which the CQC judges the
services and care we provide for patients.

HOSPITAL SITE

RATING

Trust overall

Good

John Radcliffe Hospital

Requires 		
improvement

Horton General Hospital

Good

Churchill Hospital

Good

Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre

Good

In respect of the John Radcliffe Hospital, the Trust
undertook a number of actions following the CQC
inspection, including the following.
l 	Ensuring

sufficient qualified, skilled and
experienced staff are on duty at all times to safely
meet people’s needs.

l 	The

Trust delivers emergency care to people in a
way that safeguards people’s privacy and dignity.

CQC INSPECTION RATINGS FOR OXFORD
UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST

l 	Suitable

Safe

Good

l 	Newly

Effective

Good

Caring

Good

Responsive

Good

Well-led

Good

We were particularly pleased that the inspectors
observed caring and compassionate staff throughout
the four hospitals and noted they worked well between
teams and to provide excellent care for our patients.
Out of 115 areas inspected across the Trust, 11 were
identified as requiring improvement. At the John
Radcliffe Hospital, the inspectors highlighted problems
with staff shortages within the maternity department
and on surgical wards and in theatres.

inductions are delivered to staff in each
area that they work.
qualified midwives are appropriately
supported.

l 	Patient

records accurately reflect the care and
treatment for each patient in line with good
practice.

The Trust Board continues to monitor compliance
against all of the CQC fundamental standards of
quality and safety on an ongoing basis. The Board
and the Quality Committee are updated regularly via
reports from the Director of Assurance.
You can find out more about the CQC assessment
and ratings for the Trust here: www.cqc.org.uk
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Health and safety
Datix reported incident statistics
The number of non-clinical incidents reported during the period 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 are as
follows. All incidents have been categorised by actual impact (no harm, minor, moderate, major, severe).
There were 3,579 non-clinical incidents reported for 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 including near miss
incidents. Slips, trip and falls made up 37% of all the incidents. There were 17 'major' and 1 'severe' within the
highest category.
'No harm' incidents equated to 74% of all incidents within the Trust.
Reported Incidents (non-clinical)
REPORTED INCIDENTS 2015 /16 (NON-CLINICAL)
17

39

1

859

No harm
Minor injury / illness
Moderate effect or serious injury (but not long-term)
Major injury leading to long-term disability / incapacity
Severe

2663

RIDDOR* reported incidents
Overall the number of RIDDOR reportable incidents for the period 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 was 16.
Of the incidents reported, below is a breakdown into accident type and RIDDOR category. Fifteen were related
to staff and one was a patient incident.
* The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR) is a 2013 Statutory Instrument of the
Parliament of the United Kingdom that regulates the statutory obligation to report deaths, injuries, diseases and 'dangerous
occurrences'.
RIDDOR
reportedINCIDENTS
incidents BY ACCIDENT TYPE 2015 /16
RIDDOR
REPORTED
1
1

Exposure to harmful substances

4

Lifting and handling injuries
Slip, trip, fall same level

5
Fall from height

5

Struck by moving object
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THE PATIENT’S EXPERIENCE
Your thoughts, opinions and observations about all aspects of our hospitals
are very important to us. Our aim is that every patient’s experience is an
excellent one and understanding what matters most for our patients and their
families is a key factor in achieving this.
Learning from you
OUH actively asks for feedback from patients and
their friends and families and acts on it. This is
because we want every patient to have the best
experience possible. Feedback helps our staff to know
what we are doing well (and the things we should
keep on doing) as well as what we need to change.
We do this by:
l 	using

questionnaires, text messaging and
comment cards
l listening to what you tell us in person
l 	responding to letters and emails you send us, and
feedback posted on NHS Choices
l 	listening to what you tell the Patient Advice and
Liaison Service (PALS)
l holding meetings with community groups
l hearing from the Trust’s Public Partnership Groups
l 	seeking ‘patient stories’ (asking patients to give us
an in-depth account of their experience, to help us
to understand the issues better).

Building a culture of compassionate care
– the Friends and Family Test
Seeking and acting on patient feedback is key to
improving the quality of healthcare services. After
receiving care as an outpatient, daycase, inpatient,
or giving birth, patients are asked for their feedback
via the Friends and Family Test, which asks whether
they would recommend the department to friends
and family (if they needed similar care or treatment).
This was introduced in inpatient wards, the Trust’s
two emergency departments at the John Radcliffe
and Horton General hospitals, and into the Trust’s
maternity services in 2013. It was extended to
outpatient and daycase units in October 2014 and to
children’s services in February 2015.

If you have been an inpatient, have used maternity
services, or you are under 16 or have a child under 16,
we will ask you to complete a paper questionnaire.
Over the past year the Trust has introduced text
messaging or phone calls to patients who have
attended the Emergency Department, an outpatient
appointment or been to a daycase unit, to ask for
feedback. Responses are free and anonymous. We
have used this method since August 2015, and it has
been very successful; for example, response rates in the
emergency departments increased from 2% to 28%.
High response rates are important because it
means that feedback is more meaningful, and more
representative of the views of patients. Patients can
provide feedback via multiple channels; text, agent
call, paper and online. As well as increasing the
number of responses, the use of phone and texts
mean that staff in the departments do not need to
hand out questionnaires, allowing them to focus on
caring and clinical duties.

Friends and Family Test – how did we do?
The following results are for the period covered by
this report, 1 April to 30 September 2015.
Inpatients and day cases
	97% of patients are extremely likely or likely to
recommend the ward they stayed on (based on
7,709 responses).
l

Emergency departments
	85% of patients are extremely likely or likely to
	recommend the care they received in the emergency
departments (based on 5,596 responses).
l
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Maternity services
	Women using maternity services are asked about their antenatal care, experiences at birth, care on the
postnatal ward, and the postnatal community service. 95% of women are extremely likely or likely to
recommend the Trust’s maternity services (based on 1,685 responses).
l

Outpatients
	93% of outpatients are extremely likely or likely to recommend the Trust’s outpatient services (based on
16,254 responses).
l

Overall Trust scores: the following results are for the period covered by this report, 1 April to 30 September 2015.
Extremely
Likely
Neither
Unlikely
Extremely
likely		likely nor		unlikely
			unlikely
Number of responses

Don’t know

23,410

5,486

1,027

502

465

354

75%

18%

3%

2%

1%

1%

overall
Percentage

National inpatient survey

Engaging with patients and public

In 2015 the Trust took part in the national inpatient
survey. Surveys are part of the important work the
Trust is doing to identify areas where patients feel
that we can improve. Together with many other
methods we have of gaining patient feedback, these
results help the Trust focus on improving the overall
experience of patients in hospital. National surveys
also allow us to compare how we are doing against
other trusts up and down the country and see where
we could and should be doing better.

In order to make the right improvements to
our organisation and services, we need to have
the views of people who use them. We have
therefore continued to engage patients and the
public in a number of ways to help the Trust make
improvements.

For the national Inpatient Survey 2015, the number of
patients the Trust was required to survey was increased
from 850 to 1,250. We chose to survey an additional
sample of 3,492, meaning that 4,742 surveys were
sent out in total to a sample of patients who were
discharged from the Trust’s hospital wards in July 2015.
We hope that this will give a broader picture of our
services. The Care Quality Commission (CQC) collates
and compares the results across trusts. Results will be
available later in the year and results will be passed on
to services for any learning and improvement.
In 2015 the Trust set itself a Trust-wide priority for
improvement as a result of comments from the 2014
survey to increase response times to call bells.
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l

 articipation in the setting of the Trust’s
P
quality priorities – Foundation Trust members
and members of patient groups were invited to
a meeting held in June 2015 where the Trust’s
priorities were outlined and people gave feedback.

l

 atient and public involvement in service
P
developments through attending Patient and
Public Partnership Groups (PPPGs) relating to the
service they are interested in, or providing feedback
to the service.

l

I nforming patients, families and carers
– patient feedback is displayed in ward areas
including Friends and Family Test results and
comments, and what is being done in response to
the feedback.

l

 atient stories – the Chief Nurse presents,
P
with the patient’s permission, a case study and
associated learning action plan to the Trust’s
bi-monthly public Board and Quality Committee
meetings. These stories are also shared with our
clinical teams to help them better understand what
they do well and what needs to improve.

l 	Children’s

patient experience – YiPpEe (the
Young Persons’ Executive – Public Partnership
group) was successfully relaunched as part of
OUH participating in National Takeover Day when
children go into different organisations and work
with people there to see how things are done and
give their perspective. There are currently 30 official
members. Boys and girls are represented aged from
11-17, including children with medical needs. They
have already given useful feedback and changes
have been made in the following areas.
–	Improved general appearance of Children’s
Hospital and waiting areas.
–	Improved signs, particularly in the lifts.

	The amount of feedback from children and young
people is increasing and it has been passed directly
to ward sisters.
l 	Carers

strategy – in 2015 we worked with
carers’ groups including Carers Oxfordshire to
produce a survey that would help us improve
how we hear and act upon the views of patients
and carers. We then had further feedback that
carers preferred conversations about support
rather than a questionnaire, and a new approach
was developed. Carers Oxfordshire will set up an
outreach worker, dedicating 21 hours per week
to the Trust and operate ‘carers' surgeries’ on two
wards within the John Radcliffe Hospital from
November 2015. A referral process has been put in
place to refer carers to the outreach service within
the Trust. The outreach worker will work closely
with the Trust’s health and wellbeing service, Here
for Health.

l 	The

Patient Leaders Programme funded by
Health Education Thames Valley (HETV) continues
to support patients and staff to work together to
develop ways of improving patient involvement in
service improvement. This year this has included:
–	a toolkit to provide resources and support for
patient groups and members; this will involve
advice about recruitment, terms of reference,
confidentiality and provide an opportunity for
groups to share learning and activities
–	a Patient and Public Involvement Strategy
(2016-19)

–	the seldom heard communities project; this
		project undertook research and engagement
		 with over 50 seldom heard groups in Oxfordshire
		 and held a meeting with 20 participants in 2015.
		Groups and individuals discussed issues to do with
access and communication, and other barriers for
		seldom heard groups. The findings have been
imbedded in the action plan of the Patient and
Public Involvement Strategy (2016-19).

Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
PALS is a first-stop service for patients, their families
and carers who have a query or concern about our
hospitals or services. The team provides an impartial
and confidential service and aims to help resolve
issues by addressing them as quickly as possible.
Where PALS is unable to help, the enquirer is directed
to a more appropriate person or organisation.
The majority of PALS contacts relate to requests
for information about hospital processes or putting
people in touch with the correct department or
individual who can help them. The service also
collates comments, suggestions and concerns
made either directly to the service or through the
patient experience feedback mechanisms available
throughout the hospitals.
PALS is an integral part of the Patient Experience
Team and works closely with the Complaints Team to
provide a comprehensive service to patients and their
families.
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PALS can be contacted by telephone, email, letter
to the hospital or via the leaflet We're here to help'
which is available in public areas on all hospital sites.
PALS is also very happy to meet with patients on the
wards or in departments should this be required. The
team works Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm.
During the first six months of 2015/16 PALS dealt with
2,477 requests, compliments and concerns. The main
categories related to patient care, communication and
cancellations or delays in appointments. There were
also compliments to various staff and departments.

How we handle your complaints
The Trust aims to adhere to the Principles of Remedy
produced by the Parliamentary and Health Service
Ombudsman in 2007 and the Local Authority Social
Services and National Health Service Complaints
(England) Regulations 2009, in order to produce
reasonable, fair and proportionate resolutions as part
of our complaints handling procedures. These include:
l
l
l
l
l
l

getting it right
being customer focused
being open and accountable
acting fairly and proportionately
putting things right
seeking continuous improvement.

In the first six months of 2015/16 the Trust received
615 formal complaints. The main areas for concern
were clinical treatment, communication, admissions
and discharge, Trust values and behaviours and
patient care.
In the financial year 2015/16 the Trust received 1,223
formal complaints. The main theme of the complaints
related to clinical treatment, appointments,
communications, admissions and discharge, and
access to treatment.
All complaints are handled individually with the
complainant and in a manner best suited to resolve
the particular concern raised. Each complaint is
assigned a named Complaints Co-ordinator, who
will, where possible, discuss with the complainant
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how they wish their complaint to be responded to.
Methods of response can include a written response
from the Chief Executive, a face to face resolution
meeting with relevant staff or an independent review
of the care provided.
The Trust has undertaken a review of complaints
to learn from the Francis Enquiry (into care at MidStaffordshire NHS Foundation Trust), and reports
from Oxfordshire Healthwatch, the Parliamentary and
Health Service Ombudsman and the Care Quality
Commission. Changes include:
l 	simplifying

the language used in response letters
to include less jargon and better explain complex
clinical information

l 	assessment

of serious complaints to establish if
they should be investigated as a clinical incident –
an important recommendation from the Francis
Enquiry.

In 2015/16, we introduced more detailed complaints
monitoring at a divisional level through patient
experience dashboards to enable the divisions to
analyse their local patient experience metrics and
complaints, and present the learning to the relevant
services and departments. This was supported by
action logs presented at divisional clinical governance
meetings to ensure actions are implemented and their
effectiveness monitored.

Your privacy and dignity
The Trust is committed to delivering patientcentred care via our clinical teams who understand
the principles of privacy, dignity and respect for
everybody. Problems concerning privacy and dignity
are taken very seriously and the Trust wants to
ensure that patients feel confident, comfortable and
supported when in hospital.

Supporting patients with dementia
A big area of focus for the Trust which has continued
throughout 2015/16 has been our work to improve
the experience (and identification and diagnosis) of
patients with dementia. Led by Dr Sarah Pendlebury,
the Trust’s Clinical Lead for dementia, a thorough
programme of screening (Abbreviated Mental Test
Score – AMTS) has been introduced, to help identify
those patients who are confused and need additional
support. This test is mandatory for patients over the
age of 75 who have an unplanned admission which
results in them staying for 72 hours or more.
We work with colleagues in social services, primary
care, community hospitals and mental health services
across Oxfordshire, to provide seamless and patientcentred care for people with dementia. We also work
closely with charitable organisations such as Age UK,
Dementia Action Alliance, Alzheimer’s Society and
others, to maximise expertise and resources.
Five consultant psychiatrists work across the Trust, to
provide support to our patients, and senior nurses
have been designated as dementia champions to
spread learning on how to assess and treat patients
with dementia. Over 20 nurses have been funded to
attend an external Dementia Leaders Programme,
at Worcester University. There are also in-house
training sessions led by another clinical lead, Dr
Sanja Thompson, where staff members undertake
simulation training with professional actors to learn
about potential situations that can arise when caring
for patients with dementia.

We are also continuing to look at ways we can
improve the physical environment for patients with
dementia – keeping ward areas as quiet as possible
and providing patients with memory triggers, such as
signs depicting the date and weather for the day.
In May 2015, seven Dementia Reminiscence Therapy
machines were brought into the Trust, funded by
Health Education Thames Valley (HETV). These
have been placed on appropriate wards and staff
members have been provided with training on how
to use the machines. They can provide stimulation
and reminiscence therapy to patients with dementia.
Games, photos, speeches, audio books and music
are some of the many options available on these
machines. Staff members have also been encouraged
to get family members and friends to use them to
interact with those they are visiting. Two further
machines, along with portable tablets, are currently
being procured, with remaining HETV funds and
Voluntary Services Charitable Funds.
The Trauma Ward has improved its environment
to make it more dementia-friendly, including
reminiscence music through iPods and quiet rooms
with décor designed to stimulate long-term memory.

Advocacy services
Advocacy support is available to patients. The Trust
will undertake a review of advocacy services in 2016
in order to ensure that staff and patients are aware of
it and it is accessed when needed.

A Quality Improvement Nurse Educator for Dementia
and End of Life Care came into post in February 2016
and will support co-ordination and development
of education and training for staff across the Trust.
The Trust Dementia Strategy is currently being
reviewed by the post holder. A focus for this post
will be increasing awareness and training relating
to dementia across all levels of staff, with a view to
making the Trust, as a whole, dementia-friendly.
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Equality and diversity
The Trust works hard to ensure that its activities are as
inclusive as possible for all patients, their families and
carers. All employees undertake mandatory equality
and diversity training, and all Trust policies and
procedures are assessed prior to implementation to
ensure equality issues have been considered.
In 2015 an Equality and Diversity Steering Group was
set up which is chaired by the Director of Workforce
and Organisational Development. This group reports
into the Trust's Quality Committee and oversees the
patient and staff equality and diversity programme of
work.
The Trust has been collecting evidence in 2015
on how it is supporting patients from the nine
characteristics protected under the Equality Act 2010.
The evidence was presented to a public panel in
February 2016 as part of the Equality Delivery System
(EDS2). The results will be published with the Equality
and Diversity Annual Report in July 2016.
Equality and diversity also applies to the way in which
our staff are treated, both by their colleagues and
patients.

Supporting transgender and
transsexual patients
The Trust has provided guidance to staff on how best
to support transgender and transsexual patients when
they stay in hospital.

Supporting people with a
learning disability
We employ a Lead Nurse for Learnng Disability, who
oversees the care of patients with a learning disability.
The nurse is a point of contact for people with
learning disabilities, families, carers and healthcare
professionals and is available to support both children
and adults. Work has continued to ensure that staff
are aware of a patient’s learning disability when
they use our hospital services. We have developed a
number of Easy Read leaflets and videos for patients.
We also make use of the Hospital Passport scheme
which gives useful information about a patient’s
needs and wishes to those caring for them whilst they
are in our hospitals.

Advancing multi-faith support
This year the Trust has worked hard to expand its
Chaplaincy service to offer better support to Muslim
patients. This has included appointing a part-time
Muslim chaplain to join the service. The facilities for
Muslim prayers at the John Radcliffe Hospital have
been extensively upgraded.
As part of a review of the suitability of our facilities,
the chapel and washrooms at the Churchill Hospital
have been adapted to help with the requirements
of Muslim prayer. A multi-faith quiet space has also
been developed at the Churchill Hospital. This was
created by a specialist designer, working with patient
representatives of different faiths.
The Trust’s Bereavement Service continues to be
regarded as providing an outstanding service, by the
four regional Islamic funeral directors. We have been
asked to describe our services to other trusts, to share
good practice.
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Clinical patient information leaflets

Interpreting services

The Trust library of clinical patient information leaflets
continues to grow, year on year, with many new titles
added during 2015. This helps the Trust to provide
our patients with informative, well written and clear
information to help improve their hospital experience.
It also helps patients to make a choice about their
treatment and includes information to ensure their
safety during their pathway.

During 2015 the Trust moved to a new interpreting and
translation provider, Prestige Network. This involved
communication to staff to promote the new provider,
as well as the new process for arranging face to face
and telephone-based interpreters for OUH patients.

2015 also saw the roll out of the Accessible Information
Standard from NHS England. OUH will continue to work
in line with this standard, by streamlining the processes
to make information available to patients with different
needs (e.g. Braille, large print, Easy Read).

Patient letters
During 2015, the Trust reviewed the appointment
letters. A plain English review of our appointment
letters is also underway to better support people who
are sight or hearing impaired; have learning disabilities
and other patient groups whose first language may
not be English.

The staff intranet has been updated with comprehensive
information to make this process more straightforward.
It also features FAQs for common queries; making sure
staff are clear on the guidelines for using interpreters.
Our new interpreter provider has also worked with
us to produce several leaflets in other languages, as
well as translating patient letters and notes. Several
departments around the Trust have started the
process for their most popular leaflets to be translated
into the top five languages requested by patients.
The PALS service has been provided with updated
information on the new interpreter process, to
support staff and patients across all sites, as well as
in the community. A key improvement includes a new
platform of communication for the hearing impaired
by having computers and webcams set up within
departments enabling better access to British Sign
Language (BSL) interpreters.

Annual Report April - September 2015 Page 41

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
As one of the largest acute trusts in the country our main priority is to deliver
excellent healthcare for all of our patients. This is underpinned by bringing
together academic research expertise with our clinical teams to translate
medical science into better healthcare treatments.
Our patients benefit from world-class discovery
and innovation and our growing portfolio is
addressing major conditions including cancer,
dementia and stroke.

All our studies have ethical approval and adhere to
rigorous governance procedures. Patient recruitment
to studies is carried out by an informed consent
process. Healthy volunteers are also recruited to take
part in studies.

Tackling 21st century healthcare
challenges

Research as a strategic priority

Each treatment, assessment or operation given at
Oxford University Hospitals has its roots in research.
Research is a fundamental, but often unseen, part of
the Trust’s work and plays a vital role in tackling the
biggest healthcare challenges and improving the care
we offer patients.

It is a strategic priority of the Trust to continue to
increase our research activity, further integrate it
with clinical care and increase patient participation
and involvement. Research and clinical facilities are
co-located on our hospital sites to foster a culture of
collaboration.

Our research portfolio looks at new techniques
and technologies and addresses major healthcare
challenges, including heart disease, cancer and
diabetes, through to much less common disorders
and conditions.

The Trust’s vision is to be at the heart of an innovative
academic health science system. This involves
partnerships with the following bodies.

The amount of research we are involved in continues
to grow – there are currently well over 1,000 active
research projects.
Research is integrated with our clinical care and
carried out in partnership with world-leading
academic partners at the University of Oxford’s
Medical Sciences Division and Oxford Brookes
University’s Faculty of Health and Life Sciences, other
NHS trusts, including Oxford Health NHS Foundation
Trust, and commercial partners.
Our research relies on patient involvement and
participation. Anyone receiving care may be offered
the opportunity to join a research study. Many studies
are observational, which means patient data that is
already routinely collected, such as blood pressure
readings or scan images, are made available to
researchers. Other studies may require additional
tests or increased monitoring. New treatments and
therapies are also trialled.
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NIHR Oxford Biomedical Research Centre
(BRC), funded by the National Institute for Health
Research (NIHR), and the Biomedical Research Unit
(BRU) in musculoskeletal disease at the Nuffield
Orthopaedic Centre. Both bring together the
clinical excellence of the Trust with the academic
expertise of the University of Oxford covering
a range of research themes including cancer,
dementia, cardiovascular disease, vaccines and
infections, and orthopaedic surgery and conditions.
All are pioneering new treatments, services and
diagnostic tools and set the standard in translating
science and research into new and better NHS
clinical care.

l 	The

Oxford Academic Health Science Centre
(OxAHSC), a designation by the Department of
Health consolidating Oxford’s position among
world leaders in health research. Together the
Trust, the University of Oxford, Oxford Brookes
University and Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust
collaborate as one of just six AHSCs in England
– a model that will attract increased funding

l 	The

for biomedical and clinical research which is of
international standing.
Oxford Academic Health Science Network
(AHSN) bringing the NHS, academia and industry
together to boost health and wealth creation. This
network of NHS trusts, academic institutions and
life science businesses covers the Thames Valley
and South Midlands region and aims to enable
swift uptake and adoption of health research by
industry in developing innovative healthcare devices
and treatments.

l 	The

Through these partnerships the Trust seeks to
deliver measurably better outcomes for patients.

Best ever performance for speed
of clinical trials
Figures published by the National Institute for Health
Research (NIHR) in April 2015 showed that OUH
for the first time met in full a key measure for how
quickly clinical trials start. All trials at the OUH and
analysed by the NIHR recruited the first patient within
70 days for the 12 months to March 2015, compared
to 42 per cent for the 12 months to March 2014.
It was the first time that any NHS trust in the group of
most research-active NHS trusts in England has met
the 70 day benchmark in full. Initiation of clinical trials
quickly is vital to effectively translate the research
findings into healthcare, to attract commercial
research partners and fulfil agreed delivery targets.

Pioneering research featured on
the One Show
Research to tackle a patient’s vision loss using
pioneering gene therapy featured on the BBC’s One
Show in July 2015. A film crew recorded Richard
Chandler’s journey with John Radcliffe Hospital
researchers who are trialling a new form of gene
therapy to tackle choroideremia. Sufferers are missing
a key gene in their retina and the technique involves
injecting a virus to deliver billions of healthy genes to
replace the missing gene. Mr Chandler, of Reading,
was slowly losing his eyesight and was just one of
48 people from around the world to get the therapy

that researchers hope can stop or even reverse the
condition. Consultant Ophthalmologist and University
of Oxford Professor Robert MacLaren was shown
using foot pedals to slowly deliver the virus, a skill that
takes years to learn. He told the show: “The results
we’ve had had so far have been spectacular.”

The link between blood pressure
and diabetes
High blood pressure sufferers have an almost 60%
greater chance of developing diabetes, a major
global study supported by the Oxford BRC reported
in September 2015. The study looked at the health
records of 4.1 million adults in the UK who were
initially free of diabetes and cardiovascular disease
and found a link between increases in blood pressure
and diabetes risk. Study author Professor Kazem
Rahimi, of The George Institute for Global Health,
said: “This is potentially a game changer in the
understanding and treatment of diabetes.”

Recruitment begins for national
genetics project
A project to unravel the genetic changes underlying
rare disease and cancers of more than 1,200 patients
and their families at the Trust began in August 2015.
Eligible patients with some rare diseases and cancers
were invited to provide health data and blood and
tissue samples for whole genome sequencing – where
a complete set of a person’s genes is decoded – for
the national 100,000 Genomes project. The project
will aid research, improve diagnosis and ultimately
lead to successful design of new therapies.

Tackling global healthcare threats
Research supported by the Trust helped tackle major
healthcare threats facing communities around the
world. In June it was announced that University of
Oxford researchers at the John Radcliffe Hospital have
developed a genetic test that can detect which drugs
will effectively treat people with tuberculosis – a
disease prevalent in developing countries – and those
that will not. It is hoped sufferers will be able to have
drug treatment sooner as the technique is significantly
quicker than running laboratory tests.
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The next month it was announced that a second
phase of global clinical studies of an experimental
Ebola vaccine had been started at the Churchill
Hospital. The study aims to recruit more than 600
healthy adult volunteers in the UK and France.
Director of the Oxford Vaccine Group Prof Andrew
Pollard said: “The devastating Ebola epidemic in
Guinea, Liberia and Sierra Leone has shown how
urgently we need a safe and effective vaccine.”

Engaging the public in research
The Trust continued its work to engage the wider
public in research. Free public talks by the NIHR
Oxford Biomedical Research Centre included a range
of topics such as antibiotic resistance, the 100,000
Genomes project, cancer, the immune system and
stopping smoking. In May 2015, BRC staff spoke to
shoppers in the Templars Square Shopping Centre,
Cowley, Oxford about how they can become involved
in research studies and in September, visitors to
the John Radcliffe Hospital were shown round the
University’s Cardiovascular Clinical Research Facility
and Acute Vascular Imaging Centre to learn about
research into conditions such as stroke and heart
attacks.

Research across portfolios
A range of research studies were launched to look
at a wide spectrum of conditions and diseases
between April and September 2015. In August 2015,
researchers successfully completed the first human
trial of a vaccine for respiratory syncytial virus (RSV),
a common virus that is particularly dangerous to
infants. In June, researchers appealed for volunteers
to answer the ‘obesity paradox’ of the link between
being overweight and heart function, which looked
at why overweight people with heart failure may live
longer than sufferers who are not overweight. Men
with Type 2 diabetes were sought for a study looking
at a new treatment to correct low testosterone levels
in April. The study involved a hormone kisspeptin to
see if it could increase testosterone levels.

Funding boost for cancer research
The Cancer Research UK Oxford Centre was one of the
first to gain Major Centre status in June 2015, receiving
an extra £5 million over two years. Alongside Major
Centres in Cambridge and Manchester, the Oxford
Centre acts as a vital research hub in the charity’s
network of 15 research centres around the country. The
Oxford Centre is based at the University of Oxford’s Old
Road Campus. However, it draws in expertise from the
breadth and depth of the cancer research community
across Oxford. It is a partnership between the Trust,
the University and Cancer Research UK. It brings
together researchers from a range of disciplines,
encourages and supports innovative collaborative
research, and bridges the gap between innovative
laboratory work and benefits for patients.
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The number of
ACTIVE STUDIES
supported by Oxford
University Hospitals
was 1,737 in March 2016
compared to 1,437 in
March 2015 and 1,357
the previous year.

Meet

Amadou

Amadou is a Biomedical Scientist in Haematology, where he is
responsible for the blood bank and for testing of samples for problems
such as anaemia or leukaemia. Originally from The Gambia, he moved to
London in 1999 as a 14 year old. After training at Westminster he decided
he wanted to be nearer to the countryside. He’s been at Oxford since 2011.
One of Amadou’s proudest achievements is the research he has done
in establishing whether fresh (less than seven days old) or old (up to
two months old) blood has different benefits. Understanding this
is useful in areas such as cancer treatment where patients might
need regular blood transfusions and the lifespan of blood
can be important. Fourteen years after leaving The
Gambia he went back for the first time – surprising
his extended family and especially his
grandma by arriving in a taxi
unannounced.
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➍

ACCOUNTABILITY
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Directors’ report
The Board is responsible for the management of the
Trust and ensuring proper standards of corporate
governance are maintained. It attaches great
importance to making sure the Trust adheres to
the principles set out in the NHS Constitution and
Monitor NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance,
and other related publications such as Quality
Governance in the NHS, and works hard to ensure it
operates to high ethical and compliance standards.
Working alongside our Board of Directors is our
Council of Governors. In February 2015, our Council
of Governors was elected in shadow form, to come
into full effect upon authorisation as a Foundation
Trust (which happened on 1 October 2015). The
governors play a valuable role by holding our nonexecutive directors to account, ensuring that the
interests of the Trust’s members are taken into
account and helping to shape our plans for the future.
Our Council of Governors comprises 15 public
governors elected from constituencies covering
Oxford City, South Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse,
West Oxfordshire and Cherwell districts,
Buckinghamshire, Berkshire, Gloucestershire, Wiltshire,
Northamptonshire, and the rest of England and Wales.
There are six staff governors, and a further eight
appointed governors from strategic partners.
The Trust Board membership comprises:
Non-executive directors (NED)
Dame Fiona Caldicott, Chairman*
Professor Sir John Bell*
Mr Alisdair Cameron*
Mr Christopher Goard*
Professor David Mant (Associate non-executive director)
Mr Geoffrey Salt (Vice Chairman) *
Mrs Anne Tutt*
Mr Peter Ward*
Executive directors
Sir Jonathan Michael, Chief Executive*
Dr Tony Berendt, Medical Director*
Mr Paul Brennan, Director of Clinical Services*

Mr Mark Power, Director of Organisational Development
and Workforce

Mr Mark Mansfield, Director of Finance and Procurement*
Mr Andrew Stevens, Director of Planning and Information
Ms Catherine Stoddart, Chief Nurse*
Mr Mark Trumper, Director of Development and the Estate
Ms Eileen Walsh, Director of Assurance
The Trust Board meets bi-monthly. In the intervening
months meetings of the Quality Committee and
Finance and Performance Committee were held to
ensure that there was a regular consideration of
quality, financial and operational performance. The
Board met three times in public during the six month
period from 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015.
* indicates those members holding voting positions,
in line with The Health Trust's (Membership and
Procedure) Regulations 1990.

Further details and biographies of the Board of
Directors are available from the Trust’s website at
www.ouh.nhs.uk/aboutus. Details of the Council of
Governors are available at www.ouh.nhs.uk/ft

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is responsible for providing
assurance to the Board on the Trust’s system
of internal control by means of independent
and objective review of financial and corporate
governance, and risk management arrangements,
including compliance with laws, guidance and
regulations governing the NHS. It also reviews the
Trust’s annual statutory accounts before they are
signed off by the Trust Board, and monitors the
Trust’s Counter Fraud arrangements.
The Audit Committee is made up exclusively of
independent, non-executive directors:
Mrs Anne Tutt (Chairman)
Mr Alisdair Cameron		
Mr Christopher Goard (Vice-chairman)
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The Chief Executive, Director of Finance and
Procurement and Director of Assurance normally
attend the meetings of the Committee. In line with
best practice, the Chairman of the Board is not a
formal member of the Audit Committee but may be
in attendance, along with any other Board member
or senior executive, at the invitation of the Audit
Committee Chairman.
Representatives from Internal Audit and External
Audit and Counter Fraud Services normally attend
meetings to deal with audit issues, and they also hold
private meetings with the Audit Committee Chairman
to discuss confidential matters.
The committee met a total of three times in the
period to 30 September 2015.

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE
The Finance and Performance Committee is
responsible for reviewing the Trust’s financial and
operational performance against annual plans and
budgets, and for overseeing the development of the
Trust’s medium and long-term financial plans. It also
monitors performance of the Trust’s physical estate
and non-clinical services. In addition, the committee
is responsible for reviewing the delivery of annual
efficiency savings programmes, and monitoring the
effectiveness of the Trust’s financial and operational
performance reporting systems.

The committee met a total of three times during the
six month period between 1 April and 30 September
2015.

QUALITY COMMITTEE
The Quality Committee is responsible for providing
the Trust Board with assurance on all aspects of
the quality of clinical care; on governance systems,
including the management of risk, for clinical,
corporate, HR, information governance, research
and development issues; and on standards of quality
and safety.
The Quality Committee core membership comprises:
non-executive directors:
Mr Geoffrey Salt (Chairman)
Mr Peter Ward (Vice-Chairman)
Dame Fiona Caldicott
Mr Christopher Goard (to provide cross membership with
the Audit and Finance and Performance Committees)

Professor David Mant
and the following executive directors:
Dr Tony Berendt, Medical Director
Mr Paul Brennan, Director of Clinical Services
Mr Mark Power, Director of Organisational Development
and Workforce

Sir Jonathan Michael, Chief Executive
Ms Catherine Stoddart, Chief Nurse
Ms Eileen Walsh, Director of Assurance

The committee’s core membership comprises:
non-executive directors:
Mr Christopher Goard (Chairman)
Mrs Anne Tutt (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Geoffrey Salt
Dame Fiona Caldicott
Mr Alisdair Cameron
Mr Peter Ward
and the following executive directors:
Sir Jonathan Michael, Chief Executive
Mr Mark Mansfield, Director of Finance and Procurement
Dr Tony Berendt, Medical Director
Mr Mark Trumper, Director of Development and the Estate
Mr Paul Brennan, Director of Clinical Services
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Mrs Anne Tutt normally attends meetings of the
Quality Committee in her capacity as Chairman of the
Audit Committee to address cross-cutting issues.
The committee met a total of three times during the
six month period between 1 April and 30 September
2015.

REMUNERATION AND APPOINTMENTS
COMMITTEE
(See Remuneration and Staff Report on page 64.)

Declaration of Interests and Register of Interests
of Board Members for the year 2015/16, from 1
April to 30 September 2015
Declarations of interests by members of the Trust
Board are sought at each meeting of the Board
and its committees, and recorded in the minutes
of the relevant meetings. The Register of Interests
of Board Members is published each year in the
Annual Report, and includes those interests recorded
during the preceding 12 months for Directors whose
appointments have terminated in-year. The interests
for the year 2015/16 up to 30 September 2015 are
given on pages 52-54. Guidance to the codes defines
relevant and material interests as:
a)	Directorships, including non-executive
directorships held in private companies or
PLCs (with the exception of those for dormant
companies);
b)	ownership or part-ownership of private
companies, businesses or consultancies likely or
possibly seeking to do business with the NHS;
c)	majority or controlling share holdings in
organisations likely or possibly seeking to do
business with the NHS;
d)	a position of authority in a charity or voluntary
organisation in the field of health and social care;
e)	any connection with a voluntary or other
organisation contracting for NHS services;
f)	research funding / grants that may be received by
an individual or department;
g) 	interests in pooled funds that are under separate
management.

TRUST MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE
The Trust Management Executive is the senior
managerial decision-making body for the Trust. It is
chaired by the Chief Executive and consists of the Trust's
executive directors and the five divisional directors. It
has delegated powers from the Trust Board to oversee
the day to day management of an effective system of
integrated governance, risk management and internal
control across the whole organisation's activities (both
clinical and non-clinical), which also supports the
achievement of the Trust's objectives.

Information governance
The Trust takes its responsibilities for maintaining
patient and staff confidentiality seriously. Trust
employees operate within a comprehensive
information governance framework that covers data
protection compliance, information security, data
quality, confidentiality, records management, IT system
security and Freedom of Information compliance. This
framework includes procedures for the management
of information risks and the reporting of information
incidents. It is based on the requirements given in the
NHS Information Governance Toolkit and national
legislation, polices and directives.
The Trust is committed to observing the Caldicott
Principles for patient confidentiality. Dr Christopher
Bunch is the Trust’s Caldicott Guardian.
All NHS organisations must include in their annual
reports details of incidents involving loss of confidential
information. During the first six months of 2015 there
were no Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation (SIRI)
relating to a breach of confidentiality.
The Trust reviews and maps its information flows to
ensure they are secure and all staff are provided with
guidance and training about their responsibilities.
Information Governance training is a mandatory
element of training for all staff and there continues to
be a great emphasis on ensuring this is completed by
all staff every year.

Freedom of Information
The Trust operates a transparent and open system
of access to information about its services, whilst
recognising and adhering to best practice on protecting
the confidentiality of certain types of information.
From 1 April to 30 September 2015 the Trust received
339 Freedom of Information requests. The majority of
requests contain multiple questions that require input
across the Trust’s divisions. The Trust tries to respond
to all requests within 20 working days. However, on
occasions, more complex requests do require longer.
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Public interest and other disclosures
1. Better Payment Practice Code
In accordance with the CBI prompt payment code, the
Trust’s payment policy is to pay all creditors within 30
days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice unless other
payment terms are agreed. The performance for the
six months to 30 September 2015 is set out in note 11
to the accounts.
The Trust has signed up to the Prompt Payment
Code which is a payment initiative developed by
Government and which was referenced in a letter
from the NHS Chief Executive on 18 May 2009.

2. Audit disclosures
The Trust’s external auditors are appointed by the
Audit Commission and following the outsourcing of
the Commission’s in-house Audit Practice, all auditor
appointments are of private firms. The Trust’s external
auditors are Ernst & Young. The statutory audit fee
for the six months to 30 September was £97,000.
The external auditors report to the Audit Committee,
which is a sub-committee of the Trust Board chaired
by a non-executive director and whose membership
is limited to the non-executive directors of the Trust.
Under the governance arrangements of the Audit
Commission, the contracts for the provision of external
audit services are subject to periodic market testing.
In line with current guidance, each director has given
a statement that as far as they are aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the external
auditors are unaware. They have taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a director in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that Ernst & Young are
aware of that information.

3. Counter fraud
The Board is absolutely committed to maintaining an
honest, open and well-intentioned atmosphere within
the Trust. It is therefore committed to eliminating any
fraud or bribery within the Trust, and to the rigorous
investigation of any such cases. Where any acts of
fraud or corruption are proven, the Trust will ensure
that the people involved are appropriately dealt with,
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and will also take all appropriate steps to recover any
losses in full. The Trust has adopted a Counter Fraud
Policy and reporting procedures and has appointed
KPMG to provide a counter fraud service.

4. Charging for information
The Trust has complied with the Treasury’s guidance
on setting charges for information as specified by
Chapter 6 of HM Treasury’s Managing Public Money.

5. Sickness absence data
It is a Treasury requirement that public bodies must
report sickness absence data and the data must be
consistent to permit aggregation across the NHS and
with similar data from the Department of Health. The
table included at Note 10.3 to the accounts lists the
data for January 2015 to December 2015 which has
been provided centrally for this purpose.

6. Pension liabilities
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust staff are
members of the National NHS Pension Scheme.
Further details about the scheme are available in Note
10.6 to the full accounts and in the Remuneration and
Staff Report.

7. Exit packages and severance payments
Notes 10.4 and 10.5 to the accounts, reproduced
in the Remuneration and Staff Report, set out the
exit packages agreed in the six month period to
30 September 2015. The actual date of departure
might be in a subsequent period, and the expense
in relation to the departure costs may have been
accrued in a previous period. This data is therefore
presented on a different basis to other staff cost and
expenditure notes in the accounts. Note 10.5 provides
more detail about those payments on termination of
employment that are not compulsory redundancies.

8. Off-payroll engagements
The Remuneration and Staff Report sets out
the current position in respect of off-payroll
engagements.

Statement of the Chief Executive’s
Responsibilities as the Accountable
Officer of the Trust
The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development Authority has designated that
the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer to the Trust. The relevant
responsibilities of Accountable Officers are set out in the Accountable Officers'
Memorandum issued by the Chief Executive of the NHS Trust Development
Authority. These include ensuring that:
l	there

are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds
and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

l

value for money is achieved from the resources available to the Trust;

l	the

expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;

l

effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

l	annual

statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary
of State with the approval of the Treasury to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and
expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.
I confirm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I
ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Trust’s auditors are aware of that information.
I confirm that the Annual Report and Accounts as a whole are fair, balanced and
understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the Annual Report
and Accounts and the judgments required for determining that they are fair,
balanced and comprehensible.

Mr Mark Mansfield
Deputy Chief Executive* and
Director of Finance and Procurement
31 March 2016
* Sir Jonathan Michael was Chief Executive for the period covered by this report
but he retired on 5 October 2015.
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Directorships, including
non-executive directorships

Professor Sir John Bell
Regius Professor of Medicine
NED

Appointed in November
2014 as National Data
Guardian, an independent
consultant, accountable for
work on health and social
care data on behalf of the
public, to the Secretary of
State for Health in England

Business,
partnership
or consultancies

None

Ewelme Almshouse Charity –
Master trustee

Rhodes Trust – Trustee

None

Majority or
controlling
Charity or voluntary
share holdings organisation

Gray Laboratory Cancer Research
None
None
Trust – Non-executive director
The Edward Jenner Institute for Vaccine 			
Research – Non-executive director			
Isis Innovation Limited –
non-executive director
Roche AG (pharma) –
Non-executive director
Genentech – Non-executive director
Oxagen Ltd (biotech) – Non-executive
director
Atopix (biotech) – Non-executive
director
Oxford Health Alliance – Chairman
GMEC – Chairman
Atopix – Non-executive director
Immunocore – Non-executive director
Office for the Strategic Coordination of
Health Research – Chairman
UK Life Sciences Champion
Genomics England Ltd Board – Member
Science and Technology Honours
Committee – Chairman
Advent Venture Partners – Advisor
Hakluyt & Co – Advisor
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation –
Advisor
Robertson Foundation – Advisor
California Institute for Regenerative
Medicine SAB – Chairman
Oak Foundation – Advisor
GoH – Advisor

Dame Fiona Caldicott
NED and Company Secretary
Chairman
Waters 1802 Ltd
		
		
		
		
		
		

BOARD MEMBER

REGISTER OF INTEREST

None

None

Voluntary or
other organisation

None

None

None

None

Research
funding / Pooled
grants
funds
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None

None

None

Director, Beechlawn
None
Consulting Ltd		

None

None

None

None

None

		
Mr Geoffrey Salt
None
None
None
Trustee, Nuffield Medical
Deputy Chairman				
Trust
				
Trustee, Oxford Kidney Unit
				Fund

Mr Andrew Stevens
Director of Planning and
Information

None

None

None

None

Trustee – The King's Fund

Member of the Oxford University
None
None
None
Research grant holder from
Nuffield Department of Primary Care 				
medical charities, EU,
Health Sciences Honorary Consultant 				
Department of Health and
with Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust				

Sir Jonathan Michael
Director: Shelford Health Roundtable
Chief Executive		

Professor David Mant
Associate NED

None

None

None

None

None

NIHR

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Mr Mark Mansfield
Director of Finance and
Procurement

None

None

None

None

None

None

Mr Christopher Goard
None
None
None
None
Chairman of the Genetic
None
NED					
Alliance UK (an organisation
					
that co-operates with and
					
lobbies both the NHS and
					
the Government here and
					
in Brussels). Magistrate on
					
Buckinghamshire Bench for
					
Adult Criminal Court and
					Family Court
					
Prescription Medicines Code
					
of Practice Authority Appeals
					Board Member

None

None

None

None

None

Research
funding / Pooled
grants
funds

None

None

None

Voluntary or
other organisation

Ms Catherine Stoddart
Chief Nurse

None

None

Majority or
controlling
Charity or voluntary
share holdings organisation

None

None

Mr Paul Brennan
Director of Clinical Services

None

Business,
partnership
or consultancies

Mr Alisdair Cameron
Chief Financial Officer – Post Office
None
None
None
Mrs Cameron, member of
NED
Limited 				
Fundraising Committee for
					Children’s Hospital

None

Directorships, including
non-executive directorships

Dr Tony Berendt
Medical Director

BOARD MEMBER

REGISTER OF INTEREST
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None

Mr Mark Power
Director of Organisational
Development and Workforce
None

Director of John Laing (Cambridge) Ltd, None
Forum Cambridge LLP

None

None

Partner in Health Governance None
Consulting up to October
2014

Mr Peter Ward
NED

Ms Eileen Walsh
Director in Health Governance
Director of Assurance
Consulting from October 2014
		

None

None

None

None

NED and Trustee of The Social
Ownership of a private
None
None
Investment Business Foundation Ltd
business – A Tutt			
Deputy Chair of the Social Investment
Associates Ltd			
Business Ltd and Chair of the Finance 				
Committee 			
International Network for the				
availability of Scientific Publications – 				
Director and Chair of Audit Committee				
Director and Chair of the Audit 				
Committee of Next Energy European				
Solar Utility PLC				
Member of Audit and Risk Assurance 				
Committee of Home Office 				
Member of DEFRA Audit and Risk
Assurance Committee
Member of DFID Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee
Member of APHA Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee
NED of Social and Sustainable capital LLP

None

Majority or
controlling
Charity or voluntary
share holdings organisation

Mrs Anne Tutt
NED

None

Business,
partnership
or consultancies

None

Directorships, including
non-executive directorships

Mr Mark Trumper
Director of Development and
the Estate

BOARD MEMBER

REGISTER OF INTEREST

None

None

Research
funding / Pooled
grants
funds

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Board Member of IASAB			
(the internal Audit Standard
Advisory Board) Government
body advising on the
application of Internal Audit
Standards in the public sector,
and chair of the Audit and
Finance Committee

Section 11 Trustee Oxford
None
None
Radcliffe Hospitals Charitable			
Fund and Chairman Audit			
Committee			

None

Voluntary or
other organisation

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16
For the period 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015

1.

Scope of responsibility

1.1.	As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for
	maintaining a sound system of internal control that
	supports the achievement of Oxford University
	Hospitals' policies, aims and objectives,
	whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental
	assets for which I am personally accountable in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me.
1.2.	I am also responsible for ensuring the Trust is
administered prudently and economically, and that
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS
Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum, including
recording the stewardship of the organisation to
supplement the annual accounts.

2. Accountability
2.1.	In the delivery of my responsibilities and objectives,
I am accountable to the Trust Board and my
performance is regularly and formally reviewed by the
Chairman on behalf of the Board. Since 1 April 2015
and up to 30 September 2015 the Trust has reported
to the NHS Trust Development Authority on financial,
operational and strategic matters.

3.	The purpose of the System of
Internal Control
3.1.	The System of Internal Control is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives;
it can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The System
of Internal Control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of
Oxford University Hospitals; to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised, and the impact should
they be realised; and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically.
3.2.	The System of Internal Control has been in place at
the Trust for the period ended 30 September 2015
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts. The Trust Board has set an Assurance
Strategy which establishes a clear system to enable
the Trust Board and senior managers to review the
corporate governance, risk management and internal
control framework, and address any weaknesses
identified. The strategy sets out the types, levels and
sources of assurance and established how assurance
tools, such as the Board Assurance Framework and

Internal Audit, individually and collectively assure the
Board of the effectiveness of the System of Internal
Control and what is being done to address any
weaknesses.
3.3.	The System of Internal Control is underpinned by
the existence of a number of individual controls that
are in place: senior management / executive review,
policies and procedures covering important activities,
the Standing Orders, Standing Financial Instructions
and Scheme of Delegation, the checks and balances
inherent in internal and external audit reviews and
Board oversight.

4. Governance framework
4.1.	The Trust Board has overall responsibility for the
activity, integrity and strategy of the Trust and is
accountable, through its Chairman, to the NHS Trust
Development Authority and the Secretary of State for
Health. Its role is largely supervisory and strategic, and
it has six key functions, namely to:
•	set strategic direction, define objectives and agree
plans for the Trust
• monitor performance and ensure corrective action
• ensure financial stewardship
•	ensure high standards of corporate and clinical
governance
•	appoint, appraise and remunerate executives
•	ensure dialogue with external bodies and the local
community.
4.2.	The Trust Board operates with the support of four
committees: Audit, Finance and Performance, Quality,
and Remunerations and Appointments. These
committees have been established on the basis of the
following principles:
•	the need for committees to strengthen the Trust’s
overall governance arrangements and support the
Board in the achievement of the Trust’s strategic
aims and objectives;
•	the requirement for a committee structure that
strengthens the Board’s role in strategic decision
making and supports the non-executive directors
in scrutiny and challenge of executive management
action;
•	maximising the value of the input from nonexecutive directors, given their limited time, and
providing clarity around their role; and
•	supporting the Board in fulfilling its role, given the
nature and magnitude of the Trust’s wider agenda,
to support background development work and to
perform scrutiny in more detail than is possible at
Board meetings.
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4.3.	The Audit Committee exists to oversee the
establishment and maintenance of an effective System
of Internal Control throughout the organisation.
It ensures there are effective internal audit
arrangements in place that meet mandatory NHS
Internal Audit Standards and provide independent
assurance to the Board. The Committee reviews the
work and findings of External Audit and provides
a conduit through which their findings can be
considered by the Board. It also reviews the Trust’s
annual statutory accounts before they are presented
to the Trust Board, ensuring that the significance of
figures, notes and important changes are understood.
The Committee maintains oversight of the Trust’s
Internal Audit and Counter Fraud arrangements.
For the period 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015,
the Committee referred the Draft Annual Accounts
2014/15, and the revised Terms of Reference for the
Audit Committee, to the Trust Board. In relation to
controls implemented within the Trust surrounding
bank and agency staff, the Audit Committee
discharged its role in monitoring the implementation
of recommendations made by the Internal Auditors to
the Finance and Performance Committee.

5.1.	The following tables show how many of the core
members of each of the Board Committees attended
meetings during the period April to September 2015.
QUALITY COMMITTEE

ROLE
Chair – Non-executive Director (GS)

			

Vice Chair – Non-executive Director (PW)				
Chairman of the Trust Board (FC)				
Non-executive Director (CG)				
Associate Non-executive Director (DM)				
Chief Executive (JM to Oct BH from Oct))				
Medical Director (TB)				
Chief Nurse (CS)				
Director of Clinical Services (PB)				
Director of Assurance (EW)				
Director of Workforce (MP)				

10 Jun 15
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5.	Committee meetings: record of
attendance

12 Aug 15

4.5.	The Quality Committee is responsible for providing
the Trust Board with assurance on all aspects of
the quality of clinical care; on governance systems,
including the management of risk, for clinical,
corporate, HR, information governance, research
and development issues; and on standards of quality
and safety. The Committee oversees the Trust’s
ongoing compliance with Care Quality Commission
Fundamental Standards of Quality and Safety, and
the management of risk through the NHS Litigation
Authority’s Risk Management Standards. It works
closely with the Audit Committee through joint
membership and joint management support provided
by the Director of Assurance.

4.7.	As an aspirant Foundation Trust the organisation
successfully held elections to the Council of
Governors. All public and staff governor seats were
filled through competitive election. The Council
of Governors operated in ‘shadow’ form prior to
authorisation.

15 Apr 15

4.4.	The Finance and Performance Committee’s main
responsibilities are to review the Trust’s financial and
operational performance against annual plans and
budgets, and to provide overview of the development
of the Trust’s medium and long-term financial models.
It also monitors performance of the Trust’s physical
estate and non-clinical services. Other responsibilities
include reviewing in-year delivery of annual
efficiency savings programmes, and monitoring the
effectiveness of the Trust’s financial and operational
performance reporting systems.

4.6.	The Remuneration and Appointments Committee is
responsible for determining the policy on executive
remuneration, approving contracts of employment for
executives and agreeing arrangements for termination
of contracts. The Committee ensures that appropriate
performance management arrangements are in
place for executive directors and works with the
Chief Executive to relate performance judgements
to pay. In determining remuneration policy and
packages, the Committee has regard to the Trust’s
overarching reward and benefit strategy for all staff,
the arrangements in the wider NHS, and any relevant
guidance from the Treasury.

✗
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✗
✓

✓
✓
✓
✓
✗
✓
✓
✓
✓
✗
✓

✓
✗
✗
✓
✗
✓
✓
✓
✗
✗
✓

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE
15 Apr 15

10 Jun 15

12 Aug 15

Chair – Non-executive Director(CG)				✓

✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✗
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

✓
✗
✗
✓
✗
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓
✓

ROLE

Chairman of the Trust Board (FC)				✓
Non-executive Director (AT)				✓
Non-executive Director (GS)				✗
Non-executive Director (PW)				✓
Non-executive Director (AC)				✗
Chief Executive (JM to Oct BH from Oct)				✓
Director of Finance and Procurement (MM)				

✓

Medical Director (TB)				✓
Director of Development and the Estate (MT)*			 ✓
Director of Clinical Services (PB)				✓
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Non-executive Director (AC)

			
			
			

16 Sept 15

Vice Chair – Non-executive Director (CG)

3 June 15

Chair – Non-executive Director (AT)

20 May 15

ROLE

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓
✓

✓
✓
✓

REMUNERATION AND APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
27 May 15
Chair – Non-executive Director (JB)						

✓

Non-executive Director (CG)						✓
Non-executive Director (AC)						✓
Chairman of the Trust Board (FC)						

✓

Non-executive Director (GS)						✓
Non-executive Director (AT)						✗
Non-executive Director (PW)						✓

5.2.	The membership of the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee is limited to the Chairman
and non-executive directors. The quorum is defined
within the terms of reference as three Committee
members, one of whom should be the Committee
Chairman.
5.3. All meetings were quorate during the period.
5.4.	The chairs of each of the sub-committees present
written reports to the Board after each meeting,
highlighting significant issues of interest to the Board,
key issues and decisions made at their meetings.
In addition each committee, including the Board,
undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness of
the committee, taking into account an assessment
against the Corporate Governance Code.

	This review is used to produce an annual report
to the Board. No departures from the Code or the
committee’s terms of reference were noted in the
latest annual reports.
5.5.	The Board met a total of three times in public in the
period from 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015, with
an additional meeting held in private. The meetings
were held as follows:
• 13 May 2015 (public and confidential meetings);
• 3 June 2015 (confidential meeting only);
• 8 July 2015 (public and confidential meetings);
•	9 September 2015 (public and confidential
meetings).
5.6.	All Board members have signed a declaration
of compliance with the NHS Codes of Conduct,
Accountability and Openness, and the Trust has
not reported any breach of these Codes during the
period. The Trust’s Standing Orders, Reservation
and Delegation of Powers and Standing Financial
Instructions are updated annually. The Standing
Orders were adhered to over the course of the period
and no suspensions were recorded.
5.7.	The Board’s Register of Interests was updated
throughout the year, and was formally received at
the Trust Board meeting in May 2015. The Register
of Gifts, Hospitality, Consultancies, Sponsorship and
support for travel education and training covering
Board members and Divisional Directors was
presented to the Board in May 2015. No conflicts of
interest were identified in the review of the Register.
	The Trust is compliant with the Fit and Proper
Persons requirements, all Board members completed
self-assessment declarations in relation to this
requirement.

6.		 Capacity to handle risk
6.1.	The Trust has a Risk Management Strategy which sets
out the Trust’s philosophy for the management of
risk and individual responsibilities and accountabilities
in this regard. Operationally, responsibility for the
implementation of risk management has been
delegated to executive directors as follows:
•	the Director of Assurance has delegated authority
for the risk management framework, and is the
executive lead for maintaining the Board Assurance
Framework and its supporting processes;
•	the Director of Finance and Procurement has
responsibility for financial governance and
associated financial risk;

Annual Report April - September 2015 Page 57

•	the Medical Director has responsibility for quality,
clinical governance and clinical risk, including
incident management and joint responsibility with
the Chief Nurse for patient safety;
•	the Chief Nurse has responsibility for patient
experience, and joint responsibility with the Medical
Director for patient safety;
•	executive directors have responsibility for the
management of strategic and operational
risks within their individual portfolios. These
responsibilities include the maintenance of a risk
register and the promotion of risk management
training to staff within their directorates.
6.2.	A range of risk management training is available
to staff based on the nature of their role and
position within the organisation. This includes risk
awareness training which is provided to all new staff
as part of their corporate induction programme.
The Risk Management Strategy describes the roles
and responsibilities of all staff in relation to the
identification, management and control of risk, and
encourages the use of risk management processes as
a mechanism to highlight areas they believe require
improvement.
6.3.	The implementation of the Risk Management Strategy
was reviewed during the period and the results
presented to the Trust Board in November 2015.
This demonstrated good progress has been made to
embed risk management through the organisation
and the risk maturity of the organisation had
improved. Further actions were identified to continue
to embed risk management processes.

7.		 Risk assessment
7.1.	The Risk Management Strategy sets out an integrated
approach to the management of risk across the
organisation. The aim is to encourage considered risk
taking, including experimentation and innovation
within authorised limits, but to reduce those risks
that impact on patient and staff safety, and have an
adverse effect on the Trust’s reputation as well as its
financial and operational performance.
7.2.	The Risk Management Strategy also defines how risks
are linked to one or more of the Trust’s strategic or
operational objectives. Once the risk has been identified,
it is then described, and assigned an owner. At this
stage, key controls that are to be taken to reduce the
likelihood of the risk happening, or reducing its impact,
are identified. If it has been identified as a severe risk,
a contingency action plan would be considered.
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7.3.	The Trust’s risk assessment process covers all of its
activities – clinical services, clinical support services
and business support functions. Each Division
and Directorate is responsible for maintaining its
own detailed risk register in accordance with the
procedures described in the Risk Management
Strategy. These risk registers are reviewed regularly
by directorate and divisional forums, and risks are
escalated, where their ratings warrant this, for
inclusion on the Corporate Risk Register. During the
period a number of new risks were added to the
corporate risk register these included: the changes
in relation to nurse revalidation, the demonstration
of the completion of the Duty of Candour and risks
in relation to improving electronic processes for
endorsing diagnostic tests results and discharge
summary completion.
7.4.	The Board Assurance Framework provides the
mechanism for the Board to monitor risks, controls,
and the outputs of its assurance processes. It is
monitored regularly by the Trust Management
Executive, the Audit, Finance and Performance,
and Quality Committees and the Trust Board, and
is used as a strategic tool to provide assurance that
appropriate controls are in place which are effective.
7.5.	The Trust, through the Audit Committee, has
implemented an approach to ‘deep dive’ the principle
risks included on the Board Assurance Framework.
Due to the developments in the Trust's strategic
direction, this process was put under review to be
reintroduced in the following year. This was reflected
within the Audit Committee’s cycle of business.

8.		 Standards of quality and safety
8.1.	The Trust is compliant with the registration requirements
	of the Care Quality Commission. The Trust was last
	inspected by the Care Quality Commission in February
2014. The Trust received an overall rating of Good for
	the service provided. The Care Quality Commission
identified a number of areas for improvement and
issued five compliance actions. The resultant action
plan has been the subject of continuous monitoring
during the course of the period.
8.2.	Ratings for the four hospital sites operated by the
Trust were as follows:
•	John Radcliffe Hospital – Requires Improvement
•	Churchill Hospital – Good
•	Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre – Good
•	Horton General Hospital – Good

8.3.	During the course of the period the Trust has been
subject to review by Monitor as an aspirant Foundation
Trust. As a result of this process Monitor granted the
Trust Foundation Trust status on
1 October 2015, hence the need for the Governance
statement covering the period to 30 September 2015.

9.		 Performance management
9.1.	The Trust has in place a robust performance
management system which has been developed to
ensure that the Trust’s management has visibility of
the key operational, financial and quality metrics which
affect the organisation. The performance information
is presented in the form of an integrated performance
report, which is supported by more detailed, areaspecific performance reports. These reports are
presented to the Trust Board, Quality Committee, and
Finance and Performance Committee for review and
challenge.
9.2.	Performance monitoring of the five clinical divisions
is undertaken through monthly performance
management meetings and quarterly in-depth
performance reviews. The outcomes of the quarterly
reviews are reported to the Finance and Performance
Committee.

10. Information governance
10.1.	All new staff are provided with Information Governance
(IG) training at corporate induction. This includes an
	outline of the relevant legal position, NHS guidance and
the Trust’s policies relating to the safe and appropriate
processing, handling and storage of information.
10.2.	Additionally, in accordance with the requirements of
the IG Toolkit, existing staff are required to undergo
IG training on an annual basis. This is carried out
mainly via e-learning modules on the Trust’s e-learning
management system.
10.3.	Information security-related incidents are reported
via the Trust’s incident reporting system. Incidents are
reviewed by the Information Governance and Data
 uality Group, which is chaired by the Trust’s Caldicott
Q
Guardian and Senior Information Risk Officer. Where
an ongoing information risk is identified, this is
recorded on the relevant risk register, along with a
note of actions to be taken to minimise the chances of
occurrence and impact.
10.4.	There were no level 2 Serious Incidents Requiring
Investigation (SIRIs) during the period to 30 September
2015 that were required to be reported to the
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO).

10.5.	The Trust’s IG Toolkit self-assessment is subject to
annual review by internal audit. This review was
conducted in October 2015 and reported to the Audit
Committee in November 2015. The results of the audit
provided partial assurance at the time of completing
the review. The review supported the Trust’s position
that it would achieve an overall satisfactory rating (i.e.
all requirements would be at a minimum of level 2)
by March 2016, on the basis that the medium priority
recommendations were implemented during the year.
A re-audit was conducted in March 2016 where the
Trust gained a rating of significant assurance with
minor improvement opportunities.

11. The risk and control framework
11.1.	The Trust has in place arrangements to ensure that it
discharges its statutory functions and that it complies
with legislative requirements. These include, but are
not limited to the:
•	use of Internal Audit to consider the systems and
processes which support the delivery of the Trust’s
functions;
•	monitoring compliance with Care Quality
		Commission registration requirements and reporting
this to the Trust Board and its Committees;
•	monitoring compliance with quality, operational and
financial performance standards, including the NHS
Constitution;
•	consideration of the legal implication of proposed
changes, utilising the in-house legal
		 services team or external legal advice where required;
•	all Board members having access to external legal
and audit advice should they require this in line with
undertaking their role;
•	the Audit Committee’s role in providing oversight to
the Internal Control Systems within the Trust, with
a particular focus on the management of risk. The
Audit Committee is supported by more detailed
work in relation to quality, finance and performance
by the other Trust Board Committees;
•	the role of the Quality Committee, and Finance and
Performance Committee in providing assurance to
the Trust Board, which is based around a cycle of
business which is designed to consider the key issues
affecting the Trust;
•	Trust Management Executive having ultimate
responsibility for the delivery of the Trust’s stated
outcomes, as described within the Annual Business
Plan, and for ensuring compliance with regulatory
and legislative requirements. The Trust Management
Executive fulfils this function by delegating the
detailed consideration and oversight of performance
to its sub-groups. These sub groups, which
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include Health and Safety, Clinical Governance,
Workforce and Information Management and
Technology, are constituted with clear terms of
reference and are required to report to the Trust
Management Executive after every meeting. This
reporting requires the escalation of any issues and
risks outside the remit of the sub-group and this
would include potential breaches of regulation or
legislation;
•	use of external independent reviewers to provide
external assurance of the Trust’s systems where
possible issues have been identified;
•	identification and nomination of responsible
individuals to lead key work streams, for example
Medical Revalidation and Safeguarding. These
individuals are appointed as they have significant
experience and knowledge in the specific area.
11.2.	All of the above arrangements have been used to
support the view that the Trust has checked its ability
to discharge its statutory functions and no significant
irregularities were identified and the mechanisms in
place are legally compliant.
11.3.	Risk management is embedded within the organisation
	in a variety of ways. All staff have a duty to report
	on incidents, hazards, complaints and near misses in
accordance with the relevant policies. The utilisation of
Datix has improved during the period demonstrated by
an increase in the number of incidents reported. More
details on the review of the incident reporting system
are included in the Quality Account.
11.4.	All cost improvement programmes / schemes are
assessed for their impact on quality. Where possible
negative impact is identified, mitigating actions
are identified or, in cases of significant impact, the
scheme is not progressed. In addition all policies
are equality impact assessed to ensure that they do
not negatively impact one or more groups of staff,
patients or the public.
11.5.	A s an employer of staff who are entitled to
membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure compliance with all
employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations. This includes ensuring that deductions
from salary, employer’s contributions and payments
into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme
rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are
accurately updated in accordance with the timescales
detailed in the regulations.
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11.6.	Control measures are in place to ensure that all the
organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity
and human rights legislation are met with updated
objectives forming part of the Trust’s Equality
Delivery Scheme for 2012/16.
11.7.	Control measures are in place to ensure that
patients, the public and staff with physical and
sensory impairments are able to access buildings
on all the Trust’s sites. All new estates schemes, as
well as refurbishments or ad hoc improvements, are
assessed to ensure that they meet the requirements
of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Issues
identified through patient feedback, complaints or
PALS contacts are used to inform priorities for estates
improvements.
11.8.	The Trust has undertaken risk assessments in
accordance with emergency preparedness and
civil contingency requirements, as based on UK
Climate Impacts Programme (UKCIP) 2009 weather
projections. In March 2015 the Trust approved
a Full Business Case aimed at the delivery of a
significant reduction in annual carbon footprint, to
ensure that this organisation’s obligations under the
Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting
requirements are complied with.
11.9.	The Trust’s Internal Auditors, KPMG LLP (UK),
undertook three audits during the period covered by
this statement. The subject and results are as follows.
•	Local Clinical Research Network: Significant
assurance with minor improvements
•	Pharmacy Orders and Payments: Significant
assurance with minor improvements
•	Bank and Agency Staff: Partial assurance with
some concerns
11.10.	The Trust has accepted the recommendations made
in relation to these reports and has developed
actions which are subject to regular review by the
Audit Committee.

12.	Review of economy, efficiency and
		 effectiveness in the use of resources
12.1.	The Trust has well-developed systems and processes
for managing its resources. The annual budget
setting process for 2015/16 was approved by the
Board before the start of the financial year and was
communicated to all managers in the organisation.
The Director of Finance and Procurement and his team
have worked closely with divisional and corporate
managers throughout the year to ensure that a robust
annual budget was prepared and delivered.

12.2.	Monthly financial and operational performance
reports are presented to the Finance and Performance
Committee, the Trust Management Executive and
to the Board. The Trust makes use of both internal
and external audit functions to ensure that controls
are operating effectively and to advise on areas for
improvement. In addition to financially related audits,
the internal audit programme covers governance
and risk issues. Individual recommendations and
overall conclusions are risk assessed, such that action
plan priorities are agreed with Trust management
for implementation. As mentioned above, all action
plans are monitored and implementation is reviewed
regularly and reported to the Audit Committee as
appropriate.
12.3.	A s part of their annual audit, the Trust’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, are required to
satisfy themselves that the Trust has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. They do this
by examining documentary evidence and through
discussions with senior managers. The conclusions in
relation to this work are made available to the Trust
and presented to the Audit Committee.

13. Annual Quality Account
13.1.	Under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health
Service (Quality Account) Regulations 2010 the
Trust Board is required to prepare a Quality Account
for each financial year. Guidance has been issued
to trusts on the form and content of the annual
Quality Account which incorporates the above
legal requirements and requisite external assurance
arrangements. The Quality Account is subject to a
full External Audit review, using these arrangements,
prior to its publication. This review provides assurance
that the Quality Account has been produced based
on valid data and is accurate. External assurance of
aspects of the Quality Account is provided by the
Trust’s external auditors.

14.	Review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control
14.1.	A s Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of the System of Internal
Control. This review is informed by the work of the
internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive
and divisional directors within the Trust who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework. I have also relied
on the content of the Quality Account accompanying
this Annual Report and other available performance
information. This review was also informed by
comments made by the external auditors in their audit
results report; the Head of Internal Audit Opinion and
other reports.
14.2.	I have been advised on the implications of the result
of my review of the effectiveness of the System of
Internal Control by the Board, the Audit Committee,
the Finance and Performance Committee and the
Quality Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is
in place.
14.3.	The effectiveness of the System of Internal
Control has been reviewed by the Trust Board via
its sub-committees and individual management
responsibilities at executive and divisional director
level. I am satisfied that this Annual Governance
Statement describes a system and approach which
remained robust for the period from 1 April 2015 to
30 September 2015 and supports preparation of the
Annual Accounts on a 'going concern' basis.
14.4.	Regular reports have been received from subcommittees or individual senior managers in relation
to all of the key risks. Annual reports have been
received by the Trust Board relating to all important
areas of activity, and ad hoc reports in-year wherever
these were required.

13.2.	The Medical Director leads on the Quality Account,
and for 2015/16, the Quality Strategy was used as
the basis for the production of the Quality Account.
The strategy established the link between the Trust’s
strategic objectives, priorities in the Quality Account,
and measurable goals against which progress is
monitored. For monitoring purposes, regular updates
of the Trust’s progress against its Quality Account
priorities are provided both to the Quality Committee
and the Trust Board.
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15. Significant issues
15.1.	A s identified through the Trust’s risk management
processes, the significant issues to report and
corresponding actions taken to address key risk issues
are outlined below.
15.1.1.	By September 2015 the Trust had not quite
delivered the average required standard
that 95% of patients should be admitted,
transferred or discharged with four hours
of their arrival at one of our emergency
departments. The demand on our health
services has been higher than ever, and it
remains high year round.
15.1.2.	The Trust put in place improvements to
its internal processes and systems to help
address emergency department waiting
times, including an ‘emergency navigator’
senior nurse role to help direct emergency
GP referrals to the most appropriate unit
on admission. It also collaborated closely
with other Oxfordshire NHS and social care
services to shape and improve a whole-system
approach to managing patients requiring
urgent and emergency care, ensuring that
patients are guided to the right service and
don’t unnecessarily attend the emergency
departments at either the John Radcliffe or
Horton General hospitals.
15.1.3.	The Trust continued to work with colleagues
across the local health and social care
network to reduce the high number of
patients whose discharge from hospital is
delayed, and to improve performance against
thresholds. However the existing plans in
place to 30 September had not had the effect
anticipated. As a result the Trust embarked on
a programme of work with key stakeholder
organisations to further improve patient flow
and ensure care was delivered closer to home.
15.1.4.	Three Never Event incidents were reported
during the period. The incidents varied in type
and comprised the following:
		 • retained swab, resulting in moderate harm;
		 •	wrong site surgery, resulting in moderate
harm; and
		 •	wrong site craniotomy, resulting in increased
length of stay.
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15.1.5.	All incidents occurred due to a failure to
embed existing processes. A number of actions
were taken following these events and work
has been undertaken with departments to
ensure that processes are consistently applied.
15.1.6.	In June 2015 the Trust introduced a weekly
Serious Incident Forum, where all incidents
graded as moderate and above, or any ‘no
harm’ incidents of concern are taken to
discuss. Divisions, frontline staff, executives
and leads for specialist areas such as tissue
viability, pharmacy, VTE, and information
governance attend as required. The purpose of
the Forum is:
		 •	
to provide an open, honest and transparent
process in the decision making of
calling SIRIs (Serious Incidents Requiring
Investigation);
		 •	
to provide assurance to the Trust
Management Executive;
		 •	
to disseminate Trust-wide learning from
SIRIs called through this process.
15.1.7.	In response to the Never Events the Trust
developed a wide ranging Never Event action
plan which is regularly monitored both within
the Trust and with commissioners. Other
actions included the external review described
below which is available on the Trust’s website.
15.1.8.	Professor Toft was commissioned in 2015/16
by the Chief Executive to carry out an external
review of the investigation reports into seven
Never Events reported by Oxford University
Hospitals in financial year 2014/15.
15.1.9.	An overall set of conclusions and
recommendations was provided at the end
of the review. The review concluded that no
evidence had been found to suggest that
a patient safety problem exists within the
Trust and the evidence strongly suggested
that the Trust had a proactive safety culture.
Additionally, the review found that the Trust’s
commitment to openness with respect to SIRIs
and Never Events is exemplary.

16. Conclusion
16.1	With the exception of the internal control issues that
I have outlined in this statement, my review confirms
that the Trust has a generally sound system of internal
controls that supports the achievement of its policies,
aims and objectives and that those control issues have
been or are being addressed.

Mr Mark Mansfield
Deputy Chief Executive and
Director of Finance and Procurement*
31 March 2016
* Mark Mansfield is signing this report as the Deputy Chief
Executive. Sir Jonathan Michael, the Chief Executive and
Accountable Officer for the period covered by this report,
retired on 5 October 2015.
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT
Our people
We are the third largest employer in Oxfordshire, with a workforce of
more than 12,000 people. We are extremely proud of our staff who deliver
compassionate and excellent patient care whilst demonstrating the flexibility
to meet the challenge of change within the NHS.
Our vision and strategy
The Trust’s vision for its workforce is that “as an
employer of choice we will attract, recruit and retain
compassionate, engaged, skilled and experienced
staff who deliver excellent patient care and who work
together to continuously improve the quality of the
services and care we provide.”
Our Organisational Development and Workforce
Strategy recognises that the delivery of compassionate
excellence in care, by engaged, well-led and
motivated members of staff, who believe in and
demonstrate the OUH core values, underpins the
future of the Trust and its services. The strategy sets
out the strategic workforce priorities for the next
five years and develops key themes drawn from
consultation with stakeholders.
A range of initiatives and programmes support our
strategy to deliver compassionate excellence, including:
l 	recruitment,

reward and internal recognition

schemes
expectations and standards of behaviours
l 	actively listening and involving staff through regular
listening events
l 	embedding a shared set of values and behaviours
that have been developed by staff
l 	learning and development through leadership
programmes.
l

The Trust Values:

Learning ⎜Respect ⎜Delivery
Excellence ⎜Compassion
Improvement
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Our values reflect how we behave and the
decisions we take to deliver the best possible
healthcare. We strive for excellence in healthcare by:
l 	encouraging

a culture of support, respect, integrity
and teamwork
l 	monitoring and assessing our performance against
national and international standards of care
l learning from our successes and setbacks
l 	working in partnership and collaboration with all
agencies of health and social care in our healthcare
economy.

Membership of the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee
All, and only, voting non-executive directors are
members of the Remuneration and Appointments
Committee. The Committee is quorate with three
members, one of whom should be the Committee
Chair. From 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015 the
following individuals were voting non-executive
directors:
Dame Fiona Caldicott
Mr Geoffrey Salt
Mr Alisdair Cameron
Professor Sir John Bell (Chair)
Mrs Anne Tutt
Mr Peter Ward
Mr Christopher Goard
The Committee met once during the six months to
30 September 2015. Remuneration and Appointments
Committee does not determine the terms and
conditions of office of the Chairman and nonexecutive directors. Until 30 September 2015 this was
decided by the Trust Development Authority.

Statement on the policy on the remuneration of senior
managers for current and future years
Executive directors are not paid according to national
terms and conditions for NHS staff. Arrangements
are determined locally by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee which is constituted solely
by non-executive directors.
Executive directors’ contracts of employment include:
l 	a

fixed annual salary payment, which is disclosed in
the Annual Report and Accounts, and;
l 	eligibility for a variable performance-related
payment (PRP) linked to the combined achievement
of specific corporate objectives, which are aligned
to the Trust’s strategic objectives as set out in the
Annual Business Plan, and the achievement of
personal objectives.
PRP allocation and the assessment of performance
against corporate objectives to determine and
agree PRP is undertaken by the Remuneration and
Appointments Committee.
The PRP Scheme recognises both team and individual
performance. The maximum potential payment
through the scheme is 20% of annual salary for the
Chief Executive and 10% of annual salary for other
executive directors. PRP is paid as a single, taxable,
non-consolidated payment which does not attract
pension benefits.

Personal objectives are agreed with the Chairman for
the Chief Executive and with the Chief Executive for
executive directors. Performance in respect of Personal
Objectives is assessed via individual annual reviews.
The assessment of executive director performance
for 2015/16 determined an achievement level of
69% against the specific corporate objectives. The
proportionate PRP awards will be applied in 2016/17.
NOTE: The Medical Director is not eligible for
participation in the Executive PRP Scheme. The
Medical Director is employed on the nationally
determined Consultant Contract terms and conditions
and receives a basic Consultant salary (aligned to
national pay scales) plus a responsibility allowance.
The national Consultant Contract also includes
eligibility to apply for Clinical Excellence Awards which
are paid to Consultant medical staff in recognition
of outstanding contribution to the delivery and
development of patient services: teaching; innovation
and academic achievement.
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Terms of Office
Contracts of employment
The executive directors are employed within a standard employment contract which provides for a six month
notice period.

Termination liabilities for executive directors
There are no provisions for compensation for early termination for any executive directors as detailed in the table
below. On termination of employment the director may be entitled to contractual severance terms and redundancy.
Any payments above normal contractual levels would have to be approved by HM Treasury as an economic use of
public funds before they were made. Statutory entitlements also apply in the event of unfair dismissal.
The balance of annual leave earned but untaken would be due to be paid on termination.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS – DETAILS OF SERVICE CONTRACTS

Name
Post title
Date of
Unexpired
Notice
Provision for
Other
		
contract
term
period
compensation termination
					
for early
liability
					 termination
Sir Jonathan Michael

Chief Executive

April 2010

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Mr Mark Mansfield

Director of Finance
and Procurement

June 2010

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Mr Andrew Stevens

Director of
Planning and
Information

June 1999

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Ms Catherine Stoddart

Chief Nurse

March 2014

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Mr Mark Power

Director of
Organisational
Development and
Workforce

February 2014 Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Mr Paul Brennan

Director of
February 2010 Substantive
Clinical Services		

Six months

None

See above

Dr Tony Berendt*
Medical Director
April 2014
Substantive
Six months
None
See above with
						respect to
						Medical
						Director
						responsibilities
Mr Mark Trumper

Director of
May 2011
Development and
the Estate		

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

Ms Eileen Walsh

Director of
May 2011
Assurance		

Substantive

Six months

None

See above

* Dr Tony Berendt‘s substantive appointment is as a Medical Consultant, to which consultant contract termination liabilities apply
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS – TERMS OF OFFICE

Name

Title

Date of appointment

End of term of office

Dame Fiona Caldicott

Chairman

09/03/2009

08/03/2017

Mr Geoffrey Salt

Non-executive director

01/05/2009

15/04/2017

Mr Alisdair Cameron

Non-executive director

01/05/2009

30/04/2017

Professor Sir John Bell

Non-executive director

01/11/2009

31/10/2017

Mrs Anne Tutt

Non-executive director

01/12/2009

30/11/2017

Mr Peter Ward

Non-executive director

01/12/2009

30/11/2017

Mr Christopher Goard

Non-executive director

01/11/2011

31/10/2016

Professor David Mant

Associate non-executive director

01/04/2010

31/10/2016

(non-executive director from 1 Oct 2015)

Salary and pension entitlements of
senior managers
The table overleaf discloses the remuneration
provided to directors within Oxford University
Hospitals NHS Trust during the period 1 April 2015
to 30 September 2015 in a format which is
comparable to that used in previous years.
A revised format was introduced in 2013/14
which adds in the derived increase in capital value
of pension benefits at pension age (calculated
using legislated relevant valuation factor of 20 on
annual pension at pension age, plus lump sum at
pension age). This does not reflect an increase in
remuneration during the year but an annual pension
value multiplied by a notional value of 20 which may
be realised following retirement. (This revised format
is shown on page 84 of this report.)
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Performancerelated pay
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Other
remuneration
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Professor Mant status change on 1 October from Associate Non-executive Director to Non-executive Director
Resigned from Oxford University Hospitals (October 2015)
Other remuneration relates to Clinical Excellence Awards
Resigned from Oxford University Hospitals (30 September 2015)
Acting Chief Nurse covering August 2013 to September 2014

* See Page 84 for further information relating to performance-related payments.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

NOTES

Ms Liz Wright5
Ms Catherine Stoddart

Dr Tony Berendt3
Mr Andrew Stevens
Mr Paul Brennan
Mr Mark Trumper4
Ms Eileen Walsh
Mr Mark Power

Chief Executive
120-125		
30-35
125
215-220		
30-35
Executive Director of Finance and
85-90		
10-15		
170-175		
10-15
Procurement					
Medical Director
105-110
15-20			
170-175 		
35-40
Director of Planning and Information
60-65		
5-10		
125-130		
5-10
Director of Clinical Services
75-80		
10-15
32
155-160		
10-15
Director of Development and the Estate
60-65		
5-10
30
125-130		
5-10
Director of Assurance
55-60		
5-10		
115-120		
15-20
Director of Organisational Development
60-65		
5-10		
125-130			
and Workforce					
Acting Chief Nurse					
40-45
Chief Nurse
70-75		
10-15		
145-150

20-25
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Salary

Sir Jonathan Michael2
Mr Mark Mansfield

to the nearest
£100
£00

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

10-15				
0-5				
0-5				
0-5				
0-5				
0-5				
0-5				
0-5				

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Benefits in
kind

Performancerelated pay

2014/15

Chairman
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Associate Non-executive Director

Other
remuneration

Salary

2015-16 (Six months to 30 September 2015/16)

Dame Fiona Caldicott
Mr Geoffrey Salt
Mr Alisdair Cameron
Professor Sir John Bell
Mrs Anne Tutt
Mr Peter Ward
Mr Christopher Goard
Professor David Mant1

Name and title

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

80

54
60

250

to the nearest
£100
£00

Benefits in
kind
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Director of Organisational Development

Mr Mark Power

Medical Director

1. Information subject to audit

Dr Tony Berendt

Director of Assurance

Ms Eileen Walsh

and Workforce

Director of Clinical Services

Mr Paul Brennan

0-2.5

0-2.5

0-2.5

0-2.5

0-2.5

Procurement

Executive Director of Finance and

Mr Mark Mansfield

5-7.5

0-2.5

-2.5-0

0-2.5

2.5-5

0-2.5

(bands of
£2,500)
£000

(bands of
£2,500)
£000

0-2.5

Real increase in
pension lump sum
at pension age

Real increase
in pension
at pension age

Mr Andrew Stevens Director of Planning and Information

Name and title

PENSION BENEFITS1

90-95

15-20

30-35

60-65

65-70

50-55

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

270-275

55-60

90-95

185-190

205-210

160-165

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

1,950

389

540

1,247

1,329

1,111

£000

Total accrued
Lump sum at
Cash equivalent
pension age related
transfer value
pension at
pension age at
to accrued
at
30 September 2015
pension at
30 September 2015
30 September 2015

69

16

13

21

34

21

£000

Real increase
in cash
equivalent
transfer value

1,870

370

525

1,219

1,287

1,083

£000

Cash equivalent
transfer value
at
1 April 2015

0

0

0

0

0

0

£000

Employer’s
contribution to
Stakeholder
Pension

Non-executive directors do not receive pensionable
remuneration (2014/15: nil). Sir Jonathan Michael has
reached retirement age so calculation is no longer
applicable. [The Trust did not contribute to any
Director’s stakeholder pension scheme (2014/15: nil).]
Pension details have only been disclosed for those
directors in post during 2015/16 up to 30 September
2015. Balances for those in post during 2014/15 can
be obtained from the 2014/15 Annual Report.		
							

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the
actuarially assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular
point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s
accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or
other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from
the scheme. CETVs are calculated in accordance with
the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
Regulations 2008.
							

Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded
by the employer. It takes account of the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid
by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another scheme or arrangement)
and uses common market valuation factors for the
start and end of the period.
On 16 March 2016 the Chancellor of the Exchequer
announced a change in the Superannuation
Contributions Adjusted for Past Experience (SCAPE)
discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the
calculation of CETV figures in this report. Due to the
lead time required to perform calculations and prepare
annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report

for the NHS Pension Scheme are based on the previous
discount rate and have not been recalculated.
							

Payment to past directors
The Trust has not made any payment to any person
who was not a director at the time the payment
was made but who had been a director of the Trust
previously. (This excludes any payments of regular
pension benefits which commenced in previous years,
payments in respect of employment by the Trust
other than as a director and sums disclosed in the
single remuneration disclosure or the disclosure of
compensation for early retirement or loss of office.)
							

Pay multiples (information subject to audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
relationship between the remuneration of the
highest-paid director in their organisation and the
median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid
director in Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust in
the financial year 2015/16 was £245,000 - £250,000
(2014/15: £275,000 - £280,000). This was 8.6 times
(2014/15: 9 times) the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £29,853 (2014/15: £29,279).
In 2015/16, no employees received remuneration
in excess of the highest-paid director. In 2014/15,
it was also the case that no employees received
remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director.
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated
performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind but not
severance payments. It does not include employer
pension contributions and the Cash Equivalent Transfer
Value of pensions. The median and the ratio include
bank and locum staff but do not include agency staff.

BAND OF HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS

As at 30 September 2015

As at 31 March 2015

Band of highest paid director’s		
total remuneration (£’000)
245-250

Band of highest paid director’s
total remuneration (£’000)

275-280

Median total remuneration (£)

Median total remuneration (£)

29,279

Ratio

Page 70 Annual Report April - September 2015

29,853
8.6

Ratio

9.5

OUR WORKFORCE

REAL PEOPLE. REMARKABLE CARE.

The Trust’s workforce totalled 12,369 members of staff (including all individuals holding a paid contract of
employment) in the first six months of the year 2015/16.

REAL PEOPLE. REMARKABLE CARE.

All employees, with the exception of medical staff, very senior managers and executive directors are subject to NHS
Agenda for Change Terms and Conditions of Service which include nationally agreed salary scales. Similarly the
pay and contractual arrangements of medical staff are determined by nationally agreed terms and conditions of
service. There are a small number of employees who are on very senior manager contracts. The pay point for these
individuals is fixed. Other terms and conditions of service are in line with Agenda for Change.

_Pop-up_stand.indd 1

_Pop-up_stand.indd 1
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OUH headcount
The average number of staff
employed by the Trust as at 30
September 2015 is set out in the
chart opposite (the number for
administrative and clerical staff
includes all corporate support
services).
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OUH HEADCOUNT BY STAFF GROUP

OUH Headcount by Staff Group
1.6%

Medical and dental staff

6.3%

16.3%

Administrative and estates staff

10.9%
Healthcare assistants and
other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting staff

20.9%
32.2%
11.7%

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff

Nurses and midwives are the
largest staff group and make
up approximately 33% of the
total workforce. In addition to
a medical workforce of over
1,600, we have approximately
750 doctors who hold honorary
contracts with the Trust. These
include University medical staff
who provide clinical services and
doctors from other UK trusts
and from overseas who wish to
expand their knowledge and
experience.
We also employ over 600 staff
to provide facilities services at
the John Radcliffe and Churchill
Hospital sites as well as the
Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre.
These members of staff are
managed by our Private Finance
Initiative (PFI) partners.

GENDER DISTRIBUTION OF OUH
WORKFORCE AS AT 31 SEPT 2016

TOTAL

3500

Male

3,988

4000

Female

OUH HEADCOUNT

Directors 1

3

9

12

Senior Managers 2

1

4

5

Healthcare science staff
Externally funded staff

CATEGORY

Other staff
Total 4

3

9,379

2,793 12,352

9,383

2,986 12,369

NOTES
1. defined as voting members of the Board
2. defined as non-voting members of the Board
3. everyone else in the organisation
4. everyone in the organisation including the Board
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Staff sickness absence

Staff turnover

The Trust is committed to reducing staff sickness
absence and provides comprehensive and proactive
occupational health services and the maintenance
of healthy working environments. The Trust aims
to ensure attendance levels are high and sickness
absence rates are minimised.

Staff turnover for the six months from April to
September 2015 was on average 13.63%.

The sickness absence rate at OUH was 3.56% at the
end of September 2015. This year the Trust believes
that it has considerably improved data quality in this
area following the introduction of FirstCare – an
absence management tool that fully integrates with
absence procedures and processes.

Apr-15

May-15

June-15

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sept-15

13.51%

13.70%

13.56%

13.71%

13.71%

13.58%

STAFF TURNOVER, APRIL - SEPTEMBER 2015

13.75
13.70

							
13.65
							
13.60

Significant changes have taken place in how OUH
manages sickness absence over the past year, with the
introduction of a more robust Absence Management
Procedure, improved processes and links to
Occupational Health services and an increased focus
on health and wellbeing initiatives. The introduction
of an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) has
complemented the work of FirstCare.
As a result of these interventions, the organisation
has moved from an ethos of absence management
to attendance improvement. Improved reporting of
sickness absence, in real time, through FirstCare has
enabled line managers to act quickly and consistently
in supporting staff to return to health and work as
quickly as possible.

						
							
13.55
							
13.50
							
Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15
Jul 15 Aug 15
							

Sep 15

Recruitment and retention
Within the context of the prevailing national and local
economic climate, the recruitment and retention of
staff remains challenging.
We face pressures associated with the high cost
of living in Oxford, and retention of our staff is
adversely affected by the Trust’s relative proximity
to the London NHS market where salaries attract a
weighting (high cost area supplement) equating to
as much as 20% of basic pay. Oxford is recognised
as being one of the least affordable cities in which
to live, due to high property prices and rental costs
regarded as being among the highest in the country.
We acknowledge the impact of continuing rises in the
cost of living and lower annual pay increases within
the public sector. We have introduced initiatives in
response, including the introduction of new rates
of pay for staff who work on our internal bank in a
flexible or part-time capacity helping to cover shifts
or short-term vacancies. The Trust also continues to
apply a range of flexible working practices, including
the application of part-time hours, term-time
contracts and job sharing arrangements, wherever the
particular requests of individuals can be met without
compromising our service delivery.
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Other benefits include salary sacrifice schemes for
car and bicycle leases, a home technology scheme,
retirement vouchers; nursery school vouchers;
discounts from a number of local and national
retailers; and the provision of competitively priced
on-site accommodation.

Education, learning and development
An important aspect of being a leading teaching
hospital is our continuing commitment to support
and educate the future workforce of the NHS. A key
priority is to ensure staff have access to professional
development opportunities and career advancement.
This year we developed and launched the OUH Learning
and Education Strategy for 2015-2020, outlining how
we intend to improve the quality of learning, education
and training provision within our Trust.

The strategy will provide:
l 	career-enhancing

education – ensuring careers
are developed and sustained so that our workforce
meets current and future patient needs;
l 	talent and leadership development –
developing and retaining effective and inspirational
leaders who are focused on delivering our Trust’s
mission, vision and values through engaged teams;
l 	quality and patient safety – the need to
continuously improve quality and safety standards
informs our learning.
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We will deliver this through:
innovative learning – using technology where
appropriate to enhance learning opportunities;
l 	learning together – making sure that we
maximise interdisciplinary work and effective
teamwork, knowing that this will bring the greatest
dividends for patients;
l 	developing inspiring learning environments –
improving our estate and infrastructure support to
encourage high quality learning and education.
l

Currently education and training is delivered in a
variety of ways to help meet the learning preferences
of individuals, including blended learning with the use
of e-learning programmes and video conferencing.
We work with our academic partners to provide
pre-registration nursing and midwifery education to
around 400 student nurses and midwives and 800
trainee doctors.
Leaders continue to access the core professional
programmes sponsored by the NHS Leadership
Academy and programmes delivered by Health
Education Thames Valley. In addition, we have
sought to widen participation in the Trust’s Support
Worker Academy, through which care support
workers are encouraged to undertake a programme
of education which leads to the award of the
higher certificate of fundamental care. Launched in
2012, the Support Worker Academy is also active
in recruitment; providing career and progression
advice; and promoting apprenticeship opportunities
within the Trust. We offer a range of apprenticeship
options in clinical and non-clinical areas. The OUH
young apprenticeship programme offers a fixed-term
contract with training and assessment provided by
locally-based established training providers, a workbased supervisor, a manager and the OUH Support
Worker Academy.

Staff health and wellbeing

Promoting public health to staff

We recognise that a healthy and well-motivated
workforce is fundamental to the delivery of good
care. To this end, we have increased provision of
health and wellbeing support and advice to staff
through the activities of our Centre for Occupational
Health and Wellbeing which provides health
promotion and support from occupational health,
back care and physiotherapy staff.

The Trust’s Public Health Strategy aims to create a
health-promoting environment in which healthy
lifestyles and choices are promoted to our staff,
patients and visitors at every opportunity.

A number of initiatives have been delivered during
2015/16 to promote healthier lifestyle choices for all
employees. The initiatives are aimed at supporting
staff to make small healthy changes through:
l 	increasing

physical activity with newly designed
walk-to-work routes and cycle routes;
l 	encouraging staff to take the stairs rather than the
lifts;
l 	lunchtime walks and pedometer challenges;
l 	charity physical activity events;
l 	taking part in on-site activity classes;
l 	promoting local leisure facilities which offer
reduced gym membership.

Activities include training staff to deliver health
promotion advice to colleagues with the aim of
developing a network of health champions across
the Trust and exploring healthier food options across
Trust sites.
This year the Trust has prioritised the Mentally Healthy
Workplace programme to support staff in managing
stress, build resilience and to promote mental health
training for staff. A new Mindfulness research
project took place this year and we are maintaining
focus on staff mental health through a policy which
outlines procedures for identification of mental health
problems, plus support and referral.

FITNESS IN THE WORKPLACE
Staff at all four of the Trust’s hospitals are
encouraged towards fit and active lunch breaks as part
of an ongoing campaign to incorporate fitness into the
working day.
In June 2015, the Healthy Hospitals project promoted
a healthier lifestyle for healthcare professionals across
the Trust, by giving staff the opportunity to try out
Zumba, Nordic walking and rounders as part of the national Workout at Work Week campaign.
Workout at Work Week, launched by the Chartered Society of Physiotherapy, aims to encourage
physical and mental wellbeing by promoting the importance of being physically active including
during days at work.
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Staff engagement, recognition and consultation
Awards and recognition

Values-based engagement

Dozens of awards were handed out as part of
our annual Staff Recognition Awards in 2015 at a
number of local divisional events, with overall winners
announced at a special Awards evening at Oxford
Town Hall in December. The event showcases the
great work going on across the Trust’s four hospitals
and recognises the outstanding achievements, hard
work and dedication shown by individuals and teams
every day of the year. The overall winners were
chosen from more than 700 nominations. The award
categories covered: Excellence; Care and Compassion;
Improvement to Services; Leadership; Working
in Partnership; Team of the Year; Outstanding
Achievement; Supporter of the Year. A further 50
nominations were received from Oxford Mail readers,
for the Oxford Mail Hospital Heroes Awards, which
recognised staff and volunteers who had ‘gone the
extra mile’.

As part of our strategy to deliver excellence and
compassion in all that we do, the Trust has introduced
‘Values Based Interviewing’ which incorporates the
Trust values into the recruitment process to assess
candidates’ alignment and support for the values we
hold.
Training has also been introduced for staff to develop
skills and techniques for ‘values based conversations’
with their staff in the workplace.
Our aim is to continuously improve the quality of
patient care through greater alignment of individual
and organisational values. Through adopting a
values-based approach to customer care we believe
we will have more staff who adopt a person-centred
approach to providing safe and compassionate care.
The design of the Delivering Compassionate Care
programme, aimed at frontline staff, is in progress,
with pilot schemes underway. The project aims to
help staff better support patients and their families at
times of great vulnerability.
The programme provides staff with tools to adapt their
communication and approach depending on the needs
of the patient and to understand the impact that staff
behaviours and attitudes may have on a vulnerable
person.

Team Award Winner
Upper Gastrointestinal Team
Churchill Hospital
Gold Award for Excellence
Lorraine Clark
Laboratory Manager and
Head Biomedical Scientist
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The NHS Staff Survey
The annual NHS Staff Survey is an important means
by which the views of staff working in the NHS
inform local improvements and input to local and
national assessments of quality, safety, and delivery
of the NHS Constitution. The Survey covers five key
themes relating to the working environment and
individuals’ experience within the workplace, namely:
l 	personal

development
job
l 	immediate and senior managers
l 	the organisation
l 	personal health, wellbeing and safety at work.
l 	the

The 2015 Staff Survey was undertaken between
September and November. All directly employed staff
received a survey questionnaire, which they were
encouraged to complete and submit. 3,298 members
of staff took part in this year’s survey, representing an
overall response rate of 30%, which represents a 2%
decrease compared with the 2014 Survey.
A total of 60 questions were used in both the
2014 and 2015 surveys. The 2015 results compare
relatively favourably with the previous year. Within
the five Survey domain areas, questions relating to
immediate managers, senior managers, feedback
from management, communication and support
from management show the greatest improvement.
Improvement is also evident in responses associated
with questions concerned with individuals’ experience
of team working, involvement in decision making,
job satisfaction, and how engaged they feel in
their respective roles. The one question for which
responses are significantly worse (i.e. >/=5%
difference) relates to training or development
needs not being identified as part of the appraisal /
performance review.

The degree to which staff are willing to recommend
their organisation both as a place for their friends and
families to be treated, and as a place to work, are
strong indicators of staff engagement and motivation.
75% of those responding agreed or strongly agreed
that they would recommend their hospital to family
and friends as a place to be treated, against a
national average for all acute trusts of 69%. This is an
important endorsement, because providing excellent
and compassionate care for our patients is our most
important priority. Fewer staff, though, would
recommend our Trust as a place to work, at 60%. This
highlights that further improvements need to be made
to the working environment, and the views of staff
need to be elicited, listened to and acted upon.

Staff engagement
The Staff Survey also provides for an overall staff
engagement score. This score is based on nine
questions relating to three specific areas: advocacy,
involvement and motivation. Possible scores range
from one to five, with one indicating that staff are
poorly engaged with their work, their team and their
organisation, and five indicating a highly engaged
workforce. The Trust’s staff engagement score of 3.8
reflects a continued upward trend across the last fiveyear period, although against the national benchmark
results show a slight decline compared to 2014.
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National comparison
OUH is required to identify a statistically representative
sample of the workforce, consisting of 850
substantive employees, to be used for the purposes of
national benchmarking information and comparison.
Against this national reporting, and the much smaller
number of respondents associated with this sample,
the most significant improvement has been made
in the completion of annual appraisals, where 88%
of staff confirm they have participated, against a
national average of 86%. OUH is in the highest (best)
20% of acute trusts for staff feeling they are able to
contribute towards improvements at work. OUH was
above average for acute trusts in England in ten of
the Survey’s 32 Key Findings.
Across the remaining 32 Key Findings there is no
statistically significant change compared with the
2014 outcomes.
There are other areas that have been identified
as needing improvement throughout the Trust,
for example staff receiving job relevant training,
the number of staff that report errors and staff
motivation at work.
The outcomes of the annual Staff Survey are
extremely useful in confirming how staff feel about
their experiences at work, their working environment,
their level of motivation and the degree to which they
feel valued and involved in decision-making. Based
upon the direct feedback provided by over 3,000
members of staff, it is evident that progress is being
made across many areas and scores have improved
against over half of the Survey questions. Similarly,
the continued increase in the Trust’s overall staff
engagement score is positive. However, responses
to a number of questions give rise to concern which
form the focus and basis for improvement in 2016.
We will continue to use the feedback provided by
our employees, through the annual NHS Staff Survey
and Staff Friends and Family Test, to address areas of
concern and to make further improvements to the
working environments and experiences of our staff.
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NATIONAL COMPARISON

NHS Survey for 2015 OUH – top ranking scores
(compares favourably with other acute trusts
in England)

2015
score

% of staff experiencing physical violence from
staff in last 12 months

1%

% of staff able to contribute towards
improvements at work

73%

% staff feeling pressure to attend work
when feeling unwell

51%

% of staff witnessing potentially harmful errors,
near misses or incidents

26%

% of staff experiencing physical violence from
patients, relatives or public

12%

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT

Areas for improvement
(compares least favourably with all other
acute trusts in England)

2015
score

% of staff reporting errors, near misses or incidents 84%
Quality of non-mandatory training, learning and
development (score out of 5)

3.96

Fairness and effectiveness of procedures for
reporting errors, near misses and incidents
(score out of 5)

3.64

% of staff agreeing that their role makes a
difference to patients / service users

89%

Staff motivation at work (score out of 5)

3.86

Staff Friends and Family Test
The degree to which staff are willing to recommend
their organisation both as a place for their friends and
families to be treated, and as a place to work, are
strong indicators of staff engagement and motivation.
These key areas of advocacy are included within
the annual NHS Staff Survey and also tested as part
of the quarterly Staff Friends and Family Test (Staff
FFT), which was first introduced in June 2014. The
results, including free text comments provided by
individuals, are reported at the Workforce Committee
and disseminated through divisional management
structures.
With respect to the two key advocacy questions
associated with the annual NHS Staff Survey,
compared with the national scores the Trust’s
performance is as follows.

The Trust strives to improve these scores, and
therefore the quality of its services, by:
l 	using

both the national Staff Survey and Staff FFT
data to inform the internal peer review process;
l 	more widely publicising the data through local
communication channels at ward level, to ensure it
is more visible to staff;
l 	inviting staff to contribute to the development and
implementation of local divisional and corporate
improvement plans.
Staff Survey focus groups held in early 2015 provided
a good engagement opportunity for individuals
and teams to review the results and determine local
priorities for action.

Recommendation of the organisation as a
place to be treated
OUH scores

National scores 2015/16
acute trusts

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

Average

Highest

Lowest

67%

77%

70%

75%

69%

85%

46%

Recommendation of the organisation as a
place to work
OUH scores

National scores 2015/16
acute trusts

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

Average

Highest

Lowest

54%

67%

58%

60%

61%

78%

42%
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Raising concerns

Our commitment to a diverse workplace

In its commitment to providing the highest standards
of care and service for our patients and visitors, the
Trust takes very seriously its responsibility for ensuring
all members of staff feel confident and supported
in being able to speak up when they believe these
standards are being compromised, or could be
compromised. We have clear processes to ensure
that our staff feel able and safe to raise concerns,
and have confidence they will be listened to and their
concerns acted upon.

As a responsible employer and provider of healthcare
services, we are committed to recognising, valuing
and supporting the diverse range of staff we employ
and patients we care for. Our aim is to treat all
patients, visitors and staff with dignity and respect
and learn from occasions when our actions have
fallen short of our high expectations. We recognise
our responsibility to provide (as far as is reasonably
practicable) job security of all employees.

Where such issues are raised, they are generally
addressed quickly and efficiently through our
established processes detailed in the Trust’s Raising
Concerns Policy. Under the terms of the policy,
and in his capacity as Director of Organisational
Development and Workforce, Mark Power has a
guardianship role in support of any employee who
wishes to raise an issue of concern. In the interests
of continuous improvement and learning, speaking
up should be something that everyone does and
is encouraged to do. Our Trust policy is frequently
updated to ensure it fully supports this aim.

Staff consultation and negotiation
Consultation and negotiation between management
and staff at the Trust is conducted through a joint
consultative negotiation committee which includes
a mix of trades union representatives and elected
staff representatives who meet on a monthly basis.
The purpose is to provide a constructive forum for
discussion and exchange of views, and to consult on
matters of common interest with regard to the Trust
and its business. It provides an opportunity for staff
to present their view and influence key Trust issues
and decisions.

Through adherence to the requirements of the
Equality Act 2010, the public sector equality duty and
the NHS Constitution provisions, the Trust strives to:
l 	eliminate

unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation
l 	advance equality of opportunity between different
groups and
l 	foster good relations between people.
Our policies ensure full and fair consideration of
applications for employment made by disabled
persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities; for continuing the employment of, and
for arranging appropriate training for, employees who
have become disabled persons during the period; and
for the training, career development and promotion
of disabled employees.
Our policies aim to ensure that no job applicant or
employee receives less favourable treatment where it
cannot be shown to be justifiable on the grounds of:
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
l
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age
disability
gender reassignment
marriage and civil partnership
pregnancy and maternity
race
religion or belief
sex
sexual orientation.

The Equality Delivery System (EDS2) is designed
to support NHS providers to deliver better health
outcomes for patients and communities and better
working environments for staff, which are personal,
fair and diverse. The Trust has been using this system
as a tool to benchmark compliance with the Equality
Act 2010 and to support the development of its
equality and diversity objectives.
Equality and diversity is a core component of the
Trust’s statutory and mandatory training for all staff.

Bronze Standard Award
In 2014, the Trust was proud to be awarded a Bronze
Standard Award for its work and commitment to
equality and inclusion by the Employers Network
for Equality and Inclusion (ENEI). This followed the
benchmarking of our performance against five key
areas of equality and diversity:
l
l
l
l
l

organisational commitment and leadership;
knowing your workforce;
integrating equality, diversity and inclusion;
external relations and suppliers;
organisational improvements.

Support for disabled
employees

Consultancy expenditure
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
expenditure on consultancy. For the purposes of
this report, ‘consultancy’ is defined as in the NHS
Manual for Accounts (strategy; finance; organisational
and change management; IT; property and
construction; procurement; legal services; marketing
and communications; HR, training and education;
programme and project management; technical). The
expenditure incurred in the period 1 April 2015 to 30
September 2015 was £1,981,000.

Off-payroll engagements
In accordance with the HM Treasury annual reporting
guidance the Trust is required to report the number
of off-payroll engagements. At 30 September 2015
there were ten off-payroll engagements for more
than £220 per day that lasted for longer than six
months, of which three have existed for less than one
year, three for between one and two years and four
for between two and three years. There were three
new engagements between 1 April 2015 and
30 September 2015, none of them at Board member /
senior officers with significant financial responsibility
level. Assurance has been received about all
engagements in relation to income tax and national
insurance.

The Trust’s ongoing commitment to
the employment of disabled people
has been recognised and we continue to be awarded
the ‘Two Ticks’ disability symbol by Jobcentre Plus
for a further twelve months. This demonstrates
our commitment to ensuring that our recruitment
processes do not disadvantage disabled applicants,
and that we actively support employees who have a
disability and help those who become disabled to stay
in employment. We review our plans and activities
in support of disabled people annually, and ensure
disability awareness for all employees.
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Exit packages (information subject to audit)
The tables below discloses the total of all staff exit packages agreed in the six months to 30 September 2015.
EXIT PACKAGES
Exit package
Number of
Cost of
Number of
Cost of other Total number Total cost of
Number of
cost band
compulsory
compulsory
other
departures
of exit
exit packages departures
(including
redundancies redundancies departures
agreed
packages		
where special
any special 			agreed				payments
payment 							have been
element)							made.
number

£s

number

£s

number

£s

Less than
£10,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

£10,000 £25,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

£25,001 £50,000

3

113,987

0

0

3

113,987

0

0

0

0

0

0

£100,001£150,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

£150001£200,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

>£200,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

Totals

3

113,987

0

0

3

113,987

£50,001 £100,000

number

Cost of special
payment
element
included in
exit packages

£s

EXIT PACKAGES

Agreements

Total value of agreements

Number

‘£000

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs

0

0

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs

0

0

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

0

0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders

0

0

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval

0

0

Total

0

0
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Redundancy and other departure costs have been
paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS
Pension Scheme. Exit costs in this note are accounted
for in full in the year of departure. Where the Trust
has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are
met by the Trust and not by the NHS Pension Scheme.
Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension
Scheme and are not included in the table.
This disclosure reports the number and value of exit
packages agreed in the six months to 30 September
2015. Note: the expense associated with these
departures may have been recognised in part or in full
in a previous period.
As a single exit package can be made up of several
components each of which will be counted separately
in this note, the total number above will not
necessarily match the total numbers in note 10.4 of
the Accounts which will be the number of individuals.
No non-contractual payments were made to
individuals where the payment value was more than
12 months’ of their annual salary.				
							

Information subject to audit – salary
and pension entitlements of senior
managers
The table on page 84 shows the salary and pension
entitlements of senior managers in the revised
technical format adopted in 2013/14 and is subject
to audit. It should be noted that the total for the
year includes salary, expense payments, performance
related pay, and derived increase in capital value
of pension benefits at pension age, calculated
using legislated relevant valuation factor of 20 on
annual pension at pension age, plus lump sum at
pension age. This does not reflect an increase in
remuneration during 2015/16 but an annual pension
value multiplied by a notional value of 20 which
may be realised following retirement. This approach
is mandated in the guidance produced by the NHS
Business Services Authority – Disclosure of Senior
Managers Remuneration (Greenbury) 2015. The
pension benefit table on page 69 sets out the Cash
Equivalent Transfer Values.
The remuneration of the Chairman and the Nonexecutive directors is set by the Appointment
Commission.
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(bands of
£2,500)
£000

Professor Mant status change on 1 October from Associate Non-executive Director to Non-executive Director
Resigned from Oxford University Hospitals (October 2015)
Performance-related pay relates to clinical excellence awards
Resigned from Oxford University Hospitals (30 September 2015)
Acting Chief Nurse covering August 2013 to September 2014

* See page 65 for further information relating to performance related payments

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

NOTES

Ms Liz Wright5
Ms Catherine Stoddart

Dr Tony Berendt3
Mr Andrew Stevens
Mr Paul Brennan
Mr Mark Trumper4
Ms Eileen Walsh
Mr Mark Power

10-15
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5
0-5

to the
nearest £100
£00

Expense
payment
Taxable
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(bands of
£2,500)
£000

Performance- Long-term All pensionrelated pay performancerelated
related pay
benefits

20-25
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10
5-10

Total inc all
pensionrelated
benefits
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

40-45			
145-150		

* Mark Mansfield is signing this report as the Deputy Chief
Executive. Sir Jonathan Michael, the Chief Executive and
Accountable Officer for the period covered by this report,
retired on 5 October 2015.

235-237.5

275-280
145-150

355-360
240-245
275-280
140-145
145-150
225-230

30-35			 275-280
10-15		
162.5-165 345-350

170-175		 35-40		150-152.5
125-130		
5-10		
107.5-110
155-160
54
10-15		
105-107.5
125-130
60
5-10			
115-120		
15-20		
10-12.5
125-130
80			
92.5-95

215-220
250
170-175		

20-25			
5-10			
5-10			
5-10			
5-10
5		
5-10			
5-10			
5-10					

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Salary

2014/15

Mr Mark Mansfield
Deputy Chief Executive and
Director of Finance and Procurement*
31 March 2016

Chief Executive
120-125
125
30-35			 165-170
Executive Director of Finance and
85-90		
10-15		
2.5-5
105-110
Procurement					
Medical Director
105-110		 15-20		 30-32.5
155-160
Director of Planning and Information
60-65		
5-10		
0-2.5
70-75
Director of Clinical Services
75-80
32
10-15		
0-2.5
90-95
Director of Development and the Estate
60-65
30
5-10			
70-75
Director of Assurance
55-60		
5-10		
7.5-10
75-80
Director of Organisational Development
60-65		
5-10
5-7.5
75-80
and Workforce					
Acting Chief Nurse				
Chief Nurse
70-75		
10-15
80-85

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Total inc all
pensionrelated
benefits
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Sir Jonathan Michael2
Mr Mark Mansfield

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

10-15			
0-5			
0-5			
0-5			
0-5			
0-5			
0-5			
0-5			

to the
nearest £100
£00

(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Performance- Long-term All pensionrelated pay performancerelated
related pay
benefits

Chairman
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Associate Non-executive Director

Expense
payment
taxable

Salary

2015/16 (Six months to 30 September 2015)

Dame Fiona Caldicott
Mr Geoffrey Salt
Mr Alisdair Cameron
Professor Sir John Bell
Mrs Anne Tutt
Mr Peter Ward
Mr Christopher Goard
Professor David Mant1

Name and title

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

TRUST BOARD
MEMBERS
1 APRIL 2015 – 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
Sir Jonathan Michael

Dame Fiona Caldicott

Chief Executive

Chairman

Dr Tony Berendt

Mr Paul Brennan

Mr Mark Mansfield

Mr Mark Power

Mr Andrew Stevens

Medical Director

Director of
Clinical Services

Director of Finance
and Procurement

Director of Organisational
Development and Workforce

Director of Planning
and Information

Ms Catherine Stoddart

Mr Mark Trumper

Ms Eileen Walsh

Mr Geoffrey Salt

Professor Sir John Bell

Chief Nurse

Director of Development
and the Estate

Director of Assurance

Vice Chairman

Non-executive
Director

Mr Alisdair Cameron

Mr Christopher Goard

Professor David Mant

Mrs Anne Tutt

Mr Peter Ward

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Assoc. Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director

Non-executive
Director
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WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP
We recognise that delivering excellence for our patients, our staff, the NHS
and its partners can best be achieved by full engagement and participation
in the way we shape and deliver our services. We are supported by an army
of volunteers, and we also work with charitable organisations to support
community engagement and to share knowledge and expertise.
Our members and Council of Governors

Supporting your hospital charity

During 2015/16, we have continued to invite our
patients and the public to become members of
the Trust to help us shape the way we operate and
deliver our health services. Foundation Trusts are
different from other NHS Trusts in that they have a
membership, like a building society or co-operative,
drawn from the communities they serve and the staff
who work for them. This membership is involved in
setting the future direction for the Trust.

Making a difference across our hospitals

Anyone living in our catchment area, and aged over
16, can become a member and get involved in the
Trust. Children and young people can get involved
through our Young People’s Executive (YiPpEe).
We have more than 8,400 public members, along
with a staff membership of around 12,000. As part
of our process to become a Foundation Trust, we
elected from our membership our first Council of
Governors in ‘shadow’ form in February 2015. The
Council of Governors is made up of 29 governors,
plus a Chairman who is also the Chairman of the
Trust’s Board of Directors. There are 15 elected public
governors, six elected staff governors, and eight
governors appointed by local organisations with
which the Trust works closely.
You can find out more about our governors on our
website at www.ouh.nhs.uk/ft

The charity helps to make our hospitals an even better
place for thousands of patients each year – making a
difference for young and old at their time of greatest
need.
Ground-breaking medical research, enhanced
facilities, specialist staff training and pioneering
medical equipment are all made possible by your
generous support of Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals
Charitable Funds.
We raise funds for departments and wards across
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust, including the
John Radcliffe, Churchill, Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre,
Horton General and Oxford Children's Hospitals.
Donors can support whichever area is closest to their
heart – be it an individual ward, research fund or
major new project at one of our hospitals.
In the first half of the 2015 financial year over
£1.6 million was raised, thanks to many generous
donations, legacy gifts through wills and numerous
fundraising events.
Our successful community events – such as abseils
and golf days – engaged hundreds of people from
across the region and raised significant funds for
diverse causes across the hospitals.
A successful legacy event led to generous pledges
of future support and helped to publicise this very
important area of giving. The charity also launched
an appeal to re-design and refurbish the Day Surgery
Unit at the Churchill Hospital.
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A greater focus on broader support for our General
Funds which benefit the areas of greatest need across
our hospitals was introduced, and the new Hidden
Heroes appeal, which supports initiatives to thank and
develop our staff, was created.
Our website carries information about all of our
upcoming fundraising events.
Visit www.hospitalcharity.co.uk to find out more,
or pick up a copy of our fundraising magazine,
TORCH, which is available across all of our hospitals.
We are very grateful to everyone who supports their
local hospital’s causes with such generosity and
enthusiasm. To find out how you can get involved
with fundraising, please get in touch:
Phone: 01865 743444
Email: charity@ouh.nhs.uk
Visit: www.hospitalcharity.co.uk
Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals Charitable Funds
(registered charity no 1057295) supports the work of
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust.

Our volunteers and supporters
Our volunteers continue to provide additional help
and support to staff which ultimately improves the
patient, family and service user experience. They
assist in numerous ways including helping ward
staff at meal times, directing patients and visitors to
their destinations, assisting within Chaplaincy and
Charitable Funds and supporting departments with
administrative duties.
The Trust has a Voluntary Services Department that
manages volunteer recruitment, work experience
applications and the work experience programme.
They continue to identify, increase and enhance
volunteering opportunities across the four hospital
sites working in conjunction with managers and
departments.
We are very proud of, and grateful to, our loyal
volunteers along with our Host Charitable Volunteer
Organisations which support the hospital-based
League of Friends, Radio Cherwell, Radio Horton, the
British Red Cross and Support for the Sick Newborn
and their Parents (SSNAP) as well as Sobell House
Hospice Charity, and Maggie's Centre Oxford.
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Meet

Avneet

Avneet has started as a Junior Doctor working in Geriatrics at the Horton
General Hopsital. This is the first year of her foundation training and she
will move on to vascular surgery and then acute medicine in Oxford before
she has to make decisions about her F2 foundation year. At such an
early stage in her career, it’s a credit to her resilience that she took
her medical elective in the Himalayas – with the Himalaya Health
Exchange – where she worked with doctors from the USA to help
set up and run surgery camps. This entailed moving on every
day and establishing a new, 24-hour 'pop up' surgery
for the next village. She has a travel bug and so far
Cuba and Sri Lanka are highlights.
New Zealand is firmly on her
bucket list.
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➎

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND NOTES
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Explanation of Financial Terminology
The format of the accounts is specified by the Department
of Health and reflects the adoption of the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) by the NHS. A glossary
of the terms used in the Annual Report is outlined below.
This covers the terms used in the financial statements and
in the Financial Review.
The four primary statements as specified by the NHS Trust
Manual for accounts are:
• Statement of Comprehensive Income
• Statement of Financial Position (previously known
as the Balance Sheet)
• Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
• Statement of Cash Flows
The annual accounts also include:
•
•
•
•

A foreword
Notes to the accounts
The Director's Statement of Responsibilities
The auditor’s report.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income records
the Trust’s income and expenditure for the year, together
with any other recognised gains and losses in summary
form. It includes cash-related items such as expenditure
on staff and supplies as well as non-cash items such as a
change in value of the Trust’s assets. If income exceeds
expenditure, the Trust has a surplus for the year and if
expenditure exceeds income, there is a deficit.

Terms used within the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
•	
Revenue for patient care activities: this includes all
income from patient care, the largest element of which is
from the clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) and NHS
England. Other sources of income include private patient
income and overseas patients.
• O
 ther operating revenue: includes non-patient-related
income including education, training and research
funding.
•	
Operating expenses: this includes the costs of staff,
supplies, premises and services received from other
organisations.
• Investment revenue: this shows the interest received
from bank accounts.
• O
 ther gains and losses: this shows the gain or (loss)
on the sale of an asset compared with the asset’s value
as recorded in the Statement of Financial Position.
• F inance costs: this includes any bank interest payable
and the interest on PFI obligations.
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• P
 ublic dividend capital dividends payable: this is the
dividend payable to the Department of Health to reflect
the public equity invested in the Trust.
•	
Retained surplus (deficit): this shows whether the
Trust has achieved its financial target to break even
for the year. This is different from the statutory duty
to break even ‘taking one year with another’ which is
measured over three or, exceptionally, five years.
• Impairments and reversals: this shows reductions
(or impairments) compared to asset values previously
recorded in the Statement of Financial Position.
•	
Gains on revaluation: this shows increases compared
to asset values previously recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position.
•	
Receipt of donated / government granted assets: is
the value of assets donated during the year to the Trust
or financed by non-Department of Health government
grants.
The Statement of Financial Position which was
previously known as the Balance Sheet provides a snapshot
of the Trust’s financial position at a specific date, which in
this case is the end of the financial year. It lists assets (what
the Trust owns or is owed), liabilities (what the Trust owes)
and taxpayers' equity (the amount of public funds invested
in the Trust). At any given time, the Trust’s total assets less
its total liabilities must equal the taxpayers' equity.

Terms used in the Statement of
Financial Position
•	
Non-current assets: these are assets which the Trust
expects to keep for more than one year.
• Intangible assets: these are assets such as computer
software licences and patents which, although they have
a continuing value to the Trust, do not have a physical
existence.
• T
 rade and other receivables: these are amounts owed
to the NHS Trust and are analysed between those due
over 12 months (non-current) and those due within
12 months (current).
•	
Current assets: these are assets which the Trust expects
to keep for less than one year.
• Inventories: these are stock such as theatre consumables.
•	
Non-current assets held for sale: these are long- term
assets (such as land) which the Trust expects to sell shortly.
• C
 urrent liabilities: these reflect monies the Trust owes,
including invoices it has not yet paid but which it expects
to pay within a year.

• T
 rade and other payables: these are amounts which
the NHS Trust owes and are analysed between those due
to be paid within 12 months (current) and those due to
be paid after more than 12 months (non-current).
•	
Borrowings: these are amounts which the NHS Trust
owes and are analysed between those due to be paid
within 12 months (current), and those due to be paid
after more than 12 months (non-current); they include
items such as bank overdrafts, loans and the loan
element of PFI schemes.
•	
Provisions: these are liabilities where the amount and /
or timing are uncertain. Whilst there has been no cash
payment, the Trust anticipates making a payment at a
future date and so its net assets are reduced accordingly.
•	
Non-current liabilities: these reflect monies the Trust
owes that it expects to settle after more than 12 months.
•	
Public dividend capital: the taxpayers' stake in the
Trust, arising from the government’s original investment
in the Trust when it was first created.
• R
 etained earnings: these are the aggregate surpluses
or deficit the Trust has made in former years.
•	
Revaluation reserve: this shows the increase in the
value of the assets owned by the Trust.
The Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
essentially shows the movement from the previous year
on reserves and public dividend capital. It represents the
taxpayers' investment in the Trust.
•	
Prior period adjustment: reflects adjustments made
in an accounting period prior to that to which the
statement refers.
•	
Impairments and reversals: reflects reductions in asset
values compared to asset values previously recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position.
The Statement of Cash Flows summarises the cash
flows of the Trust during the year. It analyses the cash flows
under the headings of operating, investing and financing
cash flows.

Terms used in the Statement
of Cash Flows
•	
Depreciation and amortisation: these are the noncash items included within the operating surplus and
they need to be removed to give the movement in
cash during the year. As an example, depreciation is an
accounting charge to reflect the use of capital assets
and does not involve cash; hence it is added back to the
operating surplus / deficit.
• Impairments and reversals: reflects reductions in asset
values compared to asset values previously recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position. These are the noncash items included within the operating surplus and
they need to be removed to give the movement in cash
during the year.
• Increase / (decrease) in provisions: provisions
are liabilities where the amount and / or timing are
uncertain. Whilst there has been no cash payment, a
change in the amount set aside for provisions impacts on
the operating surplus and hence needs to be adjusted for
to calculate the movement in cash during the year.
•	
Net cash inflow from operating activities: reflects
the amount of cash received resulting from the Trust’s
normal operating activities.
•	
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities:
reflects the amount of cash received / (paid) as a result of
cash transactions that are not directly related to operating
activities, for example purchasing new assets.
•	
Capital element of finance leases and PFI: where an
asset is financed through PFI or a finance lease, a liability
is shown on the Statement of Financial Position. This is
the annual repayment of the capital part of that loan
which is part of the unitary payment but not recorded as
an expense in the statement of Comprehensive Income.
•	
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing: reflects
the amount of cash received / (paid) as a result of cash
transactions that are related to the financing of the Trust.
The Department of Health sets a limit on the amount of
external finance a trust can obtain. This is known as the
External Financing Limit (EFL).

Annual Report April - September 2015 Page 91

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Trust is required to produce two sets of accounts
for 2015/16. The first set cover the period from
1 April to 30 September when Oxford University
Hospitals was an NHS trust. The second set of
accounts covers the period from 1 October 2015 to
31 March 2016 and follows the authorisation of
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust on
1 October 2015.
These accounts cover the six months from 1 April 2015
to 30 September 2015 and have been prepared by
Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust under section
232 (schedule 15) of the National Health Service Act
2006 in the form which the Secretary of State has,
with the approval of the Treasury, directed.
The Audit Certificate is included within the accounts.

Mark Mansfield, Director of Finance and Procurement
31 March 2016
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Foreword to the Accounts
The Trust made a deficit of £5.6 million against the
break even duty for the six months to 30 September
2015. The accounts record a surplus of £3.0 million;
the difference of £8.6 million relates to technical
treatments associated with accounting for Private
Finance Initiatives’ schemes, elimination of the
donated asset / government grant reserve and
revaluations of assets which are each excluded by
Monitor when considering the performance of the
Trust.
Six months to
30.9.15
£ million
Retained surplus / (deficit) for the period
IFRIC*12 adjustment
Impairments / reverse impairments
Adjustments in the region of donated asset
Reported NHS finance performance
position (adjusted retained surplus)

3.0
0.2
(9.9)
1.1
(5.6)

* IFRIC stands for the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee. It is the Interpretations Committee for
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the six months ended
30 September 2015

NOTE
Gross employee benefits
Other operating costs
Revenue from patient care activities
Other operating revenue
Operating surplus/(deficit)
Investment revenue
Other gains and (losses)
Finance costs
Surplus/(deficit) for the accounting period
Public dividend capital dividends payable
Transfers by absorption - gains
Transfers by absorption - (losses)
Net Gain/(loss) on transfers by absorption
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the accounting period

(267,591)
(184,657)
393,742
75,487
16,981

(512,915)
(385,857)
771,064
145,191
17,483

12
13
14

136
(28)
(10,064)
7,025
(4,059)
0
0
0
2,966

310
(14)
(20,734)
(2,955)
(7,081)
0
0
0
(10,036)
Twelve months
ending 31
March 2015

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
SOCITE
SOCITE

Financial performance for the accounting period

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the accounting period
Prior period adjustment to correct errors and other performance
adjustments
IFRIC 12 adjustment (including IFRIC 12 impairments)
Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments)
Adjustments in respect of donated gov't grant asset reserve
elimination
Adjustment re absorption accounting
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit)

£000s

10.1
8
5
6

Other Comprehensive Income

Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Other gain /(loss) (explain in footnote below)
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial
assets
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes
Other pension remeasurements
Reclassification adjustments
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Total Other Comprehensive Income
Total comprehensive income for the accounting period

Twelve months
ending 31
March 2015

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

38

£000s

0
26,154
0
0
0
0

(52,932)
34,128
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
26,154
29,120

0
(18,804)
(28,840)

2,966
0

(10,036)
0

(5,444)
(4,276)
1,140

(8,671)
27,873
2,326

0
(5,614)

0
11,492

A summary of the adjustments to the Financial Performance for the accounting period is as follows:
The IFRIC12 adjustment arises from a comparison of what the charge to the statement of comprehensive
income would have been for the Trust's 3 PFI schemes under UK GAAP (off balance sheet) compared with
IFRS that has been applied since 2009/10 (on balance sheet).
The Trust had its Land and Building Assets revalued by the District Valuer at 30 September 2015. This
resulted in a reverse impairment credit arising from upwards revaluation of assets. Please refer to notes 1.10,
15.1 and 15.3 for further information.
The donated asset adjustment is the net impact to the statement of comprehensive income of donated asset
income and depreciation.
The notes on pages 93 to 140 form part of this account.
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Statement of Financial Position as at
30 September 2015

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Sub-total current assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Provisions
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan
DH capital loan
Total current liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liablilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Provisions
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
DH revenue support loan
DH capital loan
Total non-current liabilities
Total assets employed:

30 September 2015

31 March 2015

£000s

£000s

NOTE

675,315
9,539
0
0
5,562
690,416

652,888
11,211
0
0
5,091
669,190

15,182
46,603
0
0
83,815
145,600
6,750
152,350
842,766

14,715
42,211
0
0
79,383
136,309
0
136,309
805,499

28
29
35
30
31
30
30

(142,978)
0
(1,972)
(8,558)
0
0
(1,404)
(154,912)
(2,562)
687,854

(129,880)
0
(2,476)
(9,470)
0
0
(1,404)
(143,230)
(6,921)
662,269

28
29
35
30
31
30
30

(16,561)
0
(2,680)
(255,787)
0
0
(2,897)
(277,925)
409,929

(16,359)
0
(2,559)
(259,586)
0
0
(3,599)
(282,103)
380,166

208,758
28,050
171,378
1,743
409,929

208,115
25,075
145,233
1,743
380,166

15
16
18
22.1
21
22.1
24
25
26
27

FINANCED BY:
Public Dividend Capital
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Total Taxpayers' Equity:
The notes on pages 97 to 140 form part of this account.
The financial statements on pages 93 to 140 were approved by the Board on 25 May 2016 and
signed on its behalf by
Chief Executive:

Date: 25 May 2016
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity
For the six months ending 30 September 2015

Balance at 1 April 2015
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for period ending 30
September 2015
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the accounting period
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of available for sale financial
assets
Impairments
and reversals
Other gains/(loss) (provide details below)
Transfers between reserves
Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers between Reserves in respect of assets
transferred under absorption
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Originating capital for Trust established in the accounting period
Permanent PDC received - cash
Permanent PDC repaid in the accounting period
PDC written off
Other movements
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension
Other pensions remeasurement
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the accounting period
Balance at 30 September 2015
Balance at 1 April 2014
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for the year ended 31
March 2015
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Other gains / (loss)
Transfers between reserves
Reclassification Adjustments
Transfers to/(from) Other Bodies within the Resource
Transfers between revaluation reserve & retained earnings
reserve in respect of assets transferred under absorption
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Originating capital for Trust established in year
New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash
New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year
Other movements
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension
Other pension remeasurement
Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year
Balance at 31 March 2015

Public
Dividend
capital
£000s
208,115

Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve

Other
reserves

Total
reserves

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

25,075
2,966

145,233

1,743

2,966
26,154

26,154
0
0
0
0

380,166

9

(9)

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

643
208,758

2,975
28,050

208,935

34,413

0

0
643
0
0
0

(10,036)

26,145
171,378

0
0
0
0
1,743

0
0
0
643
0
0
0
0
0
29,763
409,929

164,735

1,743

409,826

0
0
0
(52,932)

0

(10,036)
34,128

34,128

698

(698)

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0

0
980
(1,800)
0

0

0

(820)
208,115

(9,338)
25,075

(19,502)
145,233

0
0
0
0
1,743

0
0
0
(52,932)
0
0
0
0
0
0
980
(1,800)
0
0
0
(29,660)
380,166
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Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended 30 September 2015
Six months
ending 30
September
2015
NOTE
£000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating surplus/(deficit)
SOCI
Depreciation and amortisation
8
Impairments and reversals
17
Other gains/(losses) on foreign exchange
13
Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
6
Government Granted Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s

16,981
17,984
(9,937)
0
(277)
0

17,483
37,792
18,959
0
(1,053)
0

Interest paid
PDC Dividend (paid)/refunded
Release of PFI/deferred credit
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(Decrease) in movement in non cash provisions
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

(10,045)
(2,703)
0
(467)
(5,726)
0
16,533
0
(159)
(242)
21,942

(20,408)
(8,364)
0
(2,908)
(18,289)
0
17,582
0
(608)
(1,088)
39,098

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received
(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment
(Payments) for Intangible Assets
(Payments) for Investments with DH
(Payments) for Other Financial Assets
(Payments) for Financial Assets (LIFT)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE)
Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (Intangible)
Proceeds from Disposal of Investment with DH
Proceeds from Disposal of Other Financial Assets
Proceeds from the disposal of Financial Assets (LIFT)

136
(12,877)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

310
(28,013)
(5,331)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Loans Made in Respect of LIFT
Loans Repaid in Respect of LIFT
Rental Revenue
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

0
0
0
(12,741)

0
0
0
(33,034)

9,201

6,064

643
0
0
0
0
(702)
0
0
(4,710)

980
(1,800)
0
0
0
(1,404)
0
0
(10,905)

0

0

(4,769)

(13,129)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

4,432

(7,065)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of
the Period
Effect of exchange rate changes in the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at the end of the
accounting period

79,383

86,448

0

0

83,815

79,383

Net Cash Inflow / (outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Gross Temporary (2014/15 only) and Permanent PDC Received
Gross Temporary (2014/15 only) and Permanent PDC Repaid
Loans received from DH - New Capital Investment Loans
Loans received from DH - New Revenue Support Loans
Other Loans Received
Loans repaid to DH - Capital Investment Loans Repayment of Principal
Loans repaid to DH - Working Capital Loans/Revenue Support Loans
Other Loans Repaid
Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases and OnSoFP PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts (excluding donated /
government granted cash receipts)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.

Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet the accounting requirements of the
Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the DH Group Manual for Accounts 2015-16 issued by the Department of Health.
The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
Where the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to
the particular circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted
by the trust are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.

1.1

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.2

Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be
‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to
another.

1.3

Movement of assets within the DH Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Treasury FReM. The FReM
does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not
been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no
restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or
loss resulting is recognised in the SOCI, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and
expenditure entries.

1.4

Charitable Funds
Under the provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, those Charitable Funds that fall under common control
with NHS bodies are consolidated within the entity's financial statements. In accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements, restated prior period accounts are presented where the adoption of the new policy has a material impact.
The Trust does not have any Charitable Funds that fall under common control so consolidated accounts are not applicable.

1.5

Pooled Budgets
The Trust does not operate pooled budgets.

1.6

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process
of applying the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
Classification of PFI contracts as on-statement of financial position
The Trust's three PFI schemes have been assessed as on Statement of Financial Position PFIs under IFRIC 12 because the trust has
judged that it controls the services and the residual interest at the end of the service arrangement.
Classification of equipment and property leases between finance and operating
Judgements have been made regarding whether risks and rewards of ownership pass to the lessee under lease arrangements. Where
risks and rewards are transferred, leases have been classified as finance leases.
Capitalisation of staff costs relating to internally generated software
Internally generated software has been capitalised based on the Trust's judgement that incremental developments of the Trust's
Electronic Patient Records system are operational and used to generate economic benefits.
1.6.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
accounting period.
Property valuations
The Trust has used valuations carried out in September by the District Valuer to determine the value of property. These valuations are
based on the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors valuation standards insofar as these are consistent with the requirements of HM
Treasury, the National Health Service and the Department of Health.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
Estimation of contract income
Achieving early closure of accounts means that the accounts must be prepared before the normal cycle for contract income is complete.
Contract income includes some estimated values and assessment of income risk based on actual activity as the information is available.
Actual amounts may differ from the estimate depending on actual activity levels, but not materially so. See paragraph 1.7. Included in
the income figure is an estimate for partially completed spells.
Estimation of payments for the PFI asset, including finance costs
The assets and liabilities relating to the 3 PFI schemes have been brought onto the Statement of Financial Position based on
estimations from the DH financial model as required by the Department of Health guidance. The models also provide estimates for
interest payable and contingent rent as disclosed in Note 14.
Estimation of asset lives as the basis for depreciation calculations
Depreciation of equipment is based on asset lives, which have been estimated upon recognition of the assets. Managers have adjusted
estimated lives at the end of the accounting period, where their estimate of useful life is significantly different to the original. The
estimate of asset lives may differ to the actual period the Trust utilises the asset but any difference would not be material.
Impairment of receivables
The Trust is required to judge when there is sufficient evidence to impair individual receivables. It does this based on the profile of the
receivables. Different classes of receivables attract different rates of impairment depending on the Trust's assessment of the level of risk
associated with the collection of the debt. The Trust adopts a prudent policy of providing against all debt that is over 90 days overdue,
the amount that is judged to be impaired generally increases the older the debt is. The Trust makes every effort to collect the debt, even
when it has been impaired, and only writes off the debt as a final course of action. The actual level of debt written off will be different to
that which had been judged as impaired, but not materially so.
Accruals and prepayments
Each statutory accounting period, the trust sets detailed guidance for its managers in order to assist them in calculating accruals and
prepayments including de-minimis levels. The Trust uses a number of techniques to calculate its best estimate for accruals. Techniques
that are used include:- Trend analysis
- Expert judgement of Finance Managers
- Supplier statements
- Formulaic approach based on historical cost information
Prepayments are not normally sensitive to future events, and they can be reliably estimated. Accruals are a matter of judgement, based
on past experience and once realised can be different to the original estimate, but not materially so.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
1.7

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair
value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue for the trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.
Revenue relating to patient care spells that are part-completed at the end of the accounting period are apportioned across the statutory
accounting periods on the basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of stay.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following accounting period, that income is deferred.
The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured individuals
to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g. by an insurer. The NHS trust recognises the income when it
receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a
compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less a provision
for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts.

1.8

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The
cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.
Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit
scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in
England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the NHS body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of
the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the
method of payment.

1.9

Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured
at the fair value of the consideration payable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
1.10 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
● it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
● it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the trust;
● it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
● the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
● the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
● Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are
functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are
under single managerial control; or
● Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective
cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components
are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the
asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and buildings used for the trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be
determined at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:
● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost
HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and,
where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.
In agreement with the District Valuer, where appropriate the Trust has applied an 'optimal site' valuation which recognises any
efficiencies that could be obtained if the site were to be rebuilt, whilst allowing the current level of service provision to be maintained.
This valuation approach is based on a detailed review by qualified valuation staff of the land and buildings on the Trust’s John Radcliffe,
Churchill and Nuffield Orthopaedic Centre sites and Horton General Hospital site. This approach is consistent with the concepts provided
under Depreciated Replacement Cost valuation based on modern equivalent assets. For non-operational buildings, including surplus
land, the valuations are carried out at open market value.
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held
at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset
previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of
the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
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1.11 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the trust’s
business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5000.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for
example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to
the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not
capitalised: it is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are recognised if,
and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
● the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use
● the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it
● the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
● how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential
● the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it
● the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development
Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the
period in which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active market
exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.
Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological
advances.
1.12 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible
non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic
benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the NHS trust expects to obtain
economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the NHS trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the
asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each statutory accounting period, with the effect of any
changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
At each reporting period end, the NHS trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-current
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that
would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to
the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.
1.13 Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. They are valued, depreciated
and impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are as described
above for purchased assets. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the donation preclude immediate
recognition of the gain.
1.14 Government grants
Government grant funded assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to income. Deferred income is
recognised only where conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
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1.15 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is open market value including alternative uses.
The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained
earnings.
Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held for sale. Instead, it is
retained as an operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished.
1.16 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised
initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they
are operating or finance leases.
The NHS trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS trust’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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1.17 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI schemes where the government body controls
the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession
arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of
property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the contract are recorded as operating
expenses.
The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:
a)
b)
c)

Payment for the fair value of services received;
Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and
Payment for the replacement of components of the asset during the contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.

Services received
The fair value of services received in the accounting period is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating
expenses’
PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair
value in accordance with the principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in
accordance with the Trust’s approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.
PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount as the fair
value of the PFI assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17.
An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is
charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to
repay the lease liability over the contract term.
An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance with
IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is expensed as
incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the
Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at
their fair value.
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from the
operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a
short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.
Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an
expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is
treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to the operating income over the
shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement component.
Assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the NHS trust’s
Statement of Financial Position.
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Other assets contributed by the NHS trust to the operator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the NHS trust to the operator before the asset is brought into use, which
are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the contract.
Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the NHS trust, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the finance
lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.
Other service concession arrangements
On initial recognition of the asset, an equivalent deferred income balance is recognised, representing the future service potential to be
received by the NHS trust through the asset being made available to third party users.
The balance is subsequently released to operating income over the life of the concession on a straight-line basis.
1.18 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.
1.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that
form an integral part of the NHS trust’s cash management.
1.20 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the NHS trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the NHS trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate of 0.7% in real terms (1.37%
for employee early departure obligations).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable
is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to
those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.

Page 104 Annual Report April - September 2015

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Notes to the Accounts - 1. Accounting Policies (Continued)
1.21 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA
which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions
carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at Note 35.
1.22 Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes
under which the NHS trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs
of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.
1.23 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised
within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at open market value. As the NHS body makes
emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the
allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
1.24 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust, or a present obligation that is not
recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the NHS trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
1.25 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have
expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; held to maturity
investments; available for sale financial assets, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives
whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the NHS trust’s surplus or deficit for the accounting period. The net gain
or loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset.
Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or that do not fall within
any of the other three financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the revaluation
reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition.
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market.
After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques. The Trust does not
have any loans and receivables that are appropriate to be measured at anything other than amortised cost.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the NHS trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value through profit
and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss
is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent
that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
1.26 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the NHS trust becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
the Trust does not have any financial liabilities that are appropriate to be measured at anything other than amortised cost.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of:
● The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets ; and
● The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less cumulative amortisation.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives
whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the NHS trust’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable
on the financial liability.
Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans
from Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the
effective interest method.
1.27 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is
not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.28 Foreign currencies
The Trust's functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated
into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 30 September. Resulting exchange gains and losses for
either of these are recognised in the trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.
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1.29 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the trust has no
beneficial interest in them. Details of third party assets are given in Note 44 to the accounts.
1.30 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and
require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the value received. As PDC is issued under legislation rather than under
contract, it is not treated as an equity financial instrument.
An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health as public dividend capital
dividend. The charge is calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets
less liabilities (except for donated assets and cash balances with the Government Banking Service). The average carrying amount of
assets is calculated as a simple average of opening and closing relevant net assets.
In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the accounting
period is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend
thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.
1.31 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or
passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses
which would have been made good through insurance cover had trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then
being included as normal revenue expenditure).
1.32 Subsidiaries
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries and are consolidated. The
NHS trust has control when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its power over another entity. The income and
expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into the appropriate
financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned
with the NHS trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus.
Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
The Trust does not have any Charitable Funds or other subsidiaries that fall under common control so consolidated accounts are not
applicable.
1.33 Associates
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain economic or other benefits are
classified as associates and are recognised in the NHS trust’s accounts using the equity method. The investment is recognised initially
at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the NHS trust share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/losses. It is also reduced
when any distribution is received by the NHS trust from the entity.
Associates that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’
1.34 Joint arrangements
Material entities over which the NHS trust has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. Where the NHS body is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own
accounts The Trust does not operate any joint operations
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint ventures are recognised as an investment and accounted for using the equity method. The Trust does not operate
any joint ventures.
1.35 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the accounting period in which it is incurred, except insofar as
development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure
so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised through the SOCI on a systematic basis over the period
expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis
as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.
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1.36 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2015-16. These standards are still
subject to HM Treasury FReM interpretation, with IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 being for implementation in 2018-19, and the government
implementation date for IFRS 16 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.
● IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet adopted
by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
● IFRS 15 Revenue for Contracts with Customers - Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
but not yet adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
● IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the FReM:
early adoption is not therefore permitted.
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2.

Pooled budgets

3.

Operating segments

The Trust does not operate any pooled budgets.

The nature of the Trust's services is the provision of healthcare. Similar methods are used to provide services across all locations and the
appropriate policies, procedures and governance arrangements are Trust wide. As a NHS Trust, all services are subject to the same
regulatory environment and standards set by external performance managers. The Trust operates one segment and in the period to 30
September 2015 reported to the Board in this format. No discrete activities of the business have individual revenue exceeding 10% of the
total combined revenue or assets.

4.

Income generation activities

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in patient care. The following provides
details of income generation activities whose full cost exceeded £1m or was otherwise material.
Twelve
Six months
months
ending 30 ending 31
September
March
2015
2015
Car Parking
£000s
£000s
Income
Full cost
Surplus/(deficit)
Car parking is provided for staff and patients in line with the green travel plan policy.

Private Patients

1,647
(1,472)
175

3,728
(2,957)
771

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s

Income
3,889
Full cost
(2,868)
Surplus/(deficit)
1,021
Private patients activity is on a self pay basis or covered by private health insurance. The objective is to generate a surplus for
reinvestment.
Note: The income generation line in note 6 includes other immaterial items not significant enough to warrant separate disclosure.

7,651
(5,643)
2,008
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5.

Revenue from patient care activities
Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

NHS Trusts
NHS England
Clinical Commissioning Groups
Foundation Trusts
Department of Health
NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co)
Additional income for delivery of healthcare services
Non-NHS:
Local Authorities
Private patients
Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)
Injury costs recovery
Other
Total Revenue from patient care activities

6.

Total operating revenue

7.

0
194,364
190,011
0
0
0
0

0
373,371
370,263
0
7,500
185
0

3,439
3,889
528
1,273
238
393,742

8,058
7,651
988
2,389
659
771,064

Other operating revenue

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
Patient transport services
Education, training and research
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure - NHS
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure -non- NHS
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions - Charity
Support from DH for mergers
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Income generation (Other fees and charges)
Rental revenue from finance leases
Rental revenue from operating leases
Other revenue
Total Other Operating Revenue

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s

3,700
101
50,998
0
451
277
0
0
11,333
1,736
0
906
5,985
75,487

7,123
240
97,914
0
1,347
1,091
0
0
18,109
3,917
0
2,140
13,310
145,191

469,229

916,255

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s

528
213
318
1,025
186
183

988
67
413
471
408
100

Overseas Visitors Disclosure

Income recognised during 2015-16 (invoiced amounts and accruals)
Cash payments received in the accounting period (re receivables at 31 March 2015)
Cash payments received in the accounting period (iro invoices issued 2014-15)
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2014)
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2014-15)
Amounts written off in the accounting period (irrespective of year of recognition)

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s
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8.

Operating expenses
Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s

Services from other NHS Trusts
Services from CCGs/NHS England
Services from other NHS bodies
Services from NHS Foundation Trusts
Total Services from NHS bodies*
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Purchase of Social Care
Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors
Supplies and services - clinical
Supplies and services - general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Service charges - ON-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements
Service charges - On-SOFP LIFT contracts
Total charges - Off-SOFP PFIs and other service concession arrangements
Total charges - Off-SOFP LIFT contracts
Business rates paid to local authorities
Premises
Hospitality
Insurance
Legal Fees
Impairments and Reversals of Receivables
Inventories write down
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non current assets held for sale
Internal Audit Fees
Audit fees
Other auditor's remuneration - quality account fee
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Education and Training
Change in Discount Rate
Other
Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits)

510
0
122
1,928
2,560
2,737
0
34
107,495
4,908
1,981
4,848
1,303
10,695
0
0
0
2,529
13,656
17
41
407
758
0
16,312
1,672
(9,937)
0
0
0
98
97
11
15,335
2,033
1,410
122
3,535
184,657

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits excluding Board members
Board members
Total Employee Benefits

266,592
999
267,591

511,014
1,901
512,915

Total Operating Expenses

452,248

898,772

1,454
55
205
4,117
5,831
7,187
69
195,000
6,778
5,966
8,232
2,351
34,692
0
0
0
2,292
25,478
88
48
1,092
1,002
0
34,459
3,333
18,959
0
0
0
216
22
20,038
5,625
2,444
124
4,531
385,857

*Services from NHS bodies does not include expenditure which falls into a category below
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9.

Operating Leases

The Trust's operating leases fall into two categories:
a) Leases of items of plant and equipment which are not treated as finance leases. These are predominantly items of office equipment or
motor vehicles. There is no material contingent rental, and the leases are for fixed terms. There are no restrictions in these leases other
than those which would commonly be found in commercial leases of this kind.
b) Leases of property. Typically these are leases of space in other NHS facilities. These leases are negotiated for fixed terms.

9.1. Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust as lessee

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments
Total
Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total
Total future sublease payments expected to be received:

Twelve
months
ending 31
March
2015
£000s

Six months ending 30 September 2015
Land
Buildings
Other
Total
£000s
£000s
£000s
£000s

13
50
100
163

45
179
0
224

122
50
0
172

409
0
0
409

954
0
0
954

180
279
100
559

393
429
161
983

0

0

9.2. Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust as lessor

The Trust has a number of parts of properties where it acts as a lessor. These are generally buildings or parts of buildings on the various
hospital sites where space has been let to universities, charities or other organisations.
Twelve
Six months
months
ending 30
ending 31
September
March
2015
2015
£000
£000s
Recognised as revenue
Rental revenue
906
2,140
Contingent rents
0
0
Total
2,140
906
Receivable:
No later than one year
1,571
1,671
Between one and five years
4,842
5,097
After five years
24,539
25,222
Total
31,990
30,952
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10.

Employee benefits and staff numbers

10.1. Employee benefits

Employee Benefits - Gross Expenditure
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division
Other pension costs
Termination benefits
Total employee benefits
Employee costs capitalised
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs

Six months ending 30 September 2015
Permanently
Other
employed
Total
£000s
£000s
£000s
231,192
14,958
22,123
2
114
268,389

208,067
14,958
22,123
2
114
245,264

23,125
0
0
0
0
23,125

798

689

109

267,591

244,575

23,016

Twelve months ending 31 March 2015
Permanently
Other
employed
Total
£000s
£000s
£000s
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division
Other pension costs
Termination benefits
TOTAL - including capitalised costs
Employee costs capitalised
Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs

445,041
29,154
41,486
5
189
515,875

403,626
29,154
41,486
5
189
474,460

41,415
0
0
0
0
41,415

2,960

2,341

619

512,915

472,119

40,796

10.2. Staff Numbers

Average Staff Numbers
Medical and dental
Ambulance staff
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social Care Staff
Healthcare Science Staff
Other
TOTAL
Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects

10.3. Staff Sickness absence and ill health retirements

Total Days Lost
Total Staff Years
Average working Days Lost

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds
Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the accounting period

Twelve months
ending 31 March
2015

Six months ending 30 September 2015
Permanently
Other
employed
Total
Number
Number
Number

Total
Number

1,673
0
2,490
1,223
3,715
0
1,921
0
0
73
11,095

1,628
0
2,360
1,126
3,333
0
1,859
0
0
73
10,379

45
0
130
97
382
0
62
0
0
0
716

1,656
0
2,307
1,169
3,634
0
1,918
0
0
75
10,759

54

50

4

143

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
Number
82,195
10,315
7.97
Six months
ending 30
September
2015
Number

Twelve months
ending 31 March
2015
Number
80,118
9,691
8.27

8

Twelve months
ending 31 March
2015
Number
6

£000s
488

£000s
250
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7,111
31,214
37,062
57,219
0
0
0
132,606

£s

Number

3
2
1
1
0
0
0
7

Cost of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

0
0
113,997
0
0
0
0
113,997

£s

Number

0
0
3
0
0
0
0
3

Cost of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number
0
1
1
1
0
0
0
3

Number of other
departures
agreed

Number

Number of other
departures
agreed

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
3

Total number of
exit packages

0
14,126
40,558
93,306
0
0
0
147,990

£s

Cost of other
departures
agreed.

Number
3
3
2
2
0
0
0
10

Total number of
exit packages

Twelve months ending 31 March 2015

£s

Cost of other
departures
agreed.

Six months ending 30 September 2015

7,111
45,340
77,620
150,525
0
0
0
280,596

£s

Total cost of exit
packages

0
0
113,997
0
0
0
0
113,997

£s

Total cost of exit
packages

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number of
Departures
where special
payments have
been made

Number

Number of
Departures
where special
payments have
been made

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

£

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Cost of special
payment element
included in exit
packages

£

Cost of special
payment element
included in exit
packages

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the accounting period. Note: The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part
or in full in a previous period.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Scheme. Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the accounting period of
departure. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS
pensions scheme and are not included in the table.
Other departures in 2014/15 were under a Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) and following an Employment Tribunal. Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the
accounting period of departure.

Less than £10,000
£10,000-£25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>£200,000
Total

Exit package cost
band (including any
special payment
element)

Less than £10,000
£10,000-£25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>£200,000
Total

Exit package cost
band (including any
special payment
element)

10.4. Exit Packages agreed in 30 September 2015
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10.5.

Exit packages - Other Departures analysis

Six months ending 30 September
2015
Agreements
Total value of
agreements

Number

£000s

Twelve months ending 31 March
2015
Agreements
Total value of
agreements

Number

£000s

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual
costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

2
0

55
0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval*
Total

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
1
0
3

0
93
0
148

Non-contractual payments made to individuals where the
payment value was more than 12 months of their annual salary

0

0

0

0

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the accounting period. Note: the expense associated with these
departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period
As a single exit packages can be made up of several components each of which will be counted separately in this Note, the total number above
will not necessarily match the total numbers in Note 10.4 which will be the number of individuals.
The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

10.6.

Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of the
Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover
NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not
designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each
scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at
the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of
the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and
financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The
valuation of scheme liability as at 31 March 2016, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2015, updated to 31 March 2016 with summary global
member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations,
and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension
Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually.
Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account their recent
demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.
The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM
Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed
appropriate.
Due to a change in the law, all employers are required to automatically enrol certain workers in a pension scheme. If employees meet the
scheme’s eligibility criteria they will be enrolled in the NHS Pension Scheme. If an employee cannot be enrolled in the NHS Pension Scheme for
whatever reason, they are automatically enrolled in an alternative qualifying pension scheme. For OUH employees this scheme is the National
Employee’s Savings Trust (NEST). At the present time there are very few employees in this scheme.
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11.

Better Payment Practice Code

11.1.

Measure of compliance

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Accounting Period
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target
NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Accounting Period
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

Six months ending 30
September 2015
Number
£000s

Twelve months ending 31
March 2015
Number
£000s

65,553
61,984
94.56%

169,324
160,042
94.52%

133,220
123,235
92.50%

351,701
316,095
89.88%

2,785
2,424
87.04%

66,208
64,873
97.98%

5,130
4,700
91.62%

100,700
97,537
96.86%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid
invoice, whichever is later.

11.2.

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation
Total

12.

Investment Revenue

Rental revenue
PFI finance lease revenue (planned)
PFI finance lease revenue (contingent)
Other finance lease revenue
Subtotal
Interest revenue
LIFT: equity dividends receivable
LIFT: loan interest receivable
Bank interest
Other loans and receivables
Impaired financial assets
Other financial assets
Subtotal
Total investment revenue

13.

Other Gains and Losses

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (intangibles)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of Financial Assets other then held for sale
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange
Change in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through the SoCI
Change in fair value of financial liabilities carried at fair value through the SoCI
Change in fair value of investment property
Recycling of gain/(loss) from equity on disposal of financial assets held for sale
Total

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
1
0
1

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
0
0
0

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
136
0
0
0
136
136

0
0
310
0
0
0
310
310

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
(28)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(28)

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
(14)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(14)
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14.

Finance Costs

Interest
Interest on loans and overdrafts
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:
- main finance cost
- contingent finance cost
Interest on obligations under LIFT contracts:
- main finance cost
- contingent finance cost
Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Total interest expense
Other finance costs
Provisions - unwinding of discount
Total

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s

80
80

195
298

7,202
2,683

14,922
5,287

0
0
1
10,046
0
18
10,064

0
0
0
20,702
0
32
20,734
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Property, plant and equipment

62,776
0
0
0
0
0
0
(6,750)
0
0
0
0
0
56,026
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
56,026
47,926
8,100
0
0
0
0
56,026

Depreciation
At 1 April 2015
Reclassifications
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals
Disposals other than for sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses
Charged During the Accounting Period
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting
At 30 September 2015
Net Book Value at 30 September 2015

Asset financing:
Owned - Purchased
Owned - Donated
Owned - Government Granted
Held on finance lease
On-SOFP PFI contracts
PFI residual: interests
Total at 30 September 2015

£000's

Land

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2015
Additions of Assets Under Construction
Additions Purchased
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals
Disposals other than for sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairment/reversals charged to operating expenses
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting
At 30 September 2015

Six months ending 30 September 2015

15.1.

207,717
56,088
0
0
295,361
0
559,166

0
0
0
0
1,776
0
(9,937)
8,161
0
0
559,166

524,462
0
2,677
34
0
4,116
0
0
0
27,877
0
0
0
559,166

£000's

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

635
0
0
0
0
0
635

0
0
0
0
(16)
0
0
16
0
0
635

598
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
37
0
0
0
635

£000's

Dwellings

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Assets
under
construction
& payments
on account
£000's

39,455
3,239
0
3,180
7,223
0
53,097

117,394
0
0
(4)
0
0
0
7,483
0
124,873
53,097

175,810
0
1,967
225
0
0
0
0
(32)
0
0
0
0
177,970

£000's

Plant &
machinery

64
0
0
0
0
0
64

534
0
0
0
0
0
0
14
0
548
64

612
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
612

£000's

Transport
equipment

5,347
7
0
0
0
0
5,354

10,640
0
0
0
0
0
0
474
0
11,114
5,354

16,073
0
388
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
16,468

£000's

Information
technology

832
141
0
0
0
0
973

2,442
0
0
0
0
0
0
164
0
2,606
973

3,567
0
1
11
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,579

£000's

Furniture &
fittings
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301,976
67,575
0
3,180
302,584
0
675,315

131,010
0
0
(4)
1,760
0
(9,937)
16,312
0
139,141
675,315

783,898
0
5,033
277
0
4,116
0
(6,750)
(32)
27,914
0
0
0
814,456

£000's

Total
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0
3,400

Land
Buildings excl Dwellings
Dwellings
Plant & Machinery
Balance as at YTD

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

26,145
146,066

£000's
£000's
119,921

3,400

£000's

Dwellings

Buildings

Land

Additions to Assets Under Construction in the six months ending 30 September 2015

At 1 April 2015
Movements - net effect of upward revaluations, impairments, and asset
disposals
At 30 September 2015

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
21,911

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0

Assets
Plant &
Transport
Information Furniture &
under
machinery
equipment
technology
fittings
construction
& payments
on account
£000's
£000's
£000's
£000's
£000's
0
0
21,911
0
0
0
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26,145
171,377

£000's
145,232

Total
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Property, plant and equipment prior-year

1

204,116
52,863
0
0
267,483
0
524,462

0
0
0
0
(12,549)
6,956
(11,816)
17,409
0
0
524,462

516,963
0
13,176
11
0
0
375
0
0
19,878
(25,941)
0
0
524,462

£000's

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Reclassifications includes transfers from Assets Under Construction to the appropriate asset category

54,676
8,100
0
0
0
0
62,776

0
0
0
0
(23,819)
23,819
0
0
0
0
62,776

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014
Reclassifications
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals
Disposals other than for sale
Revaluation
Impairments/negative indexation charged to operating expenses
Reversal of Impairments charged to operating expenses
Charged During the Year
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2015
Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

Asset financing:
Owned - Purchased
Owned - Donated
Owned - Government Granted
Held on finance lease
On-SOFP PFI contracts
PFI residual: interests
Total at 31 March 2015

111,253
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(22,169)
(26,308)
0
0
62,776

£000's

Land

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014
Additions of Assets Under Construction
Additions Purchased
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. Physical Assets)
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations & Government Grants
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications1
Reclassifications as Held for Sale and Reversals
Disposals other than for sale
Revaluation
Impairments/negative indexation charged to reserves
Reversal of Impairments charged to reserves
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting
At 31 March 2015

Twelve months ending 31 March 2015

15.2.
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598
0
0
0
0
0
598

0
0
0
0
(51)
0
0
51
0
0
598

0
0
298
0
0
0
983
0
0
0
(683)
0
0
598

£000's

Dwellings

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,401
831
0
0
0
0
(2,232)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Assets
under
construction
& payments
on account
£000's

43,009
3,422
0
3,723
8,262
0
58,416

112,401
0
0
(10,710)
0
0
0
15,703
0
117,394
58,416

171,918
0
11,926
950
38
828
874
0
(10,724)
0
0
0
0
175,810

£000's

Plant &
machinery

78
0
0
0
0
0
78

506
0
0
0
0
0
0
28
0
534
78

612
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
612

£000's

Transport
equipment

5,433
0
0
0
0
0
5,433

9,689
0
0
0
0
0
0
951
0
10,640
5,433

15,207
0
866
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
16,073

£000's

Information
technology

987
138
0
0
0
0
1,125

2,125
0
0
0
0
0
0
317
0
2,442
1,125

3,409
0
66
92
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,567

£000's

Furniture &
fittings
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308,897
64,523
0
3,723
275,745
0
652,888

124,721
0
0
(10,710)
(36,419)
30,775
(11,816)
34,459
0
131,010
652,888

820,763
831
26,332
1,053
38
828
0
0
(10,724)
(2,291)
(52,932)
0
0
783,898

£000's

Total
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15.3.

(cont). Property, plant and equipment

The Trust’s land and buildings were revalued as at 30th September 2015 by the District Valuer. The valuation was an open market value using the
modern equivalent asset basis of valuation. In assessing the value of the Trust’s land it was assumed that should the existing buildings be replaced
by a modern equivalent asset, certain buildings would be rebuilt on a more intensive basis, on an alternative 'optimal site'. Therefore a smaller
landholding and buildings footprint is required while still maintaining the current level of service provision.
Both impairments and upward movements in value resulting from this revaluation of the estate have been reflected in the accounts for the six
months ending 30 September 2015.
The Assets lives used are as follows:
Buildings
Buildings exc dwellings
Dwellings
Other Assets
Plant & machinery
Transport equipment
Information technology
Furniture and fittings
Software licences
IT - in house & 3rd party software

Years
5-66
13-33
Years
5-40
7
5-8
6-10
5-9
5-8

The asset lives of building components were reassessed based upon estimates provided by the valuer in the course of the periodic revaluation of
the estate; these lives were used as the basis for depreciating building assets from 1st April 2015. The revaluation of the estate at 30 September
2015 updates the building asset lives which will be used from 1 October 2015. There is no impact to the current statutory accounting period as a
result of the update in asset lives, and the impact in future accounting periods is not material.
The Trust leases some of its buildings premises to other organisations, including the University of Oxford and charities connected with medical care
and research. The carrying amounts, depreciation and any impairment of these premises are included in the building assets in note 15.1. Rentals for
these premises are set out in note 9.2.
The donated assets acquired in the accounting period were mostly donated by Oxford Radcliffe Hospitals Charitable Funds, and other trust funds
associated with Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust.
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16.

Intangible non-current assets

16.1.

Intangible non-current assets

30 September 2015

IT - inhouse &
3rd party
software

Computer
Licenses

Licenses
and
Trademarks

Patents

£000's
17,812
0
0
0
0

£000's
6,333
0
0
0
0

£000's

£000's

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

17,812

6,333

10,530
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,359
0

Development
Expenditure Internally
Generated

0
0
0
0
0

£000's
24,154
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

9

0

24,154

2,404
0
0
0
0
0
0
313
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

12,943
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,672
0

11,889
5,923

2,717
3,616

0
0

9
0

0
0

14,615
9,539

Asset Financing: Net book value at 30 September 2015 comprises:
Purchased
5,915
Donated
8
Government Granted
0
Finance Leased
0
On-balance Sheet PFIs
0
Total at 30 September 2015
5,923

3,616
0
0
0
0
3,616

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

9,531
8
0
0
0
9,539

0
0
0
At 1 April 2015
Movements
0
0
0
At 30 September 2015
0
0
0
The Trust has carried out an impairment review and did not identify any impairments to intangible assets

0
0
0

0
0
0

At 1 April 2015
Additions Purchased
Additions Internally Generated
Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)
Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations and Government
Grants
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications
Reclassified as Held for Sale and Reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses
Impairments/reversals charged to reserves
Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption
Accounting
At 30 September 2015
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015
Reclassifications
Reclassified as Held for Sale and Reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairment/reversals charged to reserves
Impairments/reversals charged to operating expenses
Charged During the Accounting Period
Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption
Accounting
At 30 September 2015
Net Book Value at 30 September 2015

0
0
0
0
0

9
0
0
0
0

£000's

Total

Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets
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0
0
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16.2.

Intangible non-current assets prior year

31 March 2015

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2014
Additions - purchased
Additions - internally generated
Additions - donated
Additions - government granted
Additions Leased (including PFI/LIFT)
Reclassifications1
Reclassified as held for sale
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption
Accounting
At 31 March 2015
Amortisation
At 1 April 2014
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation/positive indexation
Impairments charged to operating expenses
Reversal of impairments charged to operating expenses
Charged during the year
Transfer (to)/from Other Public Sector bodies under Absorption
Accounting
At 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2015 comprises:
Purchased
Donated
Government Granted
Finance Leased
On-balance Sheet PFIs
Total at 31 March 2015

IT - inhouse &
3rd party
software

Computer
Licenses

Licenses and
Trademarks

Patents

Development
Expenditure Internally
Generated

Total

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

16,501
3,012
1,791
0
0
0
(3,492)
0
0
0
0
0
0

2,315
526
0
0
0
0
3,492
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

18,825
3,538
1,791
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

17,812

6,333

0

9

0

24,154

7,828
0
0
0
0
0
0
2,702
0

1,773
0
0
0
0
0
0
631
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

9,610
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,333
0

10,530

2,404

0

9

0

12,943

7,282

3,929

0

0

0

11,211

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

1

Reclassifications includes amounts that, upon review were found to be more appropriately classified within a different category
The Trust has carried out an annual impairment review and did not identify any impairments to intangible assets.

16.3.

Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets of the Trust consist of internally generated and purchased software both of which are reflected at cost less accumulated
amortisation and have not been revalued. Both internally generated and purchased software are considered to have finite useful lives details of
which are disclosed in note 15.3.
None of the intangible assets of the Trust have been acquired by government grants.
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17.

Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in period to 30 September 2015
Property
Plant and
Equipment

£000s

Intangible
Assets

Financial
Assets

£000s

£000s

Non-Current
Assets Held
for Sale

Total

£000s

£000s

Unforeseen obsolescence
Loss as a result of catastrophe
Other
Changes in market price
Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(9,937)
(9,937)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
(9,937)
(9,937)

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI

(9,937)

0

0

0

(9,937)

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations
Over-specification of assets
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction
Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL
Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL
There are two reasons for the impairments above:
- the impairment on revaluation to a modern equivalent asset basis when a new building is first brought into use.
- the changes in market price arise from the revaluation as at 30 September 2015 which result in impairments and reverse impairments

18.

Investment property

The Trust does not have any investment properties.
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0
0
0
0

£000s
(1,014)
0
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19.

Commitments

19.1.
Capital commitments
Contracted capital commitments at the end of the accounting period, not otherwise included in these financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total

30
September
2015
£000s
34,478
683
35,161

31 March
2015
£000s
1,820
398
2,218

19.2.
Other financial commitments
The Trust has no other non-cancellable contracts which are not leases or PFI contracts or other service concession arrangements.

20.

Intra-Government and other balances

Balances with Other Central Government Bodies
Balances with Local Authorities
Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
Balances with NHS bodies inside the Departmental Group
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Balances with Bodies External to Government
At 30 September 2015
prior period:
Balances with Other Central Government Bodies
Balances with Local Authorities
Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
Balances with NHS bodies inside the Departmental Group
Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds
Balances with Bodies External to Government
At 31 March 2015

Current
receivables
£000s
2,502
92
734
24,806
0
18,469
46,603
4,755
996
30
28,645
0
7,785
42,211

Non-current
receivables
£000s

Current
payables

0
0
0
0
0
5,562
5,562

£000s
16,121
428
1,264
15,642
7,397
112,088
152,940

0
0
0
0
0
5,091
5,091

2,567
17
389
13,747
7,600
116,434
140,754

Noncurrent
payables
£000s

0
0
0
2,897
0
272,348
275,245
0
0
0
3,599
0
275,945
279,544
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21.

Inventories

Balance at 1 April 2015
Additions
Inventories recognised as an expense in the
period
Write-down of inventories (including losses)
Reversal of write-down previously taken to
SOCI
Transfers to NHS Foundation Trust on
authorisation as FT
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies
under Absorption Accounting
Balance at 30 September 2015

Drugs

Consumables

Work in
Progress

Energy

Loan
Equipment

Other

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Of which
held at
NRV
£000s

Total
£000s

3,631
30,518

10,074
161

0
0

194
2

0
0

816
11

14,715
30,692

0
0

(29,934)

(234)

0

0

0

(57)

(30,225)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
4,215

0
10,001

0
0

0
196

0
0

0
770

0
15,182

0
0

Consumables recognised as addditions and as an expense in the accounting period reflect the net movement during the accounting period as the
information is not available on a gross basis

22.1.

Trade and other receivables
Current
30
September 31 March
2015
2015
£000s
£000s

Non-current
30
September 31 March
2015
2015
£000s
£000s

NHS receivables - revenue
NHS receivables - capital
NHS prepayments and accrued income
Non-NHS receivables - revenue
Non-NHS receivables - capital
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income
PDC Dividend prepaid to DH
Provision for the impairment of receivables
VAT

16,985
0
9,352
11,451
0
11,477
0
(8,167)
1,705

22,227
0
6,372
9,603
0
2,926
864
(7,576)
3,967

0
0
0
0
0
312

0
0
0
0
0
120

0
0

0
0

Current/non-current part of PFI and other PPP arrangements prepayments and accrued income
Interest receivables
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
Other receivables
Total

67
0
0
0
3,733
46,603

67
0
0
0
3,761
42,211

1,304
0
0
0
3,946
5,562

1,338
0
0
0
3,633
5,091

Total current and non current

52,165

47,302

30
September
2015
£000s

31 March
2015
£000s

10,807
893
119
11,819

4,203
1,501
787
6,491

Included in NHS receivables are prepaid pension contributions:

0

The great majority of trade is with NHS England and CCGs. As NHS bodies are funded by Government to buy NHS patient care
services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary

22.2.

Receivables past their due date but not impaired

By up to three months
By three to six months
By more than six months
Total
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22.3.

Provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at 1 April 2015
Amount written off during the accounting period
Amount recovered during the accounting period
(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption Accounting
Balance at 30 September 2015

30
September
2015
£000s

31 March
2015
£000s

(7,576)
167
0
(758)
0
(8,167)

(6,863)
289
0
(1,002)
0
(7,576)

30
September
2015
£000s
79,383
4,432
83,815

31 March
2015
£000s
79,383
0
79,383

83,695
50
70
0
0
83,815
0
0
83,815

79,274
36
73
0
0
79,383
0
0
79,383

4
0

1
0

A provision is made against trade receivables based on the number of days by which the invoice is overdue.

23.

NHS LIFT investments

24.1.

Other Financial Assets - Current

24.2.

Other Financial Assets - Non Current

25.

Other current assets

26.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Trust does not have any receivables classified as NHS LIFT investments.

The Trust does not have any receivables classified as other financial assets.

The Trust does not have any receivables classified as other financial assets.

The Trust does not have any receivables classified as other current assets.

Opening balance
Net change during the accounting period
Closing balance
Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service
Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Liquid deposits with NLF
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position
Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft - Commercial banks
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows
Third Party Assets - Bank balance (not included above)
Third Party Assets - Monies on deposit

Annual Report April - September 2015 Page 127

Page 128 Annual Report April - September 2015

Non-current assets held for sale

0
0

0
6,750

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2015

£000s

Dwellings

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

Asset Under
Construction
and Payments
on Account

£000s

Plant and
Machinery

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

Transport
and
Equipment

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

Information
Technology

Land at Littlemore became classified as an asset held for sale during the six months to 30 September 2015 accounting period. The sale is expected to complete within one year.

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

£000s

0
6,750
0
0
0

Buildings,
excl.
dwellings

Land

Balance at 1 April 2014
Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year
Less assets sold in the year
Less impairment of assets held for sale
Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale
Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other
than disposal by sale
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting
Balance at 31 March 2015

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 30 September
2015

Balance at 1 April 2015
Plus assets classified as held for sale in the accounting period
Less assets sold in the accounting period
Less impairment of assets held for sale
Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale
Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other
than disposal by sale
Transfers (to)/from Other Public Sector Bodies under Absorption
Accounting
Balance at 30 September 2015

27.
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0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

Furniture
and
Fittings

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

Intangible
Assets

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

£000s

Financial
Assets

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0
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0

0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
6,750

0

0
6,750
0
0
0

£000s

Total
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28.

Trade and other payables
Current
30 September
2015
£000s

Non-current

31 March 2015
£000s

30 September
2015
£000s

31 March 2015
£000s

NHS payables - revenue
NHS payables - capital
NHS accruals and deferred income
Non-NHS payables - revenue
Non-NHS payables - capital
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income
Social security costs
PDC Dividend payable to DH
Accrued Interest on DH Loans
VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other
Total

6,467
0
8,586
41,443
2,625
63,178
4,615
492
0
98
5,046
0
10,428
142,978

5,496
29
7,218
32,855
6,322
66,820
938
0

0
0
0
0
0
16,561

0
0
0
0
0
16,359

132
1,487
0
8,583
129,880

0

0

0
0
16,561

0
0
16,359

Total payables (current and non-current)

159,539

146,239

0
0
6,320

0
0
6,078

Included above:
to Buy Out the Liability for Early Retirements Over 5 Years
number of Cases Involved (number)
outstanding Pension Contributions at the period end

29.

Other liabilities

The Trust does not have any payables classified as other liabilities.
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30.

Borrowings
Current
30 September
2015
£000s

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft - commercial banks
Loans from Department of Health
Loans from other entities
PFI liabilities:
Main liability
Lifecycle replacement received in advance
LIFT liabilities:
Main liability
Lifecycle replacement received in advance
Finance lease liabilities
Other (describe)
Total
Total other liabilities (current and non-current)

Non-current

31 March 2015
£000s

30 September
2015
£000s

31 March 2015
£000s

0
0
0
1,404

0
0
1,404
0

0
2,897

3,599
0

8,115
0

9,389
0

253,221
0

256,641
0

0
0
443
0
9,962

0
0
81
0
10,874

0
0
2,566
0
258,684

0
0
2,945
0
263,185

268,646

274,059

Borrowings / Loans - repayment of principal falling due in:
DH
£000s
1,404
1,404
1,493
0
4,301

0-1 Years
1 - 2 Years
2 - 5 Years
Over 5 Years
TOTAL

31.

Other financial liabilities

32.

Deferred income

30 September 2015
Other
£000s
8,558
9,166
23,186
223,435
264,345

Total
£000s
9,962
10,570
24,679
223,435
268,646

The Trust does not have any liabilities classified as other financial liabilities

Opening balance at 1 April 2015
Deferred revenue addition
Transfer of deferred revenue
Current deferred Income at 30 September 2015
Total deferred income (current and non-current)
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Current
30 September
31 March 2015
2015
£000s
£000s
15,391
13,003
7,741
7,613
(2,722)
(5,225)
20,410
15,391
36,972

31,750

Non-current
30 September
31 March 2015
2015
£000s
£000s
16,359
14,251
2,914
2,351
(2,711)
(243)
16,562
16,359

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

33.

Finance lease obligations as lessee

The Trust has a number of finance lease arrangements which have been used to acquire items of medical plant and equipment. Typically these
leases provide for an option to purchase at the end of the primary term. The leases do not include any escalation clauses, nor do they include any
restrictions other than those which would be expected to apply in a normal lease contract on normal commercial terms.
Amounts payable under finance leases (Buildings)

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Less future finance charges
Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments
30 September
2015
£000s
0
0
0
0
0

31 March 2015
£000s
0
0
0
0
0

Included in:
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Amounts payable under finance leases (Land)

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Less future finance charges
Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease payments

Minimum lease payments

30 September
2015
£000s
0
0
0
0
0

31 March 2015
£000s
0
0
0
0
0

Included in:
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Total
Amounts payable under finance leases (Other)

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Less future finance charges
Minimum Lease Payments / Present value of minimum lease payments
Included in:
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings

Finance leases as lessee
Future Sublease Payments Expected to be received
Contingent Rents Recognised as an Expense

34.

Minimum lease payments
30 September
2015
£000s
600
2,375
425
(391)
3,009

31 March 2015
£000s
85
3,005
425
(489)
3,026

Present value of minimum lease
payments
30 September
2015
£000s
0
0
0

31 March 2015
£000s
0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

Present value of minimum lease
payments
30 September
2015
£000s
0
0
0

31 March 2015
£000s
0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

Present value of minimum lease
payments
30 September
2015
£000s
443
2,148
418

31 March 2015
£000s
81
2,526
419

3,009

3,026

443
2,566
3,009

81
2,945
3,026

30 September
2015
£000s
0
0

31 March 2015
£000s
0
0

Finance lease receivables as lessor

The Trust does not have any finance lease receivables as lessor
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1,972
756
1,924

Expected Timing of Cash Flows:
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year and not later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
126
0
0

0
126

136
57
(64)
(3)
0
0

£000s

Legal Claims

£000s

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Restructuring

£000s

Continuing
Care

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

£000s

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Equal Pay
(incl. Agenda
for Change

1,657
0
0

0
1,657

£000s
2,153
1,029
0
(1,525)
0
0

Other

£000s

Contingencies

0
0

0
0
0
(89)
(89)

30
September
2015
£000s

0
0

0
0
0
(67)
(67)

31 March
2015
£000s

Contingent liabilities are the legal claims under the liability to third parties and property expenses administered by the NHS Litigation Authority amounting to £89k.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets
Net value of contingent assets

Contingent liabilities
NHS Litigation Authority legal claims
Employment Tribunal and other employee related litigation
Redundancy
Other
Net value of contingent liabilities
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0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Redundancy

The Trust is reasonably certain about the amounts and timings of Pensions relating to staff and former Directors as the calculation is based on NHS Pension Agency payments and determined nationally on an actuarial
basis.
The Trust is reasonably certain about the amounts and timings of legal claims as the information is provided by the NHS Litigation Authority
Other provisions reflect commercial and employment related claims for which the values are reasonably certain but the timing is dependent on final resolution.

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:
As at 30 September 2015
181,809
As at 31 March 2015
180,566

189
756
1,924

0
2,869

0
4,652

Balance at 1 April 2015
Arising during the accounting period
Utilised during the accounting period
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
Change in discount rate

Transfers (to)/from other public sector bodies under absorption accounting
Balance at 30 September 2015

Total

Comprising:
Early
Departure
Costs

£000s
2,746
78
(95)
0
18
122

Provisions

£000s
5,035
1,164
(159)
(1,528)
18
122

35.

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust - Statutory Accounts six months ending 30 September 2015

37.

PFI and LIFT - additional information

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for inclusion in national statutory accounts
Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of ON and OFF SOFP PFI

Total charge to operating expenses in the accounting period - Off SoFP PFI
Service element of on SOFP PFI charged to operating expenses in the accounting period
Total
Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP PFI and the service element of on SOFP PFI
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Total

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
0
10,695
10,695

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
0
34,692
34,692

26,985
113,429
651,221
791,635

26,803
113,711
676,373
816,887

The estimated annual payments in future years are expected to be materially different from those which the trust is committed
to make materially different from those which the trust is committed to make during the next year. The likely financial effect of this is:
Estimated Capital Value of Project - off SOFP PFI
Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP PFI

0
0

0
0

Value of Reversionary Interest - off SOFP PFI

0

0

No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Subtotal
Less: Interest Element
Total

30
September
2015
£000s
22,276
82,569
344,289
449,134
(187,798)
261,336

31 March
2015
£000s
23,792
83,880
353,424
461,096
(195,066)
266,030

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due
Analysed by when PFI payments are due
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Total

30
September
2015
£000s
8,115
30,205
223,016
261,336

31 March
2015
£000s
9,389
30,685
225,956
266,030

Number of on SOFP PFI Contracts
Total Number of on PFI contracts
Number of on PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m

3
2

3
2

Number of off SOFP PFI Contracts
Total Number of off PFI contracts
Number of off PFI contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m

0
0

0
0

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP PFI contracts due
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Charges to operating expenditure and future commitments in respect of on and off SOFP LIFT

Total Charge to Operating Expenses in the accounting period - OFF SOFP LIFT
Service element of on SOFP LIFT charged to operating expenses in the accounting period
Total

Payments committed to in respect of off SOFP LIFT and the service element of on SOFP LIFT.
LIFT scheme expiry date:
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Total

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
0
0
0

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
0
0
0

30
September
2015
£000s

31 March
2015
£000s

0
0
0
0

30
September
2015
£000s
The estimated annual payments in future years are expected to be materially different from those which the NHS trust
is committed to make during the next year. The likely financial effect of this is:
Estimated capital value of project - off SOFP LIFT
0
Value of Deferred Assets - off SOFP LIFT
0
Value of Residual Interest - off SOFP LIFT
0

No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Subtotal
Less: Interest Element
Total

30
September
2015
£000s
0
0
0
0
0
0

Present Value Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP LIFT contracts due
Analysed by when LIFT payments are due
No Later than One Year
Later than One Year, No Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years
Total

30
September
2015
£000s
0
0
0
0

Imputed "finance lease" obligations for on SOFP LIFT Contracts due

0
0
0
0
31 March
2015
£000s
0
0
0

31 March
2015
£000s

31 March
2015
£000s

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Number of on SOFP LIFT Contracts
Total Number of LIFT contracts
Number of LIFT contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m

0
0

0
0

Number of off SOFP LIFT Contracts
Total Number of LIFT contracts
Number of LIFT contracts which individually have a total commitments value in excess of £500m

0
0

0
0
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38.

Impact of IFRS treatment - current accounting period

The information below is required by the Department of Heath for budget
reconciliation purposes

Six months ending 30
September 2015
Income
Expenditure
£000s

Revenue costs of IFRS: Arrangements reported on SoFP under IFRIC12 (e.g PFI / LIFT)
Depreciation charges
Interest Expense
Impairment charge - AME
Impairment charge - DEL
Other Expenditure
Revenue Receivable from subleasing
Impact on PDC dividend payable
Total IFRS Expenditure (IFRIC12)
Revenue consequences of PFI / LIFT schemes under UK GAAP / ESA95 (net of
any sublease revenue)
Net IFRS change (IFRIC12)

£000s

0
0

Capital Consequences of IFRS : LIFT/PFI and other items under IFRIC12
Capital expenditure 2015-16
UK GAAP capital expenditure 2015-16 (Reversionary Interest)

Revenue costs of IFRS12 compared with ESA10
Depreciation charges
Interest Expense
Impairment charge - AME
Impairment charge - DEL
Other Expenditure
Service Charge
Contingent Rent
Lifecycle
Impact on PDC Dividend Payable
Total Revenue Cost under IFRIC12 vs ESA10
Revenue Receivable from subleasing
Net Revenue Cost/(income) under IFRIC12 vs ESA10

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
Income/
Expenditure
IFRIC 12
YTD
£000s

4,598
9,884
(5,661)
0
10,695
103
19,619

Twelve months ending 31
March 2015
Income
Expenditure
£000s

£000s

0
0

8,563
20,209
(8,914)
0
34,692
(229)
54,321

25,063
(5,444)

62,992
(8,671)

4,116
1,968

1,280
3,801

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
Income/
Expenditure
ESA 10
YTD
£000s

4,598
9,884
(5,661)
0
10,695
0
0
103
19,619
0
19,619

10,695

10,695
0
10,695
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39.

Financial Instruments

39.1. Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing
the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the NHS trust has with
commissioners and the way those commissioners are financed, the NHS trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business
entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which
the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The NHS trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS trust in undertaking its
activities.
The trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the trust’s
standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. trust treasury activity is subject to review by the trust’s internal
auditors.
Currency risk
The trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.
The trust has no overseas operations. The trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the Trust's regulators. The borrowings are for
1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.
The trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the trust’s revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the trust has low exposure to credit risk. The
maximum exposures as at 30 September 2015 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.
Liquidity risk
The trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with Commissioners, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament .
The trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudential borrowing limit. The trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant
liquidity risks.
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39.2. Financial Assets

At ‘fair value
through
profit and
loss’

Loans and
receivables

Available for
sale

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Embedded derivatives
Receivables - NHS
Receivables - non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 30 September 2015

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
16,985
10,963
83,815
0
111,763

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
16,985
10,963
83,815
0
111,763

Embedded derivatives
Receivables - NHS
Receivables - non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2015

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
22,227
9,421
79,383
0
111,031

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
22,227
9,421
79,383
0
111,031

39.3. Financial Liabilities

At ‘fair value
through
profit and
loss’

Other

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

Embedded derivatives
NHS payables
Non-NHS payables
Other borrowings
PFI & finance lease obligations
Other financial liabilities
Total at 30 September 2015

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
15,053
134,226
4,301
264,345
0
417,925

0
15,053
134,226
4,301
264,345
0
417,925

Embedded derivatives
NHS payables
Non-NHS payables
Other borrowings
PFI & finance lease obligations
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2015

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
12,743
130,939
5,003
269,056
0
417,741

0
12,743
130,939
5,003
269,056
0
417,741

40.

Events after the end of the reporting period

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust was granted licence by Monitor to become a foundation trust from 1 October 2015.
Dr Bruno Holthof was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Oxford University Hospitals (OUH) from 5 October 2015.
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41.

Related party transactions

During the accounting period none of the Department of Health Ministers, Trust board members or members of the key management staff, or
parties related to any of them, has undertaken any material transactions with Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the accounting period the trust has had a significant number of material
transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example :
CCGs
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Trusts
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS England
In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government
bodies. Most of these transactions have been with Oxfordshire County Council and are for a variety of reasons including Genito-Urinary Medicine
services, salary recharges associated with social services and supported hospital discharges as well as sub-lease arrangements for rental of
property space.
The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds, none of these are material, certain of the trustees
for which are also members of the Trust board.
Consolidated accounts to include Oxford Radcliffe Charitable Funds are not prepared as these have Trustees appointed under
section 11 of the NHS and Community Care Act 1990 and therefore the charity is not controlled by the Trust.

42.

Losses and special payments

The total number of losses cases in the six months ending 30 September 2015 and their total value was as follows:

Losses
Special payments
Total losses and special payments
The total number of losses cases in the twelve months ending 31 March 2015 and their total value was as follows:

Losses
Special payments
Total losses and special payments
Details of cases individually over £300,000
There were no individual cases in excess of £300,000.
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Total Value Total Number
of Cases
of Cases
£s
315,307
215
3,277
19
318,584
234
Total Value Total Number
of Cases
of Cases
£s
394,912
325
162,359
75
557,271
400
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Breakeven performance

627,168
4,367
0
0

0
4,367
(20,073)

0
0
0

0
(6,648)
(24,440)

£000s

£000s
565,681
(6,648)

2007-08

2006-07

0
2,464
(17,609)

0

0

686,836
2,464

£000s

2008-09

0
2,171
(15,021)

233

2,245
0
417
(17,192)

(11,666)

0

745,957
13,604

£000s

2010-11

47,448

0

714,827
(49,276)

£000s

2009-10

0
7,157
(7,864)

440

(2,328)
1,442

0

788,220
7,603

£000s

2011-12

0
0
0
10,895
6,677

0
0
3,646
(4,218)

(8,426)
1,889

0

868,346
17,432

£000s

2013-14

1

4,568
393

0

821,705
(1,316)

£000s

2012-13

0
0
11,492
18,169

243

18,959
2,326

0

916,255
(10,036)

£000s

2014-15

0
0
(5,614)
12,555

217

(9,937)
1,140

0.70
-3.20

2007-08
%
0.36
-2.56

2008-09
%
0.06
-2.41

2009-10
%

0.29
-2.01

2010-11
%

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been restated to IFRS and remain on a UK
GAAP basis.

-1.18
-4.32

2006-07
%

0.91
-1.00

2011-12
%

0.44
-0.51

2012-13
%

1.25
0.77

2013-14
%

1.25
1.98

2014-15
%

0

469,229
2,966

£000s

Six months
ending 30
September
2015

Page 48

-1.20
2.68

%

Six months
ending 30
September
2015

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS Trust’s financial performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM
Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure. Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no
cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance. Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and
the removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability across accounting periods.

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):
Break-even in-year/accounting period position as a percentage of turnover
Break-even cumulative position as a percentage of turnover

*

Turnover
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the accounting period
Adjustment for:
Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:
Pre FDL(97)24 agreements
2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07)
2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2007/08)
Adjustments for impairments
Adjustments for impact of policy change re donated/government
grants assets
Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - adjustment for dual accounting
under IFRIC12*
Absorption accounting adjustment
Other agreed adjustments
Break-even in-year/accounting period position
Break-even cumulative position

43.1.

43.
Financial performance targets
The figures given for periods prior to 2009-10 are on a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the targets were set for those years.
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43.2. Capital cost absorption rate
The dividend payable on Public Dividend Capital is based on the actual (rather than forecast)
average relevant net assets based on the pre audited accounts and therefore the actual capital
cost absorption rate is automatically 3.5%.
43.3. External financing
The Trust is given an external financing limit which it is permitted to undershoot.

External financing limit (EFL)
Cash flow financing
Finance leases taken out in the accounting period
Other capital receipts
External financing requirement
Under/(over) spend against EFL

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
(9,201)
(9,201)
0
0
(9,201)
0

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
(2,140)
(6,064)
828
0
(5,236)
3,096

43.4. Capital resource limit
The Trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not permitted to exceed.

Gross capital expenditure
Less: book value of assets disposed of
Less: capital grants
Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets
Charge against the capital resource limit
Capital resource limit
(Over)/underspend against the capital resource limit
44.

Six months
ending 30
September
2015
£000s
9,426
(28)
0
(277)
9,121
9,121
0

Twelve
months
ending 31
March 2015
£000s
34,408
(14)
0
(1,090)
33,304
33,309
5

Third party assets
The trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the NHS trust on behalf of
patients or other parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure
reported in the accounts.

Third party assets held by the trust
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30
September
2015
£000s

31 March
2015
4

£000s

1

Statement of Directors' responsibilities
in respect of the accounts
The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare
Accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of
the Treasury, directs that these Accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and
losses and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are
required to:
l	apply

on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of
State with the approval of the Treasury;

l

make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

l	state

whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the Accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Trust
and to enable them to ensure that the Accounts comply with requirements
outlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have
complied with the above requirements in preparing the Accounts.

Mr Mark Mansfield
Deputy Chief Executive* and
Director of Finance and Procurement
31 March 2016
* Mark Mansfield is signing this statement as Deputy Chief Executive, as well as Director of Finance
and Procurement, as the Chief Executive for the period covered by this report, Sir Jonathan Michael,
retired on 5 October 2015.
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Glossary of NHS terms and abbreviations
Academic Health Science Centre / Network
(AHSC / AHSN)
An academic health science(s) centre (AHSC) or
network (AHSN) is a partnership between one or
more universities and healthcare providers focusing
on research, clinical services, education and training.
AHSCs are intended to ensure that medical research
breakthroughs lead to direct clinical benefits for
patients.

Better Payment Practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to
aim to pay all valid non-NHS invoices by the due date
or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice,
whichever is later.
Break even (duty)
A financial target. In its simplest form it requires the
Trust to match income and expenditure.

Acute care

Capital

Also known as secondary healthcare, where a
patient receives active but short-term treatment for a
severe injury or episode of illness, an urgent medical
condition, or during recovery from surgery. Acute care
services are generally delivered by teams of healthcare
professionals from a range of medical and surgical
specialties.

Expenditure on the acquisition of land and premises,
individual works for the provision, adaptation,
renewal, replacement and demolition of buildings,
items or groups of equipment and vehicles, etc. In the
NHS, expenditure on an item is classified as capital if
its costs exceed £5000 and it’s useful life expectancy is
greater than one year.

Acute trust

Capital absorption rate

A legal entity / organisation formed to provide health
services in a secondary care setting, usually a hospital.

The capital absorption rate is determined by
dividing the PDC dividend (from the Statement of
Comprehensive Income) by the average net relevant
assets (owned assets of the Trust at the beginning and
end of the year less current liabilities and cash). The
Trust achieves the target if it achieves a rate of return
of 3.5%.

Annual Governance Statement
This has replaced the Statement of Internal Control
(SIC) and is the mechanism by which the NHS trust’s
Accountable Officer (in our case the Chief Executive)
provides assurance about the stewardship of the
organisation to the NHS Chief Executive, in his
capacity as Accounting Officer for the NHS in the
Department of Health.
The governance statement records the stewardship
of the organisation to supplement the accounts. It
will give a sense of how successfully it has coped
with the challenges it faces and of how vulnerable
the organisation’s performance is or might be. This
statement will draw together position statements
and evidence on governance, risk management and
control, to provide a more coherent and consistent
reporting mechanism.

Capital Resource Limit (CRL)
NHS trusts are given a Capital Resource Limit (CRL)
each year. They must not make capital expenditure in
excess of this limit.
Care Quality Commission (CQC)
The Care Quality Commission was set up in April 2009
and it replaced the Healthcare Commission. It is an
independent regulator to help improve the quality of
healthcare. It does this by providing an independent
assessment of the standards of services, whether
provided by the NHS, the private sector or voluntary
organisations.

Assurance framework
The Assurance Framework provides organisations with
a simple but comprehensive method for the effective
and focused management of the principal risks to
meeting their objectives. It also provides a structure
for the evidence to support the Annual Governance
Statement.
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Clinical commissioning groups (CCGs)

External Financing Limit (EFL)

Clinical commissioning groups are groups of GPs that
are responsible for designing local health services in
England. They do this by commissioning or buying
health and care services working with patients and
healthcare professionals and in partnership with local
communities and local authorities. On their governing
body, groups have, in addition to GPs, a least one
registered nurse and a doctor who is a secondary
care specialist. Groups have boundaries that do
not normally cross those of local authorities. All GP
practices have to belong to a Clinical Commissioning
Group.

NHS trusts are subject to public expenditure controls
on their use of cash. The control is an external
financing limit (EFL) issued to each NHS trust by
the Department of Health. The EFL represents the
difference between the cash resources a trust can
generate internally (principally retained surpluses and
depreciation) and its approved capital spending. If its
internal resources are insufficient to meet approved
capital spend then it is able to borrow the difference.

Clostridium difficile (C difficile)
Clostridium difficile is a bacterium that can cause an
infection of the gut and is the major infectious cause
of diarrhoea that is acquired in hospitals in the UK.
Current assets
Debtors, stocks, cash or similar whose value is, or can
be converted into, cash within the next 12 months.
Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption or
other loss of value of a fixed asset whether arising
from use, passage of time or obsolescence through
technology, and market changes. The process of
charging the cost of an asset over its useful life as
opposed to recording its cost as a single entry in the
income and expenditure records.

Fixed assets
Land, buildings, equipment and other long-term
assets that are expected to have a life of more than
one year.
Foundation Trust (FT)
NHS foundation trusts have been created to devolve
decision-making from central Government control to
local organisations and communities so they are more
responsive to the needs and wishes of their local
people. Foundation Trusts have a membership drawn
from the community which they serve and an elected
Council of Governors. They also enjoy some financial
freedoms not available to NHS trusts.
GP
A doctor (General Practitioner) who, often with
colleagues in partnership, works from a local doctor’s
surgery, providing medical advice and treatment to
patients.

Elective inpatient activity

Health Innovation and Education Cluster

Elective activity is where the decision to admit to
hospital could be separated in time from the actual
admission, i.e. planned. This covers waiting list,
booked and planned admissions.

A local partnership hosted by Oxford Health NHS
Foundation Trust.

Electronic Patient Record (EPR)

A statutory committee of the local social services – in
our Trust’s case, Oxfordshire County Council. The NHS
is obliged to consult HOSC on any substantial changes
it wants to make to local health services.

A new system of recording patient notes on computer
rather than paper.
Emergency inpatient activity
Emergency activity is where admission is unpredictable
and at short notice because of clinical need.
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Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(HOSC)

Healthwatch Oxfordshire

Monitor

Healthwatch Oxfordshire is an independent
organisation that listens to people’s views and
experiences of health and social care in Oxfordshire.
It has taken over from the Local Involvement Network
(LINK).

Monitor authorises and regulates NHS foundation
trusts, making sure they are well-managed and
financially strong so that they can deliver excellent
healthcare for patients. It was established in 2004.
On 1 April 2016, it came together with the NHS Trust
Development Authority to form NHS Improvement.

Inpatient
A patient whose care involves an overnight stay in
hospital.
International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 12
The International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee issued an interpretation – IFRIC 12 –
on Service Concession Arrangements. These are
arrangements whereby a government (or the NHS)
grants a contract for the supply of public services to
private operators. Hence for the Trust, the PFI is an
example of a scheme that is subject to IFRIC 12.
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)
The International Financial Reporting Standards
provide a framework of accounting policies which the
NHS has adopted since April 2009 and which replace
the UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK
GAAP) which was the basis of accounting in the UK
before international standards were adopted.

National Institute for Health and Care
Excellence (NICE)
A body which evaluates drugs and treatments.
NICE's role was set out in the 2004 White Paper
´Choosing health: making healthier choices easier´. In
it the government set out key principles for helping
people make healthier and more informed choices
about their health. The government wants NICE to
bring together knowledge and guidance on ways of
promoting good health and treating ill health.
National Institute for Health Research
(NIHR)
NIHR provides the framework through which the
research staff and research infrastructure of the NHS
in England is positioned, maintained and managed as
a national research facility.
National service frameworks
National standards for the best way of providing
particular services.

Investors in People

NHS England (NHSE)

The Investors in People Standard provides a framework
that helps organisations to improve performance and
realise objectives through the effective management
and development of their people

NHS England (formally the NHS Commissioning Board)
is the body which oversees the day-to-day operation
of the NHS as set out in the Health and Social Care Act
2012. It oversees the clinical commissioning groups and
commissions certain specialist services directly.

Market forces factor
An index used in resource allocation to adjust for
unavoidable variation in input costs. It consists of
components to take account of staff costs, regional
weighting, land, buildings and equipment.
Methicillin resistant staphylococcus
aureus (MRSA)
This is a strain of a common bacterium, which is
resistant to an antibiotic called methicillin.

NHS Improvement
On 1 April 2016, the NHS Trust Development
Authority and Monitor came together to form NHS
Improvement. The role of NHS Improvement is to
provide governance and accountability for NHS
trusts and foundation trusts in England and delivery
of the foundation trust pipeline. NHS Improvement
helps each NHS trust and foundation trust secure
sustainable, high quality services for the patients and
communities they serve.
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NHS Trust Development Authority (NHSTDA)

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

The role of the NHS Trust Development Authority
(NHS TDA) is to provide governance and
accountability for NHS trusts in England and delivery
of the foundation trust pipeline. The NHS TDA helps
each NHS trust secure sustainable, high quality
services for the patients and communities they serve.
On 1 April 2016, it came together with Monitor to
form NHS Improvement.

The private finance initiative (PFI) provides a way of
funding major capital investments, without immediate
recourse to the public purse. Private consortia, usually
involving large construction firms, are contracted to
design, build, and in some cases manage new projects.

NHS trusts
NHS trusts are hospitals, community health services,
mental health services and ambulance services which
are managed by their own boards of directors. NHS
trusts are part of the NHS and provide services based
on the requirements of patients as commissioned by
CCGs and NHS England.
Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors, including the Chairman,
are Trust Board members but not full time NHS
employees. They are people from other backgrounds
who have shown a keen interest in helping to improve
the health of local people. They have a majority on
the Board and their role is to bring a range of varied
perspectives and experiences to strategy development
and decision-making, ensure effective management
arrangements and an effective management team is
in place and hold the executive directors to account
for organisational performance.

Primary care
Family health services provided by family doctors,
dentists, pharmacists, optometrists, and ophthalmic
medical practitioners.
Public Health England
Public Health England was established on 1 April
2013 to bring together public health specialists from
more than 70 organisations into a single public health
service. It is an executive agency of the Department of
Health.
Risk register
A register of all the risks identified by the
organisation, each of which is assessed to determine
the likelihood of the risk occurring and the impact on
the organisation if it does occur.
Secondary care
Services provided by medical specialists. Usually they
do not have first contact with patients. Secondary
care is mostly provided in hospitals or clinics and
patients are generally referred to secondary care by
their primary care provider (usually their GP).

Outpatient attendance
An outpatient attendance is when a patient visits
a consultant or other medical outpatient clinic. The
attendance can be a first or follow-up.
Oxford Biomedical Research Centre (OxBRC)
A partnership between the University of Oxford and
Oxford University Hospitals funded by the National
Institute for Health Research (NIHR).
Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS)
A service providing support to patients, carers and
relatives.
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Service Level Agreements
Service Level Agreements (SLA) are the main
mechanism for service provision between NHS trusts
and the commissioners (CCGs and NHS England) for
NHS services. An SLA is an agreement that sets out
formally the relationship between service providers
and customers for the supply of a service by one or
another.
Thames Valley Local Education and Training
Board (Health Education Thames Valley)
Local Education and Training Boards (LETBs) are
responsible for workforce planning and development
and education and training of the healthcare and
public health workforce.

USEFUL WEBSITES
For further information on all our services please visit www.ouh.nhs.uk or follow developments at
Oxford University Hospitals on Twitter: twitter.com/OUHospitals.

OTHER USEFUL WEBSITES
Association of Air Ambulances

www.associationofairambulances.co.uk

Care Quality Commission

www.cqc.org.uk

Cherwell District Council

www.cherwell.gov.uk

Department of Health

www.gov.uk/dh

General Medical Council (GMC)

www.gmc-uk.org

Health and Social Care Information Centre

www.hscic.gov.uk

Health Education England

www.hee.nhs.uk

Health Education Thames Valley

www.hee.nhs.uk/hee-your-area/thames-valley

Healthwatch Oxfordshire

www.healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk

Medical Sciences at Oxford University

www.medsci.ox.ac.uk

Monitor

www.gov.uk/government/organisations/Monitor

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE)

www.nice.org.uk

National Institute for Health Research

www.nihr.ac.uk

NHS Choices

www.nhs.uk

NHS Confederation

www.nhsconfed.org

NHS England

www.england.nhs.uk

NHS Health at Work – occupational health provider

www.nhshealthatwork.co.uk

NHS Improvement

www.improvement.nhs.uk

NHS Protect – Counter Fraud & Security Services

www.nhsba.nhs.uk/Protect

NHS Providers

www.nhsproviders.org

NHS Trust Development Authority

www.ntda.nhs.uk

Oxford Academic Health Science network

www.oxfordahsn.org

Oxford Biomedical Research Centre

www.oxfordbrc.nihr.ac.uk

Oxford Brookes Faculty of Health and Life Sciences

www.hls.brookes.ac.uk

Oxford Brookes University

www.brookes.ac.uk

Oxford City Council

www.oxford.gov.uk

Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust

www.oxfordhealth.nhs.uk

Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group

www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk

Oxfordshire County Council

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk

Patients' Association

www.patients-association.com

Patient Safety Federation

www.patientsafetyfederation.nhs.uk

Public Health England	www.gov.uk/government/organisations/publichealth-england
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Royal College of Anaesthetists

www.rcoa.ac.uk

Royal College of Emergency Medicine

www.rcem.ac.uk

Royal College of General Practitioners

www.rcgp.org.uk

Royal College of Midwives

www.rcm.org.uk

Royal College of Nurses

www.rcn.org.uk

Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists

www.rcog.org.uk

Royal College of Ophthalmologists

www.rcophth.ac.uk

Royal College of Paediatricians and Child Health

www.rcpch.ac.uk

Royal College of Pathologists

www.rcpath.org

Royal College of Physicians

www.rcplondon.ac.uk

Royal College of Radiologists

www.rcr.ac.uk

Royal College of Surgeons

www.rcseng.ac.uk

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust

www.southcentralambulance.nhs.uk

South Oxfordshire District Council

www.southoxon.gov.uk

Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust

www.southernhealth.nhs.uk

Sustainable Improvement Team

www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/qual-clin-lead/nhsiq

Thames Valley Air Ambulance

www.tvairambulance.org.uk

Thames Valley Health Innovation and Education Cluster

www.tvhiec.org.uk

University of Oxford

www.ox.ac.uk

Vale of White Horse District Council

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

West Oxfordshire District Council

www.westoxon.gov.uk
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TELL US WHAT YOU THINK
Every year we produce an Annual Report, which
summarises what we have done over the year and includes our
accounts. We publish it on our website and make some printed
versions available, on request. We also produce a CD of all key
documents, including the full accounts.
We aim to ensure that the Report is accessible and we can
arrange to have it translated into different languages, and
produced in large print if required.
We are keen to have more feedback on both the content and
format of the Report, so that we can take your comments
into account next year. To make a comment, please use the
following contact information:
Email: media.office@ouh.nhs.uk
Write to us:
Media and Communications Unit
Level 3, John Radcliffe Hospital
Headley Way
Headington
Oxford OX3 9DU
See our website: www.ouh.nhs.uk
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